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“use of small fragments of drug-like molecules, or scaffolds, as starting points for drug discovery, with subse-
\\qqent use of three-dimensional structural information to guide compound aptimization. FAST, which is broadly
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PRESIDENT'S LETTER

Ta Qur Shareholders;
2006 brought significant change to 5GX Pharmaceuticals, adding greater depth, clearer focus, and important
advancements in cur oncology drug discovery pipeline.

We successfully completed ourinitial public offering in February of 2006, an important milestone in the life
of a company. This was closely followed by the signing of a significant license and collaboration agreement
with Novartis Institutes for Biomedical Research. Under our agreement with Novartis, total payment to

us could exceed $515 miklion through the attainment of success-based milestanes and research funding.
We are collaborating to discover and develop BCR-ABL inhibitors for the treatment of drug resistant chronic
myelogenous leukemia (CML). We are delighted to have Novartis as a collaborative partner, and we look
forward to further pragress within the program.

Later in the year we made the decision to move resources out of the Troxatyl™ program follawing the discontinu-
ation of the Phase 11711l clinical study in third-line acute myelogenous leukemia. We are now applying our focus
to the deveippment of gur earlier stage pipeline pragrams, including our MET inhibitor program from which a
lead candidate, 5GX523, was selected in February 2007, and our JAKZ and RAS inhibitor programs.

Qur discovery pipeline is fed through application of our FAST™ drug discovery process, which is based on the

applicable to a wide range of protein targets, addresses many of the limitations of traditional approaches to drug
discovery, which require high-throughput screening of very large numbers of compounds. The structural biology o o
and X-ray crystallography technelogies within ur FAST plaiferm have produced numerous revenue-generating ' . )." /
partnerships that help fund our internal drug discovery and development pragrams. Since 2004, we have gener- e
ated more than 576 million in revenues from collaborations, commercial agreements and grants.

"FAST which is broadly applicable to a wide range of protein targets,
addresses many of the limitations of traditional approaches to drug discovery...”

| irmly believe that good science comes from good scientists. Led by Chief Scientific Officer Stephen Burley
and the additians in 2006 of Vice President of Drug Discovery Siegfried Reich and Chief Medical Officer Terry
Rugg, our scientific leadership has the talent and vision to enable us to move our pipeline forward and maxi-
mize the potential of our FAST technology. Stephen has been invaluable in guiding the development of our FAST
drug discovery platform. Siegfried adds expertise in structure-based drug design and has greatly enhanced the
efficiency of our drug discovery operations at SGX. Terry rounds cui our discovery and development capabilities
with his years of expenience in climcat and regulatory affairs. These skills will be critical as candidates from our
pipeline approach clinical development. | am proud of the quality of the senier management team we've been
abte to build, and encouraged each day by the enthusiasm and experience each member brings to the team.

However, none of what we have achieved would be possible without the excellence of all of our employees
and | want to thank each of them for their hard work, commitment and dedication to our goals and ur vision.




| also want to thank you, our shareholders, for your continued support and shared
commitment. Your investment plays a key rote in supparting our mission to turn

innovative discoveries intg life-changing therapies. We have made significant
progress over the past year and our visign is as clear as ever. There is still a lot of
work to be dong, and | leok forward to the progress ahead of us in 2007 and beyond.

Mo Gy

Mike Grey
President & CED
SGX Pharmaceuticals
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DRUG DISCOVERY DONE FAST™

FAST™ (Fragments of Active Structures) is our progrietary approach

to drug discovery that enables the rapid discovery and optimization

of potent and selective small melecule inhibitors of drug targets.
Through the application of FAST, we are building a pipeline of oncotogy
drug candidates. Our current goal is to advance our ancology pipeline
and file at least ane new IND application per year.

FAST addresses many of the limitations of traditional discavery
approaches utilized by large pharmaceutical companies to identify
and aptimize lead compounds, making it an attractive technology

for a broad range of drug discovery targets. Unlike traditional lead
discovery approaches, which requira vltra high-throughput screening
(HT5) of very large numbers of compounds, FAST focuses on low
molecular weight, water-soluble fragments as starting points for
structure-based drug design of small molecule inhikitars.

A key advantage of FAST compared to HTS is the ability to start witha
small number of low motecular weight compounds, or fragments, that
are amenable to crystallographic screaning. Large, bigher motecular
weight comgounds, typical of HTS hits, frequently present challenging
ohstatles to optimization and mainterance of drug-like properties.

There are two main components of the FAST technology. The first is the
identification of scaffoids, or fragments, that bind the target protein,
Typically, these scaffolds are identified by screening our proprietary

fragment library of approximately 1,500 structurally diverse,
low molecular weight compounds using X-ray crystatlography
to visualize the small molecule bound to the target protein.

In the second component of the FAST process, selected
scaffolds are optimized to drug candidates, which includes
redesigning the core if desired, to create higher affinity
tompounds that remain at desirable molecular weights. This
process enables us 1o generate and optimize leads with greater
confidence and verify the optimization pracess alang the way
with visual (3-dimensional) feedback in atomic detail afforded
by our high-throughput X-ray crystallography capabilities.

We developed FAST through the integration of
a series of technology capabilities, including:

- A high-throughput capahbility to generate many differant
crystals of a target protein in parallel.

« The crystallographic sereening of our library of fragments
and direct visualization of fragments hound tg targets
utilizing X-ray crystallography.

- The use of novel computational design methads and iterative
synthetic chemistry to optimize these fragments into
drug-like lead compounds.

- The use of structure guided drug design to rapidly optimize
lead compounds into drug candidates with low molecular
weight, highligand efficiency, and good drug-like properties.

FAST DISCOVERY OF THE BCR-ABL SERIES
The image to the left (A) shows & 3-dimensional representation of the BCR-ABL kinase, a known drug target for CML. Of more than 800 fragments
screened from our FAST fragment tibrary, we identified 24 hits in two different binding sites on the BCR-ABL protein. These fragment hits serve as
the building blocks for novel drug candidates by guiding further modifications of initia) crystallographic screening hits (B,C,D). Knowledge of the
binding mode of each fragment to its target is combined with advanced computaticnal tools te leverage parallet crganic synthesis with the goal of
producing “engineered” leads that are potent, reasonably selective, and have drug-like physicochemical properties (). The speed with whicha
FAST campaign can be executed and the ability to access & highly diverse chemical space makes it both competitive with and complementary to HTS.




BCR-ABL INHIBITOR PROGRAM

Targeting a Growing Market for Drug Resistant CML

BCR-ABL s the enzyme targeted by Gleever®, a
$2.6 billion cancer drug that has been effective in
treating patients with chronic myelogenous leukemia
(CML). Unfortunately, some patients become
resistant to treatmeat with Gleevee and a significant
unmet medical need remains. According to a pager
published in the New England Journal of Medicine,
seventeen percent of patients will relapse within
five years of treatment, four percent of patients

on Gleever discontinue due ta adverse events and
3t percent of patients do not achieve a complete
cytogenetic response within 12 manths, defined as
high risk patients. Incomplete cytogenetic response

is associated with worse prognosis.*

Resistance ta Gleevec is associated with emergence
af mutations ta the BCR-ABL enzyme that weaken
Gleevec’s ability to bind to BCR-ABL and inhibit its
disease-associated function. Using our powerful
FAST™ drug discovery platform, we have discovered

orally-active inhibitors of Gleevec-resistant BCR-

ABL that cover wild-tupe and most of the clinically-
characterized mutations including the T315] mutant,
which is the mast challenging form of Gleevec-
resistant BCR-ABL.

In March 2006, we partnered with Novartis, the
company that devetoped and commercialized
(leevec, to develop and commercialize next-
generation BCR-ABL inhibitors. We are responsible
for compteting preclinical development, submitting
an IND and completing the initial Phase | study for
the first 1ead drug candidate. Novartis is responsible
for subsequent development and commercialization.

Together, we aim to develop a once daily oral

therapy for the treatment of Gleevec-resistant
CML and a first-line therapy, likely in combination
with another agent such as Gleevec, and initially

targeting high risk patients.

* New England lournal of Medicine 2006; 355: 2408-17.

TERRY RUGG, M.D.

CHIEF MEDICAL OFFICER &
VICE PRESIDENT, DEVELOPMENT

THE SUCCESS OF GLEEVEC HASLED T A
GROWING NUMBER OF PEGPLE LIVING WITH
CHRONIC MYELOGENOUS LEUKEMIA. WITH THE
EMERGENCE OF GENE MUTATIONS LEADING

T0 DRUG RESISTANCE, THERE IS INCREASING
DEMAND FOR MORE POTENT INHIG(TORS THAT
ARE ABLE TO COVER A BROADER S2ECTRUM OF
BCR-ABL MUTANTS, WITH DASATANIB FROM
BRISTGL-MYERS SQUIBB AND NILJTONIB FROM
NOVARTIS, WE ARE ALREADY SEEING THE FIRST
WAVE OF THESE PRODUCTS COME TO MARKET,
BUT EVEN THESE AGENTS DO NOT COVER THE
13150 MUTANT, WHICH 1S THE SiNGLE MUTANT
MOST DIFFICULT TO TREAT AND ASSOCIATED
WITH A LARGE NUMBER OF RELAPSES. THUS,
AN ORALLY ADMINISTERED DRUt EFFECTIVE

IN THIS T315! POPULATION WILL BE HIGHLY
SOUGHT AFTER TO EFFECTIVELY YREAT THE
GROWING CML POPULATION,




MET INRIBITOR & PROTEIN

MET INHIBITOR PROGRAM

Elucidating a Drug Pathway in Oncology

MET is a receptor tyresine kinase protein that controls cell grawth, division, and motility. Itis impli-
taied in a range of solid tumors, including lung, colon, prostate, gastric, and kidrey cancers. MET has
been extensively studied in the laboratory environment with increasing data supporting a key role of the
uncontrolled stimulation of MET leading to a variety of effects associated with cancer including cellular
growth and increased cell movement and invasion, with an increased ability of cancer cells to metastasize,
or spread beyond the organ of origin. Other ohservations have implicated MET in increased angiogenesis,
a process by which tumars recruit new blood vessels to suppiy their increasing nutritional needs.

Reports of the early clinical observations of competitars’ MET inhibitors have suggested that some patients
have experienced varying degrees of clinical benefit, including tumor response, tumer stabilization and/or
symptom improvement. We believe the loss of proper regulation of MET in most cancers and its role in con-
trolling multiple signaling pathways involved in tumor growth and the transference of cancer celis to other
parts of the body render MET a compeNling therapeutic target for human cancer.

In February 2007, we announced the selection of a MET inhihitor development candidate, 56X523, for IND-
enabling preclinical development from a series of internally developed patent MET inhibitors. 56X523is an
oral small molecule kinase inhibitor that has shown very high selectivity for MET over more than 200 protein
kinases and potent in-vitro and in-vivo activity as a potential anti-cancer agent. 5GX523 has a number of
attractive properties, including lew molecular weight, cell-based potency and oral bioavailability , which
suggests the potential for an oral medication on a daily or twice daily continuous dosing schedule.

JAK2 INHIBITOR & PROTEIN

JAK2 INHIBITOR PROGRAM

Building a Pipeline with FAST™

Through the application ¢f the FAST lead discovery and optimization capabilities, we have gener-
ated a number of potent, small molecule JAKZ inhibitors. JAK2 is implicated in various myelopro-
liferative disorders estimated to affect 80,000-100,000 people in the U.S. Compounds from our

lead series have shown activity against wild-type JAK2 kinase and the V617F mutant form of JAK2.
Oral bioavailability has alse been demanstrated in preclinical studies.

STEPHEN K. BURLEY, M.D., D. PHIL., F.R.S.C.

CHIEF STIENTIFIC QFFICER &
SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT, RESEARCH

MET IS AN INCREASINGLY IMPORTANT BUT

VERY CHALLENGING DRUG TARGET FOR THE
INDUSTRY. WE BELIEVE THERE ARE ADVANTAGES
TO AN ATTRACTIVE INHIBITOR OF LESSTHAN

500 MOLECULAR WEIGHT, WITH GOGD CELL
PERMEABILITY, AND MINIMAL CROSS-
REACTIVITY WITHIN THE HUMAN KINOME.
STRUCTURAL ANALYSIS SHOWS US THAT MET
HAS AN EXTREMELY MOBILE ACTIVE SITE, WHICH
HAS MADE DISCOVERY DIFFICULT FGR THOSE
LACKING 3-D CRYSTALLOGRAPHIC INFORMATIGN.
BY APPLYING OUR STRENGTH IN STRUCTURE-
BASED DRUG DISCOVERY AND THE SPEED AND
FLEXIBILITY OF FAST TO VISUALIZE DRUG AND
TARGET BINDING, WE WERE ABLE TQ RAPIDLY
OPTIMIZE THE SERYES AND ULTIMATELY IDENTIFY
OUR MET DEVELGPMENT CANDIDATE, SGX523.

SIEGFRIED REICH, PH.D.
VICE PRESIDENT, DRUG DISCOVERY

FAST IS AN (DEAL PLATFORM FOR IDENTIFY-
ING INHIBITORS OF TARGETS THAT HAVE NOT
YIELDED PROMISING LEADS FROM HIGH-
THRQUGHPUT SCREENING AS IT TYPICALLY
FOCUSES ON LOW MOLECULAR WEIGHT, WATER
SOLUBLE FRAGMENTS A5 STARTING POINTS
FOR SYNTHESIS AND OPTIMIZATION. HAVING
REAL TIME STRUCTURAL INFORMATION OF
COMPOUNDS BGUND TO THE TARGET PROTEINS
AVAILABLE TO DUR CHEMISTS GIVES US AN
IMPORTANT ADVANTAGE AS WE OPTIMIZE
POTENTIAL DEVELGPMENT CANDIDATES.
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Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This annual report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements that involve many risks and uncer-
tainties. These statements relate to future events and our future performance and are based on current expectations,
estimates, forecasts and projections about the industries in which we operate and the beliefs and assumptions of our
management. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terms such as “would,” “could,”
“may,” “will,” “should,” “expect,” “intend,” “plan,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “predict,” “potential,”
“targets,” “seek,” or “continue,” the negative of these terms or other variations of such terms. In addition, any
statements that refer to projections of our future financial performance, our anticipated growth and trends in our
business and other characterizations of future events or circumstances are forward-looking statements. These
statemnents are only predictions based upon assumptions made that are betieved to be reasonable at the time, and are
subject to risk and uncertainties. Therefore, actual events or results may differ materially and adversely from those
expressed in any forward-looking statement. In evaluating these statements, you should specifically consider the
risks described under the caption “Risks Factors” in Item LA of this Form 10-K and elsewhere in this Form 10-K.
These factors may cause our actual results to differ materially from any forward-looking staternents. Except as
required by law, we undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as
a result of new information, future events or otherwise.,
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PART I

Item 1. Business
Overview

We are a biotechnology company focused on the discovery, development and commercialization of innovative
cancer therapeutics. Our principal areas of focus in drug discovery are on protein and enzyme targets that have been
implicated in cancers, including BCR-ABL, MET, JAK2 and RAS. We are advancing our internal oncology product
pipeline through the application of our proprietary approach to drug discovery that is based upon the use of small
fragments of drug-like molecules, or scaffolds, known as Fragments of ‘Active Structures, or FAST.

We have applied FAST to generate novel, potent and selective small molecule compounds for many proteins,
or drug targets that have been implicated in cancers and other diseases. The FAST drug discovery process involves
identification and visualization of chemical scaffolds bound to the target protein. Thereafter, three-dimensional
structural information is used to guide optimization of the potency and selectivity of the small molecule lead
compounds bound to the target. The resulting low-molecular weight lead compounds typically possess good drug-
like properties, thereby increasing the likelihood of success in further lead optimization and preclinical testing for
eventual drug candidate selection. Lead optimization is the stage at which lead compounds discovered using FAST
are further modified to improve their potency, specificity, in vive efficacy and safety.

We are developing inhibitors of an enzyme known as BCR-ABL, in collaboration with Novartis Institutes for
Biomedical Research (“Novartis™) under a license and collaboration agreement we entered into in March 2006. In
this program, we designed and are developing these inhibitors for the treatment of Chronic Myelogenous Leukemia,
or CML, a cancer of the bone marrow, which is resistant to treatment with the current standard of care, Gleevec®
(imatinib mesylate) marketed by Novartis Pharmaceuticals Corporation. The goal of the collaboration is to develop
an oral therapy for the treatment of both first-line and Gleevec-resistant CML. We are continuing to progress
potential drug candidates from our lead series. Foilowing a review by the collaboration’s Joint Research Committee,
ot JRC, of available preclinical data on the two most advanced candidates from our lead series, the JRC has decided
to discontinue pursuing one of these candidates further and to collect additional data on the other, before
determining whether to move it forward into investigational new drug (IND) enabling toxicology studies. In
parallel, we have been advancing back-up compounds and a number of these are undergoing further preclinical
testing. As a result, and contingent upon successful completion of these further preclinical studies, including
toxicology studies, our anticipated timeline for the filing of an IND in this program is now the first half of 2008.

In February 2007, we announced the nomination of a MET development candidate, SGX523, for IND-
enabling preclinical development. SGX523 is an internally developed, orally bicavailable small molecule inhibitor
of the MET receptor tyrosine kinase. SGX523 has shown significant selectivity for MET over more than 200 protein
kinases and potent in-vitro and in-vivo activity. The MET receptor tyrosine kinase plays an important role in the
control of cell growth, division and motility, and the formation of blood vessels, and is implicated as a causative
agent in a broad range of solid tumors, including lung, colon, prostate, gastric, and kidney cancers. Pending
successful completion of formal toxicology studies, we are targeting filing an IND application for SGX523 in the
first quarter of 2008.

An additional internal program at the lead optimization stage is focused on the target JAKZ. JAK2 is non-
receptor tyrosine kinase protein that is mutated in a significant percentage of patients diagnosed with the blood
disorders known as myeloproliferative disorders, such as Polycythemia Vera, Chronic Idiopathic Myelofibrosis,
and Essential Thrombocythemia, For this target, our goat is to develop a once daily oral therapy for the relevant
indications. Nomination of a development candidate in our JAK2 program is targeted for the second half of 2007.

Our current goal is to advance our oncology pipeline and file at least one new IND application per year. We
intend to continue our strategy of entering into collaborative alliances around certain of our internal programs in
order to generate near-term revenue and offset discovery and development costs, as we did with our BCR-ABL
program. Based on FAST and related technologies, we have generated aggregate revenues from collaborations,
commercial agreements and grants of approximately $76.7 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004.

2




The chart below summarizes the status of our most advanced ongoing and currently planned clinical and
preclinical development programs:

Program/Indication Status Marketing Rights
BCR-ABL
« CML Preclinical development Novartis (Worldwide)

SGX (U.S. and Canada
Commercialization rights)

MET

= Solid tumors Preclinical development SGX (Worldwide)
JAK2

« Myeloproliferative disorders Lead optimization SGX (Worldwide)
RAS

e Solid tumors Lead identification SGX (Worldwide)

BCR-ABL Kinase Inhibitor Program

Our BCR-ABL program is focused on compounds that inhibit both wild-type and Gleevec-resistant mutant
forms of BCR-ABL tyrosine kinase, the enzyme that is responsible for CML. This program is being conducted in
collaboration with Novartis under a license and collaboration agreement entered into in March 2006.

Chronic Myelogenous Leukemia

Chronic myelogenous leukemia (CML) is a malignant cancer of the bone marrow cauvsing rapid and abnormal
growth of white blood cells. The disease has an incidence of between 1 and 2 new patients per 100,000 individuals in
the general population. In the US, this represents approximately 4,600 new patients a year. CML accounts for
approximately 20 percent of adult leukemias. All patients with CML have a defective chromosome, known as a
Philadelphia chromosome, in their leukemia cells. Prior to the introduction of Gleevec (imatinib), even with
conventional therapy, a large majority of patients with CML inevitably progressed to die from their disease. In 2001,
Gleevec was approved by the FDA and has become the standard of care for patients with CML. Gleevec works
directly on leukemic cells by inhibiting the activity of the BCR-ABL tyrosine kinase protein, the enzyme
responsible for uncontrolted growth of CML cells. Data from a five-year clinical study of Gleevec that was
published in the New England Journal of Medicine documents the life-saving impact of this therapy for CML
patients. Specifically, this study demonstrated that following five years of continuous daily therapy, 83% of patients
remained in clinical remission, with an overall survival of 89%. The publication states *“/t is currently recommended
that Imatinib be continued indefinitely”. This level of efficacy contributes to the clinical and commercial success of
Gleevec, which had sales of approximately $2.6 billion in 2006, and the market is anticipated to continue to
increase. However, not all patients will benefit indefinitely from single agent treatment with Gleevec. Over time,
resistance emerges, with approximately 17% of patients relapsing within five years, and 4% of patients discon-
tinuing therapy due to adverse events. The New England Journal of Medicine publication documents that 31% of
patients receiving Gleevec failed to eliminate leukemic cells from their bone marrow within 12 months of
commencing therapy. These patients are at significantly higher risk of relapse relative to those patients who do
eliminate leukemic cells from the bone marrow within 12 months. In approximately two-thirds of cases, patient
relapse has been linked to the emergence of mutant forms of BCR-ABL that are not inhibited by Gleevec. Multiple
BCR-ABL mutants have been described and the single mutant that has proved the most challenging is known as the
T3151 mutant. There are a number of compounds being developed to address this mutant, however, to our
knowledge there is no oral drug presently either in the clinic or on the market that inhibits the T3151 mutant form of
BCR-ABL,

SGX BCR-ABL Inhibitors

We are developing inhibitors of an enzyme known as BCR-ABL, in collaboration with Novartis under a license
and collaboration agreement we entered into in March 2006. We are continuing to progress potential drug
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candidates from our lead series. Following a review by the collaboration’s Joint Research Committee, or IRC, of
available preclinical data on the two most advanced candidates from our lead series, the JRC has decided to
discontinue pursuing one of these candidates further and to collect additional data on the other, before determining
whether to move it forward into IND-enabling toxicology studies. In parallel, we have been advancing back-up
compounds and a number of these are undergoing further preclinical testing. As a result, and contingent upon
successful completion of these further preclinical studies, including toxicology studies, our anticipated timeline for
the filing of an IND in this program is now the first half of 2008,

Competition

In 2006, Bristol-Myers Squibb received FDA marketing approval for dasatinib (Sprycel®) and Novartis
completed the submission of its New Drug Application for nilotinib (Tasigna®). Both agents provide new options
for patients with resistance and/or intolerance to treatment of certain forms of CML. Although both nilotinib and
dasatinib inhibit some Gleevec-resistant BCR-ABL mutants, neither inhibits the T315]1 mutant. Treatment failure
with either agent is believed to be most commonly due to the emergence of BCR-ABL mutants. Numerous other
agents targeting CML or Gleevec-resistant BCR-ABL mutants are in various stages of preclinical and clinical
development.

MET Tyrosine Kinase Receptor Inhibitor Program

¢-MET (MET) is a protein, known as a receptor tyrosine kinase, which has been implicated in a wide range of
cancers, incleding both solid and blood tumors. MET has been extensively studied in the laboratory environment
with increasing data suggesting that uncontrolled stimulation of MET plays a key role in a variety of effects
associated with cancer including cellular growth and increased cell movement and invasion, and an increased ability
of cancer cells to metastasize, or spread beyond the organ of origin. Other observations have implicated MET in
increased angiogenesis, a process by which tumors recruit new blood vessels to supply their increasing nutritional
needs. Studies of tumors in humans have associated MET with more aggressive forms of cancer, such as lung and
renal cancer, and activating MET mutations have been observed in a wide range of cancer types. Limited clinical
activity data have been published from competitor agents currently in Phase I clinical trials. However, reports of the
early clinical observations have suggested that some patients have experienced varying degrees of clinical benefit,
including tumor response, tumor stabilization and/or symptom improvement.

In February 2007, we announced the nomination of our first MET development candidate, SGX523, which was
selected from a series of low molecular weight MET inhibitors. This series of compounds has demonstrated potency
in cell based assays, selectivity against a wide variety of kinases and oral bioavailability in multiple animal species.
We selected SGX523 based on its overall superior profile, which suggests the potential for an oral medication on a
daily continuous dosing schedule. The high degree of selectivity of SGX523 over many other kinases may minimize
cross target toxicity, which could make SGX523 a candidate for either single agent or combination therapy
approaches with other agents currently in clinical use. We expect to complete formal toxicology studies during
2007, positioning us to file an IND application with the FDA for SGX523 in the first quarter of 2008.

Other Oncology Programs

We have also applied our FAST lead discovery and optimization technology to JAK2. JAK2 is a non-receptor
tyrosine kinase involved in cytokine-induced signaling and growth regulation, survival, and differentiation of cells.
Enhanced JAK2 activation has been implicated in various blood disorders. A particular JAK2 mutation, V617F, has
been strongly correlated with a group of blood diseases known as myeloproliferative disorders (MPDs), such as
Polycythemia Vera, Essential Thrombocythemia, and Chrenic Idiopathic Myelofibrosis.

We have identified JAK?2 inhibitors that have good potency against both wild-type and mutant JAK?2 in cell-
based assays. Oral bioavailability has also been demonstrated and current studies are aimed at optimizing the
potency and drug like properties of these compounds. This program is in the lead optimization stage.

We also have a discovery program focused on a target called RAS. RAS is a protein that regulates cell growth.
RAS activating mutations, which result in a cancer causing form of RAS, have been found in 20-30% of all cancers
and consequently, RAS has been implicated in a large number of diseases. However, RAS has proven a challenging
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target for the pharmaceutical industry and thus far there are currently no drugs on the market that directly target
RAS. Applying our FAST platform, we have taken a novel approach to the modulation of RAS activity and we have
identified inhibitors that have demonstrated cell-hased activity. We are working to improve the potency of these
inhibitors. Our RAS program is currently in the lead identification stage. Lead identification is the stage at which
compounds are identified and further characterized in preparation for the lead optimization stage.

FAST — Our Drug Discovery Platform

FAST is our proprietary approach to drug discovery that uses X-ray crystallography and complementary
biophysical and biochemical methods and medicinal and computational chemistry for the rapid discovery and
optimization of novel, potent and selective small molecule inhibitors of drug targets with good drug-like properties.
Through the application of FAST, we are building a pipeline of oncology drug candidates. FAST addresses many of
the limitations of traditional approaches utilized by large pharmaceutical companies to identify and optimize lead
compounds, making it an attractive technology for a broad range of drug discovery targets, including those that have
not yielded promising leads from high-throughput screening. Unlike traditional lead discovery approaches, which
require ultra high-throughput screening of very large numbers of compounds, FAST focuses on low molecular
weight, water-soluble fragments as starting points for rapid synthesis and optimization under structural guidance to
enable the delivery of novel, potent and selective modulators of drug targets.

We developed FAST through the integration of a series of technology capabilities, including:
* a high-throughput capability to generate many different crystals of a target protein in parallef;

» the crystallographic screening of our library of fragments and direct visualization of bound fragments
utilizing X-ray crystallography:

» the use of novel computational design methods and iterative synthetic chemistry to optimize these fragments
into drug-like lead compounds; and

« the use of structure guided drug design to enable the rapid optimization of lead compounds into drug
candidates with low molecular weight, high ligand efficiency, and good drug like properties.

We have combined these technologies to generate a platform for drug discovery applicable to a wide range of
potential drug targets that exploits high chemical diversity and the potential for good drug-like properties. There are
two main components of the FAST technology. The first is the identification of scaffolds that bind the target protein.
Typically, these scaffolds are identified by screening our proprietary fragment library of approximately 1,500
structurally diverse, low molecular weight compounds using X-ray crystallography to visualize the small molecule
bound to the target protein. Alternatively, scaffolds can be identified using complementary biophysical and
biochemical measures of binding to the target protein. An additional means of identifying starting points for lead
optimization exploits the breadth of medicinal chemistry experience at SGX and our growing library of partially
elaborated scaffolds which were derived from applying FAST to many different protein targets. As this library
continues to grow, we expect to make increasing use of opportunities derived from scaffolds and compounds that
bind to more than one protein kinase target. In the next part of the FAST process, selected scaffolds are optimized to
drug candidates. This second component is both rapid and efficient because it is guided by atomic resolution
structurat information of the scaffold and subsequently etaborated lead compounds bound to the target protein. This
information, available to the chemistry team in real time, permits rational optimization of potency and other
attributes.

We have invested significant resources in the development and optimization of technology to produce large
numbers of protein variants and to evaluate their ability to produce high quality protein crystals. Customized,
robotic technologies for setup, storage, retrieval and imaging of protein crystallization experiments have been
developed and our current instrumentation supports in excess of 40,000 crystallization experiments per day. We
generate protein structures through our beamline facility, housed at the Advanced Photon Source at the Argonne
National Laboratory, a national synchrotron-radiation facility funded by the U.S. Department of Energy, Office of
Science, and Office of Basic Energy Sciences, located in Argonne, Illinois. This facility produces an extremely
intense, highly focused X-ray beam to generate high-resolution data from approximately 50 crystals per day.
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Our FAST drug discovery platform provides us with the capacity to pursue many different targets to the early
lead stage, through lead optimization, and beyond. Internally, we have selected a portfolio of approximately 20
oncology targets that we believe are clearly implicated in cancers. We believe that FAST could provide a distinct
advantage over conventional methods of iead discovery for these and other targets. Our most advanced programs
developed using FAST are focused on compounds that inhibit BCR-ABL, MET, and JAK2. We are applying FAST
to generate novel and potent lead compounds for well-validated protein and enzyme targets. In addition, through our
high capacity and high resolution protein crystallography technology, FAST is being leveraged to drive our lead
optimization programs. Our goal in each of these programs is to develop small molecule drugs with improved
efficacy and reduced side effect profiles compared to current therapies or development compounds. Our current
goal is to advance our oncology pipeline and file at least on new IND application per year.

Collaborations, Commercial Agreements and Grants

Since our inception, we have entered into multiple revenue-generating collaborations, commercial agreements
and grants based upon FAST and related technologies with pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies, as well as
government and other agencies. We generated aggregate revenues from collaborations, commercial agreements and
grants of approximately $76.7 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004. Our active agreements include:

Collaborations and Grants:

Party Scope Start Date Payments to SGX
Novartis Institutes for Drug discovery, development Mar. 2006  Upfront payment, research
Biomedical Research, Inc. and commercialization funding, milestones and
royalties
Cystic Fibrosis Foundation Drug discovery Jul. 2005 Upfront payment; technology
Therapeutics, Inc. access fees; research funding;
milestones; royalties
National Institutes of Health Protein Structure Initiative Jul. 2005 Research funding
Eli Lilly & Company Structural data on Eli Lilly Apr. 2003 Upfront payment; research
targets and compounds funding; technology access
fees

License and Collaboration Agreement
Novartis Institutes for Biomedical Research, Inc.

In March 2006, we entered into a License and Collaboration Agreement with Novartis Institutes for
Biomedical Research, Inc., (“Novartis™) focused on the development and commercialization of BCR-ABL
inhibitors for the treatment of Chronic Myelogenous Leukemia. Under the agreement, the parties are collaborating
to develop one or more BCR-ABL inhibitors and Novartis will have exclusive worldwide rights to such compounds,
subject to our co-commercialization option in the United States and Canada. We have also granted Novartis rights to
include certain compounds that we do not pursue under the collaboration in Novartis’ screening library and we will
be entitled to receive royalties on sales of products based on those compounds.

Under the terms of the agreement, we received $25.0 million of upfront payments, including $5.0 million for
the purchase by Novartis Pharma AG of shares of our common stock. We are also entitled to receive research
funding over the first two years of the collaboration of $9.1 million. With payments for achievement of specified
development, regulatory and commercial milestones, including $9.5 million for events up to and including
commencement of the first Phase 1 clinical study, total payments to us could exceed $515 million. We are
responsible for completing preclinical development, submitting an IND and completing the initial Phase I study for
the first lead drug candidate.

Novartis will fund 100% of the development costs of product candidates from the collaboration. The research
and development activities of the parties are overseen by committees with equal representation of the parties, with
Novartis having the right to make the final decision on certain matiers. We are also eligible to receive royalties based
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on net sales. In addition, we retain an option to co-commercialize in the United States and Canada oncology
products developed under the agreement through a sales force trained and funded by Novartis.

The agreement will continue unti} the expiration of all of Novartis’ royalty payment obligations, unless the
agreement is terminated earlier by either party. Novartis and we each have the right to terminate the agreement early
if the other party commits an uncured material breach of its obligations. If Novartis terminates the agreement for
material breach by us, Novartis’ licenses under the agreement will continue subject to certain milestone and royalty
payment obligations. If we terminate the agreement for material breach by Novartis, all rights to compounds
developed under the collaboration will revert to us. Further, Novartis may terminate the agreement without cause if
it reasonably determines that further development of compounds or products from the collaboration is not viable, in
which event all rights to the compounds and products revert to us, In the event of a change in control of our company,
in certain circumstances Novartis may terminate only the joint committees and co-commercialization option, with
all other provisions of the agreement remaining in effect, including Novartis’ licenses and its obligations to make
milestone and royalty payments.

Cystic Fibrosis Foundation Therapeutics, Inc.

In July 2005, we entered into a drug discovery collaboration agreement with Cystic Fibrosis Foundation
Therapeutics, Inc., or CFFT, the drug discovery and development arm of the Cystic Fibrosis Foundation. Under the
collaboration, we employ our proprictary FAST lead generation technology with the objective of generating novel
small molecule therapies that function as “correctors” of the F508 deletion mutation found in the cystic fibrosis
transmembrane conductance regulator, or CFTR. The F508 deletion mutation is the most commonly observed
mutation in patients with cystic fibrosis. Individuals with the mutation fail to transport the CFTR protein to the cell
surface, resulting in impaired function of the lung epithelium, Correctors of the mutant protein are expected to
increase the amount of the mutant protein that is transported to the cell surface, resulting in more rapid clearing of
lung infections and improved lung function. CFFT will be responsible for product development and we will be
eligible for clinical development milestones and royalties on product sales. The research term of this collaboration
agreement continues until July 2008. Our drug discovery agreement with CFFT may be terminated earlier by either
party in the event of a material breach by the other party, subject to prior notice and the opportunity to cure. In
addition, CFFT has the right to terminate the drug discovery agreement at any time upon 60 days notice.

NIH Cooperative Agreement Award

In July 2005, we received a $48.5 million National Institutes of Health Cooperative Agreement Award from the
National Institute of General Medical Sciences, or NIGMS. The award is part of the NIH Protein Structure
Initiative, which aims to facilitate discovery of three dimensional structures of proteins to help reveal their role in
disease and aid in the design of new medicines. The award provides five years of funding for a consortium
administered by us. We anticipate retaining approximately 50% of the funding under the award, with the remainder
being distributed to academic collaborators.

Eli Litly & Company

In April 2003, we entered into a research and technology agreement with Eli Lilly, which was extended in
April 2005. Within this commercial agreement, we apply our target-to-structure technology to key Eli Lilly drug
targets to determine their three-dimensional structures. Qur researchers subsequently generate data on Eli Lilly
compounds that bind to the drug targets, providing input for their lead generation and optimization efforts. In
parallel with the first two years of research under the agreement, we conducted a comprehensive program of
technology transfer involving installation of components of our technology in a high-throughput structural biology
facility for Eli Lilly, which includes modular automation systems and process technology we developed for protein
engineering, crystallization and structure determination.

The research term of this commercial agreement continues until April 2008. The general terms of this
commercial agreement continue until the later of the expiration of the last to expire of the patent rights covering
technology developed under the agreement or April 2018, unless the agreement is earlier terminated. Either party
may terminate the commercial agreement in the event of material breach by the other party, subject to prior notice
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and the opportunity to cure. In addition, Eli Lilly may terminate the agreement if certain of our key employees leave
our employment and significantly curtail participation in the project, or in the event we are acquired by one of the
top 25 pharmaceutical companies ranked by worldwide sales.

In December 2003, we also expanded our research collaboration and technology agreement with Eli Lilly to
provide Eli Lilly with long-term access to our beamline facility at the Advanced Photon Source in Argonne, Illinois,
to support Eli Lilly drug discovery programs. Under the terms of our beamline services agreement with Eli Lilly, we
generate crystal structure data on Eli Lilly drug targets and compounds in exchange for upfront access fees and
maintenance fees paid by Eli Lilly. Eli Lilly also has the option to extend the term of its access to our beamline
facility in the future for additional payments. The term of this beamline agreement continues until January 2012,
unless Eli Lilly exercises its option to extend the term of its access to our beamline facility or the agreement is earlier
terminated. Either party may terminate the agreement in the event of a material breach by the other party, subject to
prior notice and the opportunity to cure. In addition, Eli Lilly may terminate the agreement at any time, subject to
prior notice.

Shire

In July 2004, we licensed exclusive worldwide rights to Troxatyl from Shire BioChem, Inc. (“Shire™),
including an exclusive sublicense under rights Shire has to certain patents and patent applications in the field of the
treatment of cancer from Yale University and the University of Georgia Research Foundation. Under the terms of
the agreement, we made an upfront payment of $3.0 million and a payment of $1.0 million on the one-year
anniversary of the agreement. In August 2006, we announced that we had discontinued our Phase I1/111 clinical trial
of Troxatyl for the third line treatment of acute myelogeous leukemia, or AML, based on a recommendation from
the study’s independent data and safety monitoring board. The data and safety monitoring board found that interim
study response rates were unlikely to provide evidence of a treatment benefit as a third line treatment for patients
with AML. Following a review of our oncology product pipeline and the resources available to us, we have
determined we will not initiate additional Troxaty] clinical studies while, in consultation with Shire, we consider the
future of Troxatyl.

Our Strategy

Qur goal 1s to create a leading biotechnology company that discovers, develops and commercializes novel
cancer drugs. Key elements of our strategy are to:

» Focus on oncology. Despite recent advances in the treatment of cancer, there continue to be areas of
significant unmet medical need. New approaches to cancer treatment such as targeted therapies, to which we
believe our technology is uniquely suited, provide companies such as ours an opportunity to advance our
pipeline through preclinical and clinical development to provide patients with life saving therapies.
Furthermore, we consider drug development for the cancer markets attractive because relatively small
clinical trials of short duration can provide meaningful data on patient outcomes.

* Urilize our FAST drug discovery platform to generate lead candidates. Our FAST drug discovery platform
provides us with the capability to pursue many different targets to the early lead stage and beyond. Internally,
we have identified a portfolio of approximately 20 oncology targets that we believe are clearly implicated in
cancers, We will seek to apply FAST to high-value cancer targets with the objective of building and
advancing a sustainable oncology pipeline.

* Advance development candidates and commercialize product candidates. Qur goal is to progress our
product candidates through preclinical and clinical development, and ultimately to commercialization,
while utilizing strategic parinering as appropriate.

s Continue to access capabilities and generate revenue through strategic partnering. Revenue generation
from strategic partnering will continue to be important to us in the near term by providing funds for
reinvestment in internal drug discovery and development. Our business development activities will involve
strategic partnering of certain of our oncology programs. Oncology partnerships will be sought with
organizations that provide complementary capabilities to allow rapid progression of our product candidates
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to the market. We will remain open to opportunities to apply FAST to targets outside the oncology area,
particularly where there are attractive financial or strategic opportunities.

Intellectual Property

We seek to protect our novel lead compounds, lead scaffolds, drug discovery programs and proprictary
technologies by filing appropriate patent applications. We have approximately 100 U.5. and foreign pending patent
applications covering compositions of matter, drug discovery methods and assays, protein structures and clements
of our high-throughput structure determination platform. We intend to continue to file patent applications on lead
series and drug discovery methods, including FAST and assays to support our drug discovery platform. We currently
have two issued U.S. patents directed to aspects of our high-throughput structure determination platform.

In addition, we have an exclusive license to a number of issued U.S. and foreign patents, and pending U.S. and
foreign applications, covering composition of matter, method of use and treatment, formulation and process related
to Troxatyl.

There can be no assurarice that any of our patent applications will issue in any jurisdiction. Moreover, we
cannot predict the breadth of claims that may be allowed or the actual enforceable scope of our patents. In the
United States, we may lose our patent rights if we were not the first to invent the subject matter covered by cach of
our issued patents or pending patent applications. We cannot be certain that our patents will be found valid and
enforceable, or that we will not be found to infringe issued patent claims of any third party or that third parties will
be found to infringe any of our issued patent claims.

Although we have taken steps to protect our trade secrets and unpatented know-how, including entering into
confidentiality agreements with third parties, and confidential information and inventions agreements with
employees, consultants and advisors, third parties may still obtain this information or we may be unable to
protect our rights. Enforcing a claim that a third party illegally obtained and is using our trade secrets or unpatented
know-how is expensive and time consuming, and the outcome is unpredictable. In addition, courts outside the
United States may be less willing to protect trade secret information. Moreover, our competitors may independently
develop equivalent knowledge, methods and know-how, and we would not be able to prevent their use.

Third Party Intellectual Property

Numerous U.S. and foreign issued patents and pending patent applications, which are owned by third parties,
exist in the field of small molecule kinase inhibitors and fields in which we and our collaborators are developing
products. Because patent applications can take many years to issue, there may be currently pending applications,
unknown to us, which may later result in issued patents that our product candidates or proprietary technologies may
infringe.

We may be exposed to, or threatened with, future litigation by third parties having patent or other intellectual.
property rights alleging that our product candidates and/or proprietary technologies infringe their intellectual
property rights. If one of these patents was found to cover our product candidates, proprietary technologies or their
uses, we or our collaborators could be required to pay damages and could be restricted from commercializing our
product candidates or using our proprietary technologies unless we or they obtain a license to the patent. A license
may not be available to us or our collaborators on acceptable terms, if at all. In addition, during litigation, the patent
holder could obtain a preliminary injunction or other equitable right, which could prohibit us from making, using or
selling our products, technologies or methods.

There is a substantial amount of litigation involving patent and other intellectual property rights in the
biotechnology and biopharmaceutical industries generally. If a third party claims that we or our collaborators
infringe its intellectual property rights, we may face a number of issues, including but not limited to:

» infringement and other intellectual property claims which, with or without merit, may be expensive and
time-consuming to litigate and may divert our management’s attention from our core business;
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+ substantial damages for infringement, including treble damages and attorneys’ fees, which we may have to
pay if a court decides that the product or proprietary technology at issue infringes on or violates the third
party’s rights;

* a court prohibiting us from selling or licensing the product or using the proprietary technology unless the
third party licenses its technology to us, which it is not required to do;

+ if a license is available from the third party, we may have to pay substantial royalties, fees and/or grant cross
licenses to our technology; and

» redesigning our products or processes so they do not infringe, which may not be possible or may require
substantial funds and time.

We have not conducted an extensive search of patents issued to third parties, and no assurance can be given that
such patents do not exist, have not been filed, or could not be filed or issued, which contain claims covering our
product candidates, technology or methods. Because of the number of patents issued and patent applications filed in
our technical areas or fields, we believe there is a significant risk that third parties may allege they have patent rights
encompassing our product candidates, technology or methods.

Sales and Marketing

We currently do not have sales and marketing capabilities and we have no plans to develop such capabilities in
the near future. If we do advance any of our product candidates into and through clinical development, we will need
to build a sales and marketing infrastructure. Under our license and collaboration agreement with Novartis, we
retain an option to co-commercialize in the United States and Canada oncelogy products developed under the
agreement through a sales force trained and funded by Novartis. For other programs, we may pursue strategic
collaborations, as appropriate, to commercialize our product candidates on a world-wide basis.

Competition

We operate in highly competitive segments of the biotechnology and biopharmaceutical markets. We face
competition from many different sources, including commercial pharmaceutical and biotechnology enterprises,
academic institutions, government agencies, and private and public research institutions. There ts also intense
competition for fragment-based lead discovery collaborations. Many of our competitors have significantly greater
financial, product development, manufacturing and marketing resources than vs. Large pharmaceutical companies
have extensive experience in clinical testing and obtaining regulatory approval for drugs. These companies also
have significantly greater research capabilities than us. In addition, many universities and private and public
research institutes are active in cancer research, some in direct competition with us. We also compete with these
organizations to recruit scientists and clinical development persconnel. Smatler or early-stage companies may also
prove to be significant competitors, particularly through collaborative arrangements with large and established
companies.

Each cancer indication for which we are developing products has a number of established therapies with which
our candidates will compete. Most major pharmaceutical companies and many biotechnology companies are
agpressively pursuing new cancer development programs, including both therapies with traditional, as well as
novel, mechanisms of action.

We are aware of competitive products and technologies in each of the markets we target. The competitive
products include approved and marketed products as well as products in development.

We expect that any BCR-ABL inhibitor that we may potentially develop for treatment of CML to compete with
Gleevec® (imatinib), marketed by Novartis, Inc., Tasigna® (nilotinib), for which an NDA was recently filed by
Novartis, Inc., Sprycel® (dasatinib), marketed by Bristol Myers Squibb, Inc., MK-0457, under development by
Merck and Co., SKI-606, under development by Wyeth, Inc.,, INNO-406, under development by Innovive
Pharmaceuticals, Inc., homoharringtonine, under development by ChemGenex, Inc., KW-2449_ under development
by Kyowa Pharma, Inc., and X1.228, under development by Exelixis, Inc. Other potential competing products are in
clinical trials and preclinical development.
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We expect that any MET inhibitor that we may potentially develop for treatment of cancers, to compete with
XL3880 and XL184, under development by Exelixis, Inc., ARQI197, under development by Arqule, Inc.,
PF0234 1066, under development by Pfizer, Inc., AMG102, under development by Amgen, Inc., MP470, under
development by SuperGen, Inc., and MGCD265, under development by Methylgene Inc. Other potential competing
products are in clinical trials and preclinical development.

In each of our development programs addressing indications for which there are therapies available, we intend
to complete clinical trials designed to evaluate the potential advantages of our drug candidates as compared to or in
conjunction with the current standard of care. Key differentiating elements affecting the success of all of our drug
candidates are likely to be their efficacy, safety and side-effect profile compared to commonly used therapies.

Significant competitors in the area of fragment-based drug discovery include Astex Therapeutics Limited,
Plexxikon Inc., Evotec AG, Vernalis Plc., Sunesis Pharmaceuticals, Inc., and Active Site, Inc. In addition, many
large pharmaceutical companies are exploring the internal development of fragment-based drug discovery methods.

Government Regulation and Product Approvals

The clinical development, manufacturing and future marketing of our products are subject to regulation by
various authorities in the United States, the E.U., and other countries. The Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, or
FD&C Act, and the Public Health Service Act in the United States, and numerous directives, regulations, local laws,
and guidelines in the E.U. govern the testing, manufacture, safety, efficacy, labeling, storage, record keeping,
approval, advertising and promotion of pharmaceutical products. Product development and approval within these
regulatory frameworks takes a number of years, and involves the expenditure of substantial resources.

Regulatory approval to conduct clinical trials will be required in any territories in which we, or our licensors,
seek to test our development products. Prior to human testing, such approval requires evaluation of product quality
as well as animal data relating to safety and, where relevant, efficacy. In general, new chemical entities are tested in
animals to determine whether the product is reasonably safe for initial human testing. Clinical trials for new
products are typically conducted in three sequential phases that may overlap. Within oncology, Phase 1 trials
typically involve the initial introduction of the pharmaceutical into patients with advanced malignancy and the
emphasis is on testing for safety, dosage tolerance, metabolism, distribution, excretion and clinical pharmacology.
Phase II trials involve the evaluation of effectiveness of the drug for a particular indication in patients with the
disease under study, and to determine the common short-term side effects and risks associated with the drug. Phase 11
trials are typically closely monitored and conducted in a relatively small number of patients, usually involving no
more than fifty to one hundred subjects. Phase III trials are generally expanded, well-controlled clinical trials. They
are performed after preliminary evidence suggesting effectiveness of the drug has been obtained, and are intended to
gather the additional information about safety and effectiveness needed to evaluvate the overall risk-benefit
relattonship of the drug and to provide an adequate basis for product labeling.

In the United States an Investigational New Drug application, or IND, must be submitted to the FDA prior to
the initiation of human studies. Absent an objection from the FDA, the application will become effective 30 days
following receipt by the FDA. Prior regulatory approval to initiate human studies is also required in member states
of the E.U. Additional requirements designed to protect the rights of participating patients also exist. Approval by
an appropriately constituted Institutional Review Boards {IRB) in the United States or an equivalent Ethics
Committee in other territories (EC) is also required prior to the commencement of any clinical trial. The ongoing
conduct of the study is monitored on a periodic basis by the sponsor, institutional committees, as well as regulatory
authorities. The submission of relevant safety data on both an episodic and periodic basis to such parties is required,
as well as well-defined processes to support this activity. Authorities could demand discontinuation of studies at any
time if significant safety issues arise. In all cases, it is our responsibility to ensure that we conduct our business in
accordance with the regulations of each relevant territory.

In order to gain marketing approval, we must submit a dossier to the relevant authority for review, which is
known in the United States as a new drug application (NDA) and in the E.U. as a marketing authorization
application {(MAA). The format of a marketing application has recently been standardized and includes information
specified by each authority, and requires information on the quality of the chemistry, manufacturing and phar-
maceutical aspects of the product, as well as non-clinical and clinical data. Failure to adequately demonstrate the
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quality, safety and efficacy of a therapeutic drug under development would delay or prevent regulatory approval of
the product. There can be no assurance that if clinical trials are completed, either we or our collaborative partners
will submit applications for required authorizations to manufacture or market potential products, including a
marketing authorization application or an NDA, or that any such application will be reviewed and approved by
appropriate regulatory authorities in a timely manner, if at all.

In general, the competent regulatory authority may approve a product if the data is considered to be of a high
quality and supportive of the indication requested. Quality of data is usually determined through regulatory audits of
the various components of the dossier, and may include site visits to clinical trial sites and manufacturing facilities.
In some circumstances, additional data or clinical trials may be requested during the review and may delay
marketing approval and involve unbudgeted costs. Regulatory authorities may find data to be of an unacceptable
quality or not supportive of the indication sought; in these circumstances, regulatory approval to market products
may be denied or deferred.

As a condition of marketing approval, competent regulatory authorities also require post-marketing surveil-
lance to monitor adverse effects, and may also request other additional studies as deemed appropriate. After
approval for the initial indication, further clinical studies are usually necessary to gain approval for additional
indications. The terms of any approval, including labeling content, may be more restrictive than expected and could
affect product marketability.

The FDA has implemented special programs to facilitate the development and to expedite the review of drugs
intended to treat serious and life-threatening conditions so that this type of product can be approved and reach the
market quickly. A drug that demonstrates a meaningful therapeutic advantage over existing treatments or shows the
potential to address an unmet medical need in a serious or life-threatening condition may be considered for
expedited approval. In some cases, where approval is granted on the basis of a surrogate measure of benefit, further
clinical trials (as post-approval commitments) are generally required to further define the safety and efficacy of the
product, If such clinical trials fail to confirm the early benefits seen during the accelerated approval process, the
FDA may withdraw approval. A similar set of mechanisms exist within the E.U.

The United States and the E.U. may grant orphan drug designation to drugs intended to treat a “rare disease or
condition,” which, in the United States, is generally a disease or condition that affects fewer than 200,000
individuals pationwide. In the E.U., orphan drug designation can be granted if:

= The disease affects no more than 50 in 100,000 persons in the E.U.;
» The drug is intended for a life-threatening, seriousty debilitating, or serious and chronic condition;
« The medical plausibility of the proposed orphan indication;

* Without incentives it is unlikely that the drug would generate sufficient return to justify the necessary
investment; and

» No satisfactory method of treatment for the condition exists or, if it does, the new drug will provide a
significant benefit to those affected by the condition.

The designation of an orphan drug status provides the company with a limited period of market exclusivity for
the indication of interest (seven years in the United States, and ten years in the E.U.). Orphan drug designation does
not prevent competitors from developing or marketing different drugs for an orphan indication or the same drug for
a different indication.

Throughout the period of active marketing of any medicinal product, the company retains the responsibility to
periodically and systematically review the safety profile of the marketed product. This requires an active
pharmacovigilance program, and the company is required to report certain adverse events, safety trends, relavent
literature reports and similar data to the competent regulatory authority. Similarly, the advertising and promotion of
pharmaceutical products is also closely regulated and monitored by regulatory agencies. Moreover, quality control
and manufacturing procedures must continue to conform to current Good Manufacturing Practices {(cGMPs) after
approval, and the FDA periodically inspects manufacturing facilities to assess cGMP compliance. Accordingly,
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manufacturers must continue to expend resources on production, quality control and quality assurance to maintain
compliance with GMP and other regulatory requircments.

Failure to comply with applicable regulatory requirements after obtaining regulatory approval can, among
other things, result in suspension of regulatory approval, and possible civil and criminal sanctions. Renewals of the
license in Europe may require additional data, which may result in an approval being withdrawn. In the United
States and the E.U., regulators have the authority to revoke, suspend or withdraw approvals of previously approved
products, to prevent companies and individuals from participating in the drug-approval process, to request recalls,
to seize violative products, to obtain injunctions to close manufacturing plants not operating in conformity with
regulatory requirements and to stop shipments of violative products. In addition, changes in regulation could harm
our financial condition and results of operation.

Employees

As of December 31, 2006, we had 124 employees, including 46 who hold Ph.D. or M.D. degrees. We had
106 employees engaged in research and development, and our remaining employees are management or admin-
istrative staff. None of our employees are subject to a collective bargaining agreement. We believe that we have
good relations with our employees. )

Item 1A, Risk Factors

You should carefully consider the following information about these risks, together with the other information
appearing elsewhere in this report. If any of the following risks actually occur, our business, financial condition,
results of operations and future growth prospects would likely be materially and adversely affected. In these
circumstances, the market price of our common stock could decline, and you may lose all or part of your investment
in our common stock.

Risks Relating to Our Business

Our drug discovery approach and technologies are unproven and may not allow us to establish or
maintain a clinical development pipeline or successful collaborations or result in the discovery or
development of commercially viable products.

The technologies on which we rely are unproven and may not result in the discovery or development of
commercially viable products. There are currently no drugs on the market and no drug candidates in clinical
development that have been discovered or developed using our proprietary technologies. Troxatyl, our only drug
candidate to date that has been in clinical development, was licensed from Shire in 2004, We have no current plans
for continuing the clinical development of Troxatyl. During the past several years, we have transitioned our business
strategy from focusing on our protein structure determination capabilities and developing our technology infra-
structure, to focusing on drug discovery and development activities in the field of oncology. Our most advanced
programs are our BCR-ABL program, which is currently the subject of a license and collaboration agreement wit
Novartis and our MET program. Both of these programs are in the preclinical development stage and there is n2
guarantee that these programs will advance through pre-clinical development into clinical development. The
process of successfully discovering product candidates is expensive, time-consuming and unpredictable, and the
historical tate of failure for drug candidates is extremely high. Research programs to identify product candidates
require a substantial amount of our technical, financial and human resources even if no product candidates are
identified. Data from our current research programs may not support the clinical development of our lead
compounds or other compounds from these programs, and we may not identify any compounds suitable for
recommendation for clinical development. Moreover, there is presently little or no clinical validation for the targers
which are the focus of the programs in our oncology pipeline such as MET or JAK2, other than our BCR-ABL
program, and there is no guarantee that we will be able to successfully advance any compounds we recommend for
clinical development from these programs. We have experienced a delay in selecting a development candidate in
our BCR-ABL program. Following a review by the collaboration’s Joint Research Committee, or JRC, of available
preclinical data on the two most advanced candidates from our lead series, the JRC has decided to discontinue
pursuing one of these candidates further and to collect additional data on the other, before determining whether 0
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move it forward into IND-enabling toxicology studies. In parallel, we have been advancing back-up compounds and
a number of these are undergoing further preclinical testing. As a result, and contingent upon successful completion
of these further preclinical studies, including toxicology studies, our anticipated timeline for the filing of an IND in
this program is now the first half of 2008. However, our back-up compounds may never successfully complete
preclinical studies and we may never successfully file an IND or commence clinical trials of any compounds in our
BCR-ABL program. In addition, compounds we recommend for clinical development may not be effective or safe
for their designated use, which would prevent their advancement into clinical trials and impede our ability to
maintain or expand our clinical development pipeline. If we are unable to identify new product candidates or
advance our lead compounds into clinical development, we may not be able to establish or maintain a clinical
development pipeline or generate product revenue. There is no guarantee that we will be able to successfully
advance any product candidates in our preclinical programs into clinical trials or successfully develop any product
candidate we advance into clinical trials for commercial sale. Although it has been our goal to file one IND per year,
to date, we have not filed an IND for any internally developed preduct candidate. We may not ever successfully file
an IND or commence clinical trials of an internally developed compound.

The results of early preclinical studies are not necessarily predictive of the results of future preclinical
studies, and there is no guarantee that any of our drug candidates in preclinical development will
progress through to clinical development.

Positive results from early preclinical studies on drug candidates should not be relied upon as evidence that the
results of further preclinical studies will be successful or that the drug candidate will progress into clinical studies.
Drug discovery is inherently unpredictable, and the historical rate of failure for drug candidates in preclinical testing
is extremely high. Drug candidates that have shown promising results in studies in rodents can have negative results
when evaluated further in higher species, such as our experience with one of the lead candidates in our BCR-ABL
program. If negative preclinical results are seen in more than one compound from a particular chemical series, there
may be an increased likelihood that additional compounds from that series will demonstrate the same or similar
negative results. Companies frequently suffer setbacks in preclinical studies such as our experience with the lead
candidates in our BCR-ABL program. There is no guarantee that any of our drug candidates, including those in our
BCR-ABL program, will progress through preclinical development into clinical development.

Because the results of preclinical studies are not necessarily predictive of future results, any product
candidate we advance into clinical trials may not have favorable results or receive regulatory approval.

Even if any of our product candidates advance through pre-clinical development, positive results from
preclinical studies should not be relied upon as evidence that clinical trials will succeed. We will be required to
demonstrate through clinical trials that our product candidates are safe and effective for use in a diverse population
before we can seck regulatory approvals for their commercial sale. Success in preclinical testing does not mean that
clinical trials will be successful because product candidates in clinical trials may fail to demonstrate sufficient
safety and efficacy despite having progressed through pre-clinical testing. Companies frequently suffer significant
setbacks in clinical trials, even after earlier clinical trials have shown promising results, such as our experience with
the pivotal Phase II/III clinical trial of Troxatyl for the third-line treatment of AML. There is typically an extremely
high rate of attrition from the failure of drug candidates proceeding through ctinical trials.

If any product candidate fails to demonstrate sufficient safety and efficacy in any clinical trial we are able to
undertake, we would experience potentially significant delays in, or be required to abandon, development of that product
candidate which may cause our stock price to decline further and may materially and adversely affect our business.

Delays in the commencement or completion of clinical testing could result in increased costs to us and
delay our ability to generate significant revenues.

Delays in the commencement or completion of clinical testing could significantly impact our product
development costs. We do not know whether any clinical trials that we may plan in the future will begin on
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time or be completed on schedule, if at all. The commencement of clinical trials can be delayed for a variety of
reasons, including delays in:

» identifying and selecting a suitable development candidate.

« obtaining any required approvals from our collaborators, such as Novartis for any BCR-ABL product
candidates that may be selected under our license and collaboration agreement with Novartis;

» obtaining regulatory approval to commence a clinical trial;

» reaching agreement on acceptable terms with prospective contract research organizations and trial sites;
« manufacturing sufficient quantities of a product candidate;

+ obtaining institutional review board approval to conduct a clinical trial at a prospective site; and

+ identifying, recruiting and enrolling patients to participate in a clinical trial.

In addition, once a clinical trial has begun, patient recruitment and enrollment may be slower than we
anticipate. For instance, for any BCR-ABL product candidates that may be selected for clinical development, we
may have difficulty in recruiting a sufficient number of patients in an acceptable timeline due to the competing
product candidates in clinical development and the refatively small number of patients available in the initial
indication which we would expect to target. Further, as was the case with our pivotal Phase I/11I clinical trial for the
third-line treatment of AML that was terminated in August of 2006, a clinical trial may be suspended or terminated
by us, our data and safety monitoring board, our collaborators, the FDA or other regulatory authorities due to a
number of factors, including:

» failure to conduct the clinical trial in accordance with regulatory requirements or our clinical protocols;

« inspection of the clinical trial operations or trial site by the FDA or other regulatory authorities resulting in
the imposition of a clinical held;

« unforeseen safety issues or insufficient efficacy; or
+ lack of adequate funding to continue the clinical trial.

If we experience delays in the completion of, or termination of, any clinical trial of a BCR-ABL product
candidate that may be selected under our license and collaboration agreement with Novartis or any other product
candidate we advance into clinical trials, the commercial prospects for product candidates we may develop will be
harmed, and our ability to generate product revenues from any product candidate we may develop will be delayed.
In addition, many of the factors that cause, or lead to, a delay in the commencement or completion of clinical trials
may also ultimately lead to the denial of regulatory approval of a product candidate. Even if we are able to
ultimately commercialize product candidates, other therapies for the same indications may have been introduced to
the market during the period we have been delayed and such therapies may have established a competitive
advantage over our products.

We currently depend on one collaboration partner, Novartis, for a portion of our revenues and for the
future development and potential commercialization of one of our significant research programs. If our
license and collaboration agreement with Novartis terminates, our business and, in particular, our
BCR-ABL program, will be seriously harmed.

In March 2006, we entered into a license and collaboration agreement with Novartis to develop anc
commercialize BCR-ABL inhibitors for the treatment of CML. In connection with the license and collaboratior.
agreement, Novartis paid us a non-refundable, non-creditable license fee of $20.0 million. Novartis Pharma AG alsc
purchased $5.0 million of our common stock. Depending upon the success of our collaboration, we may derive
substantial portion of our near-term revenues from Novartis. After the end of the research term under the license and
collaboration agreement, Novartis may terminate the license and collaboration agreement upon 60 days written
notice if it determines that further development is not viable for competitive, safety, or efficacy reasons. If the
license and collaboration agreement is terminated in whole or in part and we are unable to enter into simila:
arrangements with other collaborators, our business would be materially and adversely affected.
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The success of our BCR-ABL inhibitor program depends heavily on our collaboration with Novartis,
which was established only recently, If Novartis is unwilling to further develop or commercialize
development candidates we may identify under the collaboration, or experiences significant delays in
doing so, our business may be harmed.

As Novartis is responsible for the clinical development of product candidates identified under the collaboration
after the first Phase 1 clinical trial, the future success of our BCR-ABL program will depend in large part on our
ability to maintain our relationship with Novartis with respect to product candidates licensed to Novartis under the
collaboration agreement, To date, the nomination of a development candidate has taken longer than anticipated and
we may experience further delays in the collaboration’s progress. It is possible that we and Novartis may never
select a development candidate and commence clinical trials, We do not have a significant history of working
together with Novartis and cannot predict the progress and success of the collaboration. While Novartis is subject to
certain diligence obligations under the collaboration agreement, we cannot guarantee that Novartis will not reduce
or curtail its efforts to develop product candidates we may identify under the collaboration, because of changes in its
research and development budget, its internal development priorities, the success or failure of its other product
candidates or other factors affecting its business or operations. For example, Novartis markets Gleevec® (imatinib
mesylate) and has other drug candidates under development that could compete with any BCR-ABL inhibitor that
we may develop under our collaboration with Novartis. It is possible that Novartis may devote greater resources to
its other competing programs, or may not pursue as aggressively our BCR-ABL program or market as aggressively
any BCR-ABL product that may result from our collaboration.

Any product candidates we advance into clinical trials are subject to extensive regulation, which can be
costly and fime consuming, cause unanticipated delays or prevent the receipt of the required approvals to
commercialize our product candidates.

The clinical development, manufacturing, labeling, storage, record-keeping, advertising, promotion, export,
marketing and distribution of any other product candidates we advance into clinical trials are subject to extensive
regulation by the FDA in the United States and by comparable governmental authorities in foreign markets. In the
United States, neither we nor our collaborators are permitted to market our product candidates until we or our
collaborators receive approval of an NDA from the FDA. The process of obtaining NDA approval is expensive,
often takes many years, and can vary substantially based upon the type, complexity and novelty of the products
involved. Approval policies or regulations may change. In addition, as a company, we have not previously filed an
NDA with the FDA. This lack of experience may impede our ability to obtain FDA approval in a timety manner, if at
all, for our product candidates for which development and commercialization is our responsibility. Despite the time
and expense invested, regulatory approval is never guaranteed. The FDA or any of the applicable European,
Canadian or other regulatory bodies can delay, limit or deny approval of a product candidate for many reasons,
including:

* a product candidate may not be safe and effective;

« regulatory agencies may not find the data from preclinical testing and clinical trials to be sufficient;
* regulatory agencies may not approve of our third party manufacturers’ processes or facilities; or

* regulatory agencies may change their approval policies or adopt new regulations.

In addition, while we may seek to take advantage of various regulatory processes intended to accelerate drug
development and approval for any product candidates that may be selected for clinical development from our BCR-
ABL program, there is no guarantee that the FDA will review or accept an NDA under the accelerated approval
regulations, based on our clinical trial design, the results of any clinical trials we may conduct or other factors.

Also, recent events implicating questions about the safety of marketed drugs, including those pertaining to the
lack of adequate labeling, may result in increased cautiousness by the FDA in reviewing new drugs based on safety,
efficacy or other regulatory considerations and may result in significant delays in obtaining regulatory approvals.
Any delay in obtaining, or inability to obtain, applicable regulatory approvals would prevent us from commer-
cializing our product candidates.
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Any product candidate we advance into clinical trials may cause undesirable side effects that could delay
or prevent its regulatory approval or commercialization.

Undesirable side effects caused by any product candidate we advance into clinical trials could interrupt, delay
or halt clinical trials and could result in the denial of regulatory approvat by the FDA or other regulatory authorities
for any or all targeted indications. This, in turn, could prevent us from commercializing product candidates we
advance into clinical trials and generating revenues from its sale. In addition, if any product candidate receives
marketing approval and we or others later identify undesirable side effects caused by the product:

+ regulatory authorities may withdraw their approval of the product;

* we may be required to change the way the product is administered, conduct additional clinical trials or
change the labeling of the product; or

= our reputation may suffer.

Any one or a combination of these events could prevent us from achieving or maintaining market acceptance of
the affected product or could substantially increase the costs and expenses of commercializing the product, which in
turn could delay or prevent us from generating significant revenues from the sale of the product.

We rely on third parties to conduct our clinical trials. If these third parties do not successfully carry out
their contractual duties or meet expected deadlines, we may not be able to obtain regulatory approval for
or commercialize our product candidates.

We intend to rely on third parties, such as contract research organizations, medical institutions, clinica.
investigators and contract laboratories, to conduct all or a portion of any future clinical trials. We may not be able to
control the amount and timing of resources that third parties devote to any clinical trials we may commence or the
quality or timeliness of the services performed by such third parties. In any future clinical trials, in the event that we
are unable to maintain our relationship with any clinical trial sites, or elect to terminate the participation of any
clinical trial sites, we may experience the loss of follow-up information on patients enrolled in such clinical trial
unless we are able to transfer the care of those patients to another qualified clinical trial site. In addition, principal
investigators for our clinical trials may serve as scientific advisors or consultants to us from time to time and receive
cash or equity compensation in connection with such services. If these relationships and any related compensation
result in perceived or actual conflicts of interest, the integrity of the data generated at the applicable clinical trial sit2
may be jeopardized. If these third parties do not successfully carry out their contractual duties or obligations or meet
expected deadlines in connection with any future clinical trials, or if the quality or accuracy of the clinical data is
compromised due to the failure to adhere to clinical protocols or for other reasons, our clinical trials may be
extended, delayed or terminated, our reputation in the industry and in the investment community may be
significantly damaged and we may not be able to obtain regulatory approval for or successfully commercialize
our product candidates.

Even if any product candidate we advance into clinical trials receives regulatory approval, our product
candidates may still face future development and regulatory difficulties.

If any product candidate we advance into clinical trials receives U.S. regulatory approval, the FDA may still
impose significant restrictions on the indicated uses or marketing of the product candidate or impose ongoing
requirements for potentially costly post-approval studies. In addition, regulatory agencies subject a product, its
manufacturer and the manufacturer's facilities to continual review and periodic inspections. If a regulatory agency
discovers previously unknown problems with a product, such as adverse events of unanticipated severity or
frequency, or problems with the facility where the product is manufactured, a regulatory agency may impose
restrictions on that product, our collaberators or us, including requiring withdrawal of the product from the market.
Our product candidates will also be subject to ongoing FDA requirements for the labeling, packaging, storage,
advertising, promotion, record-keeping and submission of safety and other post-market information on the drug. If
our product candidates fail to comply with applicable regulatory requirements, a regulatory agency may:

 issue warning letters;

* impose civil or criminal penalties;
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« withdraw regulatory approval;
* suspend any ongoing clinical trials;

+ refuse to approve pending applications or supplements to approved applications filed by us or our
collaborators;

* impose restrictions on operations, including costly new manufacturing requirements; or
* seize or detain products or require a product recall.

Moreover, in order to market any products outside of the United States, we and our collaborators must establish
and comply with numerous and varying regulatory requirements of other countries regarding safety and efficacy.
Approval procedures vary among countries and can involve additional product testing and additional administrative
review periads. The time required to obtain approval in other countries might differ from that required to obtain
FDA approval. The regulatory approval process in other countries may include all of the risks described above
regarding FDA approval in the United States. Regulatory approval in one country does not ensure regulatory
approval in another, but a failure or delay in obtaining regulatory approval in one country may negatively impact the
regulatory process in others, Failure to obtain regulatory approval in other countries or any delay or setback in
obtaining such approval could have the same adverse effects detailed above regarding FDA approval in the United
States. As described above, such effects include the risk that our product candidates may not be approved for all
indications requested, which could limit the uses of our product candidates and adversely impact potential royalties
and product sales, and that such approval may be subject to limitations on the indicated uses for which the product
may be marketed or require costly, post-marketing follow-up studies. If we or our collaborators fail to comply with
applicable domestic or foreign regulatory requirements, we and our collaborators may be subject to fines,
suspension or withdrawal of regulatory approvals, product recalls, seizure of products, operating restrictions
and criminal prosecution.

We are dependent on our collaborations, and events involving these collaborations or any future
collaborations could prevent us from developing or commercializing product candidates.

The success of our current business strategy and our near and long-term viability will depend in part on our
ability to successfully establish new strategic collaborations. Since we do not currently possess the resources
necessary to independently develop and commercialize all of the product candidates that may be discovered through
our drug discovery platform, we may need to enter into additional coliaborative agreements to assist in the
development and commercialization of some of these product candidates or in certain markets for a particular
product candidate. Establishing strategic coltaborations is difficult and time-consuming. Potential collaborators
may reject collaborations based upon their assessment of our financial, regulatory or intellectual property position.
And our discussions with potential collaborators may not lead to the establishment of new collaborations on
acceptable terms. In addition, if as a result of our financial condition or other factors we enter into a strategic
collaboration while a drug candidate program is in early preclinical development, we may not generate as much
near- or longer-term revenue from such program as we could have generated if we had the resources to further
independently develop such program.

We have entered into drug discovery collaborations, such as those with Novartis and the Cystic Fibrosis
Foundation. In each case, our collaborators have agreed to finance the clinical trials for product candidates resulting
from these collaborations and, if they are approved, manufacture and market them. Accordingly, we are dependent
on our collaborators to gain regulatory approval of, and to commercialize, product candidates resulting from most of
our collaborations.

We have limited control over the amount and timing of resources that our current collaborators or any future
collaborators (including collaborators resulting from a change of control) devote to our programs or potential
products. In some instances, our collaborators, such as Novartis, may have competing internal programs or
programs with other parties, and such collaborators may devote greater resources to their internal or other programs
than to our collaboration and any product candidates developed under our collaboration. Our collaborators may
prioritize other drug development opportunities that they believe may have a higher likelihood of obtaining
regulatory approval or may potentially generate a greater return on investment. These collaborators may breach or
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terminate their agreements with us or otherwise fail to conduct their collaborative activities successfully and in a
timely manner. Further, our collaborators may not develop products that arise out of our collaborative arrangements
or devote sufficient resources to the development, manufacture, marketing or sale of these products. Moreover, in
the event of termination of a collaboration agreement, termination negotiations may result in less favorable terms
than we would otherwise choose.

We and our present and future collaborators may fail to develop or effectively commercialize products covered
by our present and future collaborations if:

* we do not achieve our objectives under our collaboration agreements;

e we or our collaborators are unable to obtain patent protection for the product candidates or proprietary
technologies we discover in our collaborations;

 we are unable to manage multiple simultaneous product discovery and development collaborations;

* our potential collaborators are less willing to expend their resources on our programs due to their focus on
other programs or as a result of general market conditions;

* our collaborators become competitors of ours or enter into agreements with our competitors;

= we or our collaborators encounter regulatory hurdles that prevent the further development or commercial-
ization of our product candidates; or

= we develop products and processes or enter into additional collaborations that conflict with the business
objectives of our other collaborators.

If we or our collaborators are unable to develop or commercialize products as a result of the occurrence of any
one or a combination of these events, we will be prevented from developing and commercializing product
candidates.

Conflicts may arise between us and our collaborators that could delay or prevent the development or
commercialization of our product candidates.

Conflicts may arise between our collaborators and us, such as conflicts concerning which compounds, if any,
to select for pre-clinical or clinical development, the interpretation of clinical data, the achievement of milestones,
the interpretation of financial provisions or the ownership of intellectual property developed during the collab-
oration. If any conflicts arise with existing or future collaborators, they may act in their self-interest, which may be
adverse to our best interests. Any such disagreement between us and a collaborator could result in one or more of the
following, each of which could delay or prevent the development or commercialization of our product candidates,
and in turn prevent us from generating sufficient revenues to achieve or maintain profitability:

« disagreements regarding the payment of research funding, milestone payments, royalties or other payments
we believe are due to us under our collaboration agreements or from us under our licensing agreements;

» uncertainty regarding ownership of intellectual property rights arising from our collaborative activities,
which could prevent us from entering into additional collaborations;

« actions taken by a collaborator inside or outside a collaboration which could negatively impact our rights
under or benefits from such collaboration;

» unwillingness on the part of a collaborator to keep us informed regarding the progress of its development and
commercialization activities or to permit public disclosure of the results of those activities; or

* slowing or cessation of a collaborator’s development or commercialization efforts with respect to our
product candidates.
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If we fail to establish new colluborations and other commercial agreements, we may have to reduce or
limit our internal drug discovery and development efforts and our business may be adversely affected.

Revenue generation utilizing compounds identified by us from the application of our technologies, such as the
development candidate identified in our MET program, and our FAST drug discovery plaiform and related
technologies, is important to us to provide us with funds for reinvestment in our internal drug discovery and
development programs. If we fail to establish additional collaborations, commercial agreements or out-licensing
arrangements on acceptable terms, we may not generate sufficient revenue to support our internal discovery and
development efforts. In addition, since our existing collaborations and commercial agreements are generally not
long-term contracts, we cannot be sure we will be able to continue to derive comparable revenues from these or
other collaborations or commercial agreements in the future. Even if we successfully establish collaborations, these
relationships may never result in the successful development or commercialization of any product candidates or the
generation of sales or royalty revenue. Under our commercial arrangements with other pharmaceutical and
biotechnology companies, such as under all of our beamiine services agreements, we are providing specific services
for fees without any interest in future product sales or profits. While we believe these commercial arrangements
help to offset the expenses associated with our drug discovery efforts, we may under some circumstances find it
necessary to divert valuable resources from our own discovery efforts in order to fulfill our contractual obligations.

Our drug discovery efforts are dependent on continued access to and use of our beamline facility, which
is subject to various governmental regulations and policies and a user agreement with the University of
Chicago and the U.S. Department of Energy. If we are unable to continue the use of our beamline
Jacility, we may be required to delay, reduce the scope of or abandon some of our drug discovery efforts,
and may fail to perform under our collaborations, commercial agreements and grants, which would result
in a material reduction in our current primary source of revenue.

We generate protein structures through our beamline facility, housed at the Advanced Photon Source at the
Argonne National Laboratory, a national synchrotron-radiation facility funded by the U.S. Department of Energy,
Office of Science, and Office of Basic Energy Sciences, located in Argonne, Illinois. Accordingly, our access 10 and
use of the facility is subject to various government regulations and policies. In addition, our access to the beamline
facility is subject to a user agreement with the University of Chicago and the U.S. Department of Energy with an
initial five year term expiring in January 1, 2009. Although the term of our user agreement automatically renews for
successive one-year periods, the University of Chicago may terminate the agreement and our access to the beamline
facility by providing 60 days’ notice prior to the beginning of each renewal period. In addition, the University of
Chicago may terminate the agreement for our breach, subject to our ability to cure the breach within 30 days. In the
event our access to or use of the facility is restricted or terminated, we would be forced to seek access to alternate
bearnline facilities. There are currently only three alternate beamline facilities in the U.S. and two outside the U.S.,
which are comparable to ours. To obtain equivalent access at a single alternate beamline facility would likely
require us building out a new beamline at such facility which could take over two years and would involve
significant expense. However, we cannot be certain that we would be able to obtain equivalent access to such a
facility on acceptable terms or at all. In the interim period, we would have to obtain beamline access at a
combination of facilities, and there is no guarantee that we would be able to obtain sufficient access time on
acceptable terms or at all, If alternate beamline facilities are not available, we may be required to delay, reduce the
scope of or abandon some of our early drug discovery efforts. We may also be deemed to be in breach of certain of
our commercial agreements. Even if alternate beamline facilities are available, we cannot be certain that the quality
of or access to the alternate facilities will be adequate and comparable to those of our current facility. Failure to
maintain adequate access to and use of beamline facilities may materially adversely affect our ability to pursue our
own discovery efforts and perform under our collaborations, commercial agreements and grants, which are our
current primary source of revenue.

If our competitors develop drug discovery technologies that are more advanced than ours, our ability to
generate revenue from collaborations, commercial arrangements or grants may be reduced or eliminated.

The biotechnology and biopharmaceutical industries are characterized by rapidly advancing technologies,
intense competition and a strong emphasis on proprietary products. We face competition from many different
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sources, including commercial pharmaceutical and biotechnology enterprises, academnic institutions, government
agencies, and private and public research institutions. There is also intense competition for fragment-based lead
discovery collaborations. In addition, we understand that many large pharmaceutical companies are exploring the
internal development of fragment-based drug discovery methods. Additionally, due to the high demand for
treatments for CML and other oncology therapeutic areas, research is intense and new technologies to enhance
the rapid discovery and development of potential treatments are being sought out and developed by our competitors.
If our competitors develop drug discovery technologies that are more advanced or more cost efficient or effective
than ours, our revenue from collaborations, commercial arrangements and grants may be substantially reduced or
eliminated.

If our competitors develop treatments for CML or any other therapeutic area that are approved more
quickly, marketed more effectively or demonstrated to be more effective than our current or future
product candidates, our ability to generate product revenue will be reduced or eliminated.

Most cancer indications for which we are developing products have a number of established therapies with
which our candidates will compete. Most major pharmaceutical companies and many biotechnology companies are
aggressively pursuing new cancer development programs, including both therapies with traditional as well as novel
mechanisms of action.

We are aware of competitive products in each of the markets we target. These competitive products include
approved and marketed products as well as products in development. We expect that any BCR-ABL inhibitor that
we may potentially develop for treatment of CML 1o compete with Gleevec® (imatinib), marketed by Novartis, Inc.,
Tasigna® (nilotinib), for which an NDA was recently filed by Novartis, Inc., Sprycel® (dasatinib), marketed by
Bristol Myers Squibb, Inc., MK-0457, under development by Merck and Co., SKI-606, under development by
Wyeth, Inc., INNO-406, under development by Innovive Pharmaceuticals, Inc., homoharringtonine, under devel-
opment by ChemGenex, Inc., KW-2449, under development by Kyowa Pharma, Inc., and XL228, under devel-
opment by Exelixis, Inc. Other potential competing products are in clinical trials and preclinical development.

We expect that any MET inhibitor that we may potentially develop for treatment of cancers, to compete with
XLB8B0 and X184, under development by Exelixis, Inc., ARQ197, under development by Arqule, Inc.,
PF0234 1066, under development by Pfizer, Inc., AMG102, under development by Amgen, Inc., MP470, under
development by SuperGen, Inc., and MGCD?265, under development by Methylgene Inc. Other potential competing
products are in clinical trials and preclinical development.

Significant competitors in the area of fragment-based drug discovery include Astex Therapeutics Limited,
Plexxikon Inc., Evotec AG, Vernalis Plc., Sunesis Pharmaceuticais, Inc., and Active Site, Inc. In addition, many
large pharmaceutical companies are exploring the internal development of fragment-based drug discovery methods.

Many of our competitors have significantly greater financial, product development, manufacturing and
marketing resources than us. Large pharmaceutical companies have extensive experience in clinical testing and
obtaining regulatory approval for drugs, These companies also have significantly greater research capabilities than
us. In addition, many universities and private and public research institutes are active in cancer research, some in
direct competition with us. Smaller or early-stage companies may also prove to be significant competitors,
particularly through collaborative arrangements with large and established companies.

Our competitors may succeed in developing products for the treatment of CML or other diseases in oncology
therapeutic areas in which our drug discovery programs are focused that are more effective, better tolerated or less
costly than any which we may offer or develop. Our competitors may succeed in obtaining approvals from the FDA
and foreign regulatory authorities for their product candidates sooner than we do for ours. We will also face
competition from these third parties in recruiting and retaining qualified scientific and management personnel,
establishing clinical trial sites and patient registration for clinical trials, and in acquiring and in-licensing
technologies and products complementary to our programs or advantageous 1o our business,
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We have limited experience in identifying, acquiring or in-licensing, and integrating third parties’
products, businesses and technologies inte our current infrastructure. If we determine that future
acquisition, in-licensing or other strategic opportunities are desirable and do not successfully execute on
and integrate such targets, we may incur costs and disruptions to our business.

An important part of our business strategy is to continue to develop a broad pipeline of product candidates.
These efforts include potential licensing and acquisition transactions. For example, our product candidate, Troxatyl,
was initially developed by Shire and licensed to us in July 2004. Although we are not currently a party 1o any other
agreements or commitments other than our agreement with Shire, we may, particularly given the negative outcome
of the Phase II/I11 clinical trial for Troxatyl, seek to expand our product pipeline and technologies, at the appropriate
time and as resources allow, by acquiring or in-licensing products, or combining with businesses that we believe are
a strategic fit with our business and complement our existing internal drug development efforts and product
candidates, research programs and technologies. Future transactions, however, may entail numerous operational
and financial risks including:

« exposure to vnknown liabilities;

» disruption of our business and diversion of our management’s time and attention to the development of
acquired products or technologies;

» incurrence of substantial debt or dilutive issuances of securities to pay for acquisitions;
» dilution to existing stockholders in the event of an acquisition by another entity;

» higher than expected acquisition and integration costs;

* increased amortization expenses;

» difficulties in and costs of combining the operations and personnel of any businesses with our operations and
personnel;

+» impairment of relationships with key suppliers or customers of any acquired businesses due to changes in
management and ownership; and

* inability to retain key employees.

Finally, we may devote resources to potential in-licensing opportunities or strategic transactions that are never
completed or fail to realize the anticipated benefits of such efforts.

Because we exclusively licensed our product candidate, Troxatyl, from Shire and our rights are subject to
certain licenses to Shire from third parties, any dispute with Shire or between Shire and any of these
third parties may adversely affect our business.

In late July 2004, we licensed exclusive worldwide rights to our product candidate, Troxatyl, from Shire. We
have not yet agreed with Shire, the future plans, if any, for Troxatyl. If there is any dispute between us and Shire
regarding our rights or obligations under the license agreement, including diligence obligations, the achievement of
milestones or interpretation of financial or other provisions, we risk litigation and our business may be adversely
affected. In addition, our exclusive license to Troxatyl is subject to the terms and conditions of a license from Yale
University and the University of Georgia Research Foundation, Inc. to Shire, If Shire breaches the terms or
conditions of any of these underlying licenses to Shire or otherwise is engaged in a dispute with any of these third
party licensors, such breaches by Shire or disputes with Shire could resuit in a loss of, or other material adverse
impact on, our rights under our exclusive license agreement with Shire.

We do nof have internal manufacturing capabilities, and if we fail to develop and maintain supply
relationships with collaborators or other third party manufacturers, we may be unable to develop or
commercialize our products.

All of our manufacturing is outsourced to third parties with oversight by our internal managers. We intend to
continue this practice of outsourcing our manufacturing services to third parties for any future clinical trials we may
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conduct and for commercialization of any other product candidate we advance into clinical trials. Our ability to
develop and commercialize products depends in part on our ability 1o arrange for collaborators or other third parties
to manufacture our products at a competitive cost, in accordance with regulatory requirements and in sufficient
quantities for clinical testing and eventual commercialization.

If we are unable to establish sales and marketing capabilities or enter into agreements with third parties
to market and sell any products we may develop, we may not be able to generate product revenue,

We do not currently have a sales organization for the sales, marketing and distribution of pharmaceutical
products. In order to commercialize any products, we must build our sales, marketing, distribution, managerial and
other non-technical capabilities or make arrangements with third parties to perform these services, In North
America, we currently expect to commercialize any BCR-ABL product candidates that may result from our
collaboration with Novartis, and certain other potential product candidates for other indications that are of strategic
interest to us, and plan to establish internal sales and marketing capabilities for those product candidates. We plan to
seek third party partners for indications and in territories, such as outside North America, which may require more
extensive sales and marketing capabilities. The establishment and development of our own sales force to market any
products we may develop in North America will be expensive and time consuming and could delay any product
launch, and we cannot be certain that we would be able to successfully develop this capacity. If we are unable to
establish our sales and marketing capability or any other nen-technical capabilities necessary to commercialize any
products we may develop, we will need to contract with third parties to market and sell any products we may
develop in North America. If we are unable to establish adequate sales, marketing and distribution capabilities,
whether independently or with third parties, we may not be able to generate product revenue and may not become
profitable.

The commercial success of any product that we may develop depends upon market acceptance among
physicians, patients, health care payors and the medical community.

Even if any product we may develop obtains regulatory approval, our products, if any, may not gain market
acceptance among physicians, patients, health care payors and the medical community. The degree of market
acceptance of any of our approved products will depend on a number of factors, including:

* our ability to provide acceptable evidence of safety and efficacy;

* relative convenience and ease of administration;

* the prevalence and severity of any adverse side effects;

+ availability of alternative treatments;

* pricing and cost effectiveness;

* effectiveness of our or our collaborators’ sales and marketing strategies; and
* our ability to obtain sufficient third party coverage or reimbursement.

If any of our product candidates is approved, but does not achieve an adequate level of acceptance by
physicians, healthcare payors and patients, we may not generate sufficient revenue from these products and we may
not become profitable.

We are subject to uncertainty relating to health care reform measures and reimbursement policies which,
if not favorable to our product candidates, could hinder or prevent our product candidates’ commercial
success.

The continving efforts of the government, insurance companies, managed care organizations and other payors
of health care costs to contain or reduce costs of health care may adversely affect one or more of the following:

+ our ability to set a price we believe is fair for our products;

» our ability to generate revenues and achieve profitability;
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» the future revenues and profitability of our potential customers, suppliers and collaborators; and
» the availability of capital.

In certain foreign markets, the pricing of prescription drugs is subject to government control and reimburse-
ment may in some cases be unavailable. In the United States, given recent federal and state government initiatives
directed at lowering the total cost of health care, Congress and state legislatures will likely continue to focus on
health care reform, the cost of prescription drugs and the reform of the Medicare and Medicaid systems. For
example, the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modemization Act of 2003 provided a new Medicare
prescription drug benefit beginning in 2006 and mandates other reforms. We are not yet able to assess the full
impact of this legislation and it is possible that the new Medicare prescription drug benefit, which will be managed
by private health insurers and other managed care organizations, will result in decreased reimbursement for
prescription drugs, which may further exacerbate industry-wide pressure to reduce prescription drug prices. This
could harm our ability to market our products and generate revenues. It is also possible that other proposals having a
similar effect will be adopted.

Our ability to commercialize successfully any product candidates we advance into clinical trials will depend in
part on the extent to which governmental authorities, private health insurers and other organizations establish
appropriate coverage and reimbursement levels for the cost of our products and related treatments. Third party
payors are increasingly challenging the prices charged for medical products and services. Also, the trend toward
managed health care in the United States, which could significantly influence the purchase of health care services
and products, as well as legislative proposals to reform health care or reduce government insurance programs, may
result in lower prices for our product candidates or exclusion of our product candidates from coverage and
reimbursement programs. The cost containment measures that health care payors and providers are instituting and
the effect of any health care reform could significantly reduce our revenues from the sale of any approved product.

In the event that we determine that we need to increase the size of our organization, we may experience
difficulties in managing growth,

As of December 31, 2006, we had 124 full-time employees. In the future, we may need to expand our
managerial, operational, financial and other resources in order to manage and fund our operations, continue our
research and development and collaborative activities, progress our product candidates through clinical develop-
ment and eventually commercialize any product candidates for which we are able to obtain regulatory approval. It is
possible that our management and scientific personnel, systems and facilities currently in place may not be adequate
to support this future growth. Our need to effectively manage our operations, growth and various projects requires
that we:

* manage our internal research and development efforts effectively while carrying out our contractual
obligations to collaborators and other third-parties;

* continue to improve our operational, financial and management controls, reporting systems and procedures;

» set up marketing, sales, distribution and other commercial operations infrastructure if any of our product
candidates obtain regulatory approval; and

» attract and retain sufficient numbers of talented employees.
We may be unable to successfully implement these tasks on a larger scale and, accordingly, may not achieve
our research, development and commercialization goals.
If we fail to attract and keep key management and scientific personnel, we may be unable to successfully
develop or commercialize our product candidates.

We will need to expand and effectively manage our managerial, operational, financial and other resources in
order to successfully pursue our research, development and commercialization efforts for any future product
candidates.
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Our success depends on our continued ability 1o attract, retain and motivate highly qualified management and
chemisis, biologists, and preclinical and clinical personnel. The loss of the services of any of our senior
management, particularly Michael Grey, our President and Chief Executive Officer, or Stephen Burley, our Chief
Scientific Officer and Senior Vice President, Research, could delay or prevent the clinical development and
potential commercialization of our product candidates. We do not maintain “key man” insurance policies on the
lives of these individuais or the lives of any of our other employees. We employ these individuals on an at-will basis
and their employment can be terminated by us or them at any time, for any reason and with or without notice. We
have scientific and clinical advisors who assist us in formulating our research, development and clinical strategies.
These advisors are not our employees and may have commitments to, or consulting or advisory contracts with, other
entities that may limit their availability to us, In addition, our advisors may have arrangements with other companies
to assist those companies in developing products or technologies that may compete with ours.

We may not be able to attract or retain qualified management and scientific personnel in the future due to the
intense competition for qualified personnel among biotechnology, pharmaceutical and other businesses, partic-
ularly in the San Diego, California area. If we are not able to attract and retain the necessary personnel to accomplish
our business objectives, we may experience constraints that will impede significantly the achievement of our
research and development objectives, our ability to raise additional capital and our ability to implement our business
strategy. In particular, if we lose any members of our senior management team, we may not be able to find suitable
replacements and our business may be harmed as a result,

Risks Relating to our Finances and Capital Requirements

We expect our net operating losses to continue for at least several years, and we are unable to predict the
extent of future losses or when we will become profitable, if ever.

We have incurred substantial net operating losses since our inception. For the years ended December 31, 2006
and 2005, we had a net loss attributable to common stockholders of $28.1 million and $29.9 million, respectively.
As of December 31, 2006, we had an accumulated deficit of approximately $163.7 million. We expect our annual
net operating losses to continue over the next several years as we conduct our research and development activities,
and incur preclinical and clinical development costs. Because of the numerous risks and uncertainties associated
with our research and deveiopment efforts and other factors, we are unable to predict the extent of any future losses
or when we will become profitable, if ever. We will need to commence clinical trials, obtain regulatory approval and
successfully commercialize a product candidate or product candidates before we can generate revenues which
would have the potential to lead to profitability.

We currently lack a significant continuing revenue source and may not become profitable.

Our ability to become profitable depends upon our ability to generate significant continuing revenues. To
obtain significant continuing revenues, we must succeed, either alone or with others, in developing, obtaining
regulatory approval for, and manufacturing and marketing product candidates with significant market potential,
However, we cannot guarantee when, if ever, products resulting from our BCR-ABL, MET or JAK2 programs will
generate product sales. We had revenues from collaborations, commercial agreements and grants totaling
$27.8 million, $21.6 million, and 27.3 million for years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.
Though we anticipate that our collaborations, commercial agreements and grants will continue to be our primary
sources of revenues for the next several years, these revenues alone will not be sufficient to lead to profitability.

Our ability to generate continuing revenues depends on a number of factors, including;
¢ ¢obtaining new collaborations and commercial agreements;

* performing under current and future collaborations, commercial agreements and grants, including achieving
milestones;

* successful completion of clinical trials for any preduct candidate we advance into clinical trials;
+ achievement of regulatory approval for any product candidate we advance into clinical trials; and

« successful sales, manufacturing, distribution and marketing of our future products, if any.
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If we are unable to generate significant continuing revenues, we will not become profitable, and we may be
unable to continue our operations.

We will need substantial additional funding and may be unable to raise capital when needed, which would
force us to delay, reduce or eliminate our research and development programs or commercialization efforts.

We believe that our existing cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments, together with interest
thereon and cash from existing collaborations, commercial agreements and grants, will be sufficient to meet
projected operating requirements through 2008. Consistent with our existing business development strategy, we
anticipate establishing new collaborations and commercial agreements. Any proceeds received in connection with
such new transactions, or milestones achieved under existing or new collaborations or commercial agreements,
would provide additional operating capital. However, if we do not generate additional revenue from collaborations,
commercial agreements and grants at the levels we project, we may require additional funding sooner than we
currently anticipate. Because we do not anticipate that we will generate significant continuing revenues for several
years, if at all, we will need to raise substantial additional capital to finance our operations in the future. Our
additional funding requirements will depend on, and could increase significantly as a result of, many factors,
including the:

» terms and timing of any collaborative, licensing and other arrangements that we may establish, including by
partnering our internal discovery programs, such as MET and JAKZ;

* rate of progress and cost of our preclinical studies and clinical trials, if any, and other research and
development activities;

* scope, prioritization and number of clinical development and research programs we pursue;

+ costs and timing of preparing regulatory submissions and obtaining regulatory approval;

+ costs of establishing or contracting for sales and marketing capabilities;

* costs of manufacturing;

+ extent to which we acquire or in-license new products, technologies or businesses;

» cffect of competing technological and market developments; and

+ costs of filing, prosecuting, defending and enforcing any patent claims and other intellectual property rights.

Until we can generate significant continuing revenues, if ever, we expect to satisfy our future cash needs
through public or private equity offerings, debt financings, strategic transactions, or collaborations, commercial
agreements and grants. We cannot be certain that additional funding will be available on acceptable terms, or at all.
In addition, if our stock price declines for any reason and/or we are unable to obtain additional funding, we may fail
to satisfy the NASDAQ Global Market listing requirements. If we fail to meet the NASDAQ listing requirements
and NASDAQ determines to delist our common stock, the delisting could adversely affect the market liquidity of
our common stock and the market price of our common stock could decrease. If adequate funds are not available, we
may be required to delay, reduce the scope of or eliminate one or more of our research and development programs or
our commercialization efforts.

Raising additional funds by issuing securities or through licensing arrangements may cause dilution to
existing stockholders, restrict our operations or require us to relinquish proprietary rights.

We may raise additional funds through public or private equity offerings, debt financings or licensing
arrangements. To the extent that we raise additional capital by issuing equity securities, our existing stockholders’
ownership will be diluted. Any debt financing we enter into may involve covenants that restrict our operations.
These restrictive covenants may include limitations on additional borrowing, specific restrictions on the use of our
assets as well as prohibitions on our ability to create liens, pay dividends, redeem our stock or make investments. In
addition, if we raise additional funds through licensing arrangements, as we did in our recent collaboration with
Novartis, it may be necessary to relinquish potentially valuable rights to our potential products or proprietary
technologies, or grant licenses on terms that are not favorable to us.
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COur quarterly operating results may fluctuate significantly.

We expect our operating results to be subject to quarterly fluctuations. The revenues we generate, if any, and
our operating results will be affected by numerous factors, including:

» our addition or termination of research programs or funding support;
* variations in the level of expenses related to our product candidates or research programs;

* our execution of collaborative, licensing or other arrangements, and the timing of payments we may make or
receive under these arrangements;

+ any intellectual property infringement lawsuit in which we may become involved; and

*» changes in accounting principles.

Quarterly fluctuations in our operating results may, in turn, cause the price of our stock to fluctuate
substantially. We believe that quarterly comparisons of our financial results are not necessarily meaningful and
should not be relied upon as an indication of our future performance.

We may incur substantial Habilities from any product liability claims if our insurance coverage for those
claims is inadequate.

We face an inherent risk of product liability exposure related to the testing of our product candidates in human
clinical trials, and will face an even greater risk if we sell our product candidates commercially. An individual may
bring a liability claim against us if one of our product candidates causes, or merely appears to have caused, an injury.
If we cannot successfully defend ourselves against the product liability claim, we will incur substantial liabilities.
Regardless of merit or eventual outcome, liability claims may result in any one or a combination of the following:

» decreased demand for our product candidates;

* injury to our reputation;

» withdrawal of clinical trial participants;

+ costs of related litigation;

» substantial monetary awards to patients or other claimants;
¢ loss of revenues; and

= the inability to commercialize our product candidates.

We have product liability insurance that covered our Troxatyl clinical trials. We intend to expand our insurance
coverage to include the sale of commercial products if marketing approval is obtained for any of our product
candidates. However, insurance coverage is increasingly expensive. We may not be able to maintain insurance
coverage at a reasonable cost and we may not be able to obtain insurance coverage that will be adequate to satisfy
any liability that may arise.

We use biological and hazardous materials, and any claims relating to improper handling, storage or
disposal of these materials could be time consuming or costly.

We use hazardous materials, including chemicals, biological agents and radioactive isotopes and compounds,
which could be dangerous to human health and safety or the environment. Qur operations also produce hazardous
waste products. Federal, state and local laws and regulations govern the use, generation, manufacture, storage,
handling and disposal of these materials and wastes. Compliance with applicable environmental laws and
regulations may be expensive, and current or future environmental laws and regulations may impair our drug
development efforts.

In addition, we cannot entirely eliminate the risk of accidental injury or contamination from these materials ot
wastes. If one of our employees was accidentally injured from the use, storage, handling or disposal of these
materials or wastes, the medical costs related to his or her treatment would be covered by our workers’
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compensation insurance policy. However, we do not carry specific biological or hazardous waste insurance
coverage and our property and casualty and general liability insurance policies specifically exclude coverage for
damages and fines arising from biological or hazardous waste exposure or contamination. Accordingly, in the event
of contamination or injury, we could be held liable for damages or penalized with fines in an amount exceeding our
resources, and our clinical trials or regulatory approvals could be suspended.

Risks Relating to our Intellectual Property

Our success depends upon our ability to protect our intellectual property and our proprietary
technologies.

Our commercial success depends on obtaining and maintaining patent protection and trade secret protection
for our product candidates, proprietary technologies and their uses, as well as successfully defending these patents
against third party challenges. There can be no assurance that our patent applications will result in patents being
issued or that issued patents will afford protection against competitors with similar technology, nor can there be any
assurance that the patents issued will not be infringed, designed around, or invalidated by third parties. Even issued
patents may later be found unenforceable, or be modified or revoked in proceedings instituted by third parties before
various patent offices or in courts.

The patent positions of pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies can be highly uncertain and involve
complex legal and factual questions for which important legal principles remain unresolved. Changes in either the
patent laws or in the interpretations of patent laws in the United States and other countries may diminish the value of
our intellectual property. Accordingly, we cannot predict the breadth of claims that may be allowed or enforced in
our patents or in third party patents.

The degree of future protection for our proprietary rights is uncertain. Only limited protection may be available
and may not adequately protect our rights or permit us to gain or keep any competitive advantage. For example:

* we might not have been the first to file patent applications for these inventions;

» we might not have been the first to make the inventions covered by each of our pending patent applications
and issued patents;

+ others may independently develop similar or alternative technologies or duplicate any of our technologies;
» the patents of others may have an adverse effect on our business;
» it is possible that none of our pending patent applications will result in issued patents;

* our issued patents may not encompass commercially viable products, may not provide us with any
competitive advantages, or may be challenged by third parties;

* our issued patents may not be valid or enforceable; or
« we may not develop additional proprietary technologies that are patentable.

Patent applications in the U.S. are maintained in confidence for up to 18 months after their filing. Conse-
quently, we cannot be certain that we were the first to invent, or the first to file, patent applications on our
compounds or drug candidates. We may not have identified all U.S. and foreign patents or published applications
that may affect our business by blocking our ability to commercialize any drugs for which we are able to
successfully develop and obtain regulatory approval.

Proprietary trade secrets and unpatented know-how are also very important to our business. Although we have
taken steps to protect our trade secrets and unpatented know-how, including entering into confidentiality agree-
ments with third parties, and confidential information and inventions agreements with employees, consultants and
advisors, third parties may still obtain this information or we may be unable to protect our rights, Enforcing a claim
that a third party illegally obtained and is using our trade secrets or unpatented know-how is expensive and time
consuming, and the outcome is unpredictable. In addition, courts outside the United States may be less willing to
protect trade secret information. Moreover, our competitors may independently develop equivalent knowledge,
methods and know-how, and we would not be able to prevent their use.
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If we are sued for infringing intellectual property rights of third parties, it will be costly and time
consuming, and an unfavorable outcome in that litigation would have a material adverse effect on our
business.

Our commercial success also depends upon our ability and the ability of our collaborators to develop,
manufacture, market and sell our product candidates and use our proprictary technologies without infringing the
proprietary rights of third parties, Numerous U.S. and foreign issued patents and pending patent applications, which
are owned by third parties, exist in the fields in which we and our collaborators are developing products. Because
patent applications can take many years to issue, there may be currently pending applications which may later result
in tssued patents that our product candidates or proprietary technologies may infringe.

We may be exposed to, or threatened with, future litigation by third parties having patent, trademark or other
intellectual property rights alleging that we are infringing their intellectual property rights. If one of these patents
was found to cover our product candidates, research methods, proprietary technologies or their uses, or one of these
trademarks was found to be infringed, we or our collaborators could be required to pay damages and could be unable
to commercialize our product candidates or use our proprietary technologies unless we or they obtain a license to the
patent or trademark, as applicable. A license may not be available to us or our collaborators on acceptable terms, if
at all. In addition, during litigation, the patent or trademark holder could obtain a preliminary injunction or other
equitable right which could prohibit us from making, using or selling our products, technologies or methods. In
addition, we or our collaborators could be required to designate a different trademark name for our products, which
could result in a delay in selling those products.

There is a substantial amount of litigation involving patent and other intellectual property rights in the
biotechnology and biopharmaceutical industries generally. If a third party claims that we or our collaborators
infringe its intellectual property rights, we may face a number of issues, including, but not limited to:

« infringement and other intellectual property claims which, with or without merit, may be expensive and
time-consuming to litigate and may divert our management’s attention from our core business;

* substantial damages for infringement, including treble damages and attorneys’ fees, which we may have to
pay if a court decides that the product or proprietary technology at issue infringes on or violates the third
party’s rights;

« a court prohibiting us from selling or licensing the product or using the proprietary technology unless the
third party licenses its technology to us, which it is not required to do;

« if a license is available from the third party, we may have to pay substantial royalties, fees and/or grant cross
licenses to our technology; and

« redesigning our products or processes so they do not infringe, which may not be possible or may require
substantial funds and time.

There can be no assurance that third party patents containing claims covering our product candidates,
technology or methods do not exist, have not been filed, or could not be filed or issved. Because of the number of
patents issued and patent applications filed in our areas or fields of interest, particularly in the area of protein kinase
inhibitors, we believe there is a significant risk that third parties may allege they have patent rights encompassing
our product candidates, technology or methods. In addition, we have not conducted an extensive search of third
party trademarks, so no assurance can be given that such third party trademarks do not exist, have not been filed,
could not be filed or issued, or could not exist under common trademark law.

Other product candidates that we may develop, either internally or in collaboration with others, could be
subject to similar risks and unceriainties.
Risks Relating to the Securities Markets and Ownership of our Common Stock
Market volatility may affect our stock price.
Until our initial public offering in February 2006, there was no market for our common stock, and despite our

initial public offering, an active public market for these shares may not develop or be sustained. We have had
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relatively low volume of trading in our stock since our initial public offering and we do not know if the trading
volume of our common stock will increase in the future. In addition, the market price of our common stock may
fluctuate significantly in response to a number of factors, most of which we cannot control, including:

» changes in the preclinical or clinical development status of or clinical trial results for our product candidates;

= announcements of new products or technologies, commercial relationships or collaboration arrangements or
other events by us or our competitors;

« events affecting our collaborations, commercial agreements and grants;

= variations in our quarierly operating results;

= changes in securities analysts’ estimates of our financial performance;

= regulatory developments in the United States and foreign couniries;

= fluctuations in stock market prices and trading volumes of similar companies;

» sales of large blocks of cur common stock, including sales by our executive officers, directors and significant
stockholders;

« additions or departures of key personnel;

» discussion of us or our stock price by the financial and scientific press and in online investor
communities; and

» changes in accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

In addition, class action litigation has often been instituted against companies whose securities have
experienced periods of volatility in market price, such as the decline in our stock price following the announcement
in August 2006 of the termination of our Phase II/ITI clinical trial for Troxatyl. Any such litigation brought against
us could result in substantial costs and a diversion of management’s attention and resources, which could hurt our
business, operating results and financial condition.

Anti-takeaver provisions in our charter documents and under Delaware law could make an acquisition of
us, which may be beneficial to our stockholders, more difficult and may prevent attempts by our
stockholders to replace or remove our current management.

Provisions in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws may delay or prevent an
acquisition of us or a change in our management. These provisions include a classified board of directors, a
prohibition en actions by written consent of our stockholders, and the ability of our board of directors to issue
preferred stock without stockholder approval. In addition, because we are incorperated in Delaware, we are
governed by the provisions of Section 203 of the Delaware Genera! Corporation Law, which, subject to certain
exceptions, prohibits stockholders owning in excess of 15% of our outstanding voting stock from merging or
combining with us. Although we believe these provisions collectively provide for an opportunity to receive higher
bids by requiring potential acquirors to negotiate with our board of directors, they would apply even if the offer may
be considered beneficial by some stockholders. In addition, these provisions may frustrate or prevent any attempts
by our stockholders to replace or remove our current management by making it more difficult for stockholders to
replace members of our board of directors, which is responsible for appointing the members of our management.

We may incur increased costs as a result of changes in laws and regulations relating to corporate
governance matters.

Changes in the laws and regulations affecting public companies, including the provisions of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002 and rules adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission and by the Nasdaq Stock Market,
will result in increased costs to us as we respond to their requirements. These laws and regulations could make it
more difficult or more costly for us to obtain certain types of insurance, including director and officer liability
insurance, and we may be forced to accept reduced policy limits and coverage or incur substantially higher costs to
obtain the same or similar coverage. The impact of these requirements could also make it more difficult for us to
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attract and retain qualified persons to serve on our board of directors, our board committees or as executive officers.
We are presently evaluating and monitoring developments with respect to these laws and regulations and cannot
predict or estimate the amount or timing of additional costs we may incur to respond to their requirements.

If our executive officers, directors and largest stockholders choose to act together, they may be able to
control our operations and act in a manner that advances their best interests and not necessarily those of
other stockholders,

Qur executive officers, directors and holders of 5% or more of our outstanding common stock beneficially own
approximately 63% of our common stock. As a result, these stockholders, acting together, are able to control all
matters requiring approval by our stockholders, including the election of directors and the approval of mergers or
other business combination transactions. The interests of this group of stockholders may not always coincide with
our interests or the interests of other stockholders, and they may act in a manner that advances their best interests
and not necessarily those of other stockholders. These stockholders also may not act together and disputes may arise
among these stockholders with respect 1o matters that require stockholder approval. Any disagreements among our
significant stockholders, including among significant stockholders that are affiliated with members of our Board of
Directors, may also make it more difficult for us to obtain stockholder approval of certain matters and may lead to
distraction of management or have other adverse impact on our operations.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

Not applicable.

Item 2, Properties

We lease approximately 60,568 square feet of laboratory and office space in San Diego, California under two
lease agreements that terminate in December 2007 and a third lease agreement that terminates in September 2008.
We believe that our facilities will adequately meet our present research and development needs.
Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are not currently involved in any materiai legal proceedings. We may be subject to various claims and legal
actions arising in the ordinary course of business from time to time.
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter ended December 31, 2006.

PART 11

Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

Common Stock Market Price

Our common stock commenced trading on the Nasdaq Global Market (formerly the Nasdaq National Marker)
on February 1, 2006 under the symbol “SGXP” Prior to that time, there was no public market for our commeon stock.
The following table sets forth the high and low closing sales prices for cur common stock for the periods indicated,
as reported on the Nasdaq Global Market. Such quotations represent inter-dealer prices without retail markup,
markdown or commission and may not necessarily represent actual transactions.

2006 High  Low
ISt QUATIET . . . ot i i et e e e e e e e e, $9.71  $5.75
Second Quarter . ... .. . e e e e 8.18 4.65
Third QUar e . . o . ittt e s et e e et e e e e e 5.50 1.88
Fourth QUarter . . . ... e e e 3.56 2.50




The closing price for our common stock as reported by the Nasdaq Global Market on March 13, 2007 was
$5.71 per share. As of March 13, 2007, there were approximately 198 stockholders of record of our common stock.

Dividends

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our capital stock. The payment of dividends by us on our
common stock is limited by our debt agreements. We currently intend to retain all of our future earnings, if any, to
finance the growth and development of our business. We do not intend to pay cash dividends on our common stock
for the foreseeable future. Any future determination related to dividend policy will be made at the discretion of our
board of directors.

Use of Proceeds from the Sale of Registered Securities

On January 31, 2006, our registration statement on Form S-1 {(Registration No. 333-128059) was declared
effective for our initial public offering. On February 6, 2006, we sold 4,000,000 shares of our common stock in
connection with the closing of our initia} public offering. On March 6, 2006, the underwriters exercised in part their
over-allotment option and purchased an additional 152,904 shares of our common stock. As of December 31, 2006,
we had used all of the proceeds from our initiai public offering for the clinical development of Troxatyl, further
development of our research programs and initial clinical development stemming from cur intemal programs, and
working capital and general corporate purposes.
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Performance Measurement Comparison(1)

The following graph shows the total stockholder return of an investment of $100 in cash on February 1, 2006 in
(i) the Company’s common stock, (ii) the Nasdaq Composite Index (the “Nasdaq™) and (iii) the AMEX Biotech-
nology Index (the “BTK™). All values assume reinvestment of the full amount of all dividends.

Comparison of Cumulative Total Return on Investment since our Initial Public Offering on February 1, 2006:
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* $100 invested on 2/1/06 in stock or on 1/31/06 in index-including reinvestment of dividends.
Fiscal year ending December 31.

2/1/06 331106 6/30/06 9/30/06 12/31/06
SGX Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 100.00 | 158.67 85.83 43.00 58.33
NASDAQ Composite 100.00 | 101.69 | 94.73 08.18 | 10545
NASDAQ Biotechnology 100.00 | 101.38 | 90.35 53.99 96.66

(1) This section is not “soliciting material,” is not deemed “filed” with the SEC, is not subject to the liabilities of
Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act, and is not to be
incorporated by reference in any filing of the Company under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the
Exchange Act whether made before or after the date hereof and irrespective of any general incorporation
language in any such filing.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

You should read the following selected consolidated financial and operating information for SGX Pharma-
ceuticals, Inc. together with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” and our consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this Annual Report
on Form 10-K.

The consolidated statements of operations data for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, and the
consclidated balance sheet data as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 are derived from the audited consolidated
financial statements included elsewhere in this report. The consolidated statements of operations data for the years
ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the consclidated balance sheet data as of December 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002 are derived from audited consolidated financial statements not included in this report. Historical results for
any prior period are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for any future period.

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(In thousands, except per share data)

Statement of Operations Data:

Revenue:

Collaborations and commercial agreements. ... $ 19906 $14604 $1591 $10,135 § 2986

Grants — subcontractor reimbursements . . . . .. 5,120 5,083 4,976 4,599 —

6 11 £ 2,754 1,949 6,380 3,344 350
Total revenle. . ... ..ot ie e et i e 27,780 21,636 27,297 18,078 3,336
Expenses:

Research and development . . . ............. 46,942 37,881 31,444 28,587 25,573

General and administrative . . . .. ........... 9,588 11,820 6,719 7.353 10,122

In-process technology. . .. ................ — — 4,000 — —
Total operating expenses .. ................. 56,530 49,701 42,163 35,940 35,695
Loss fromoperations . . .. .................. (28,750) (28,065) (i4,866) (17,862) (32,359
Interestincome . ......................... 1,805 284 175 320 622
Interest expense. .. . ........c. i, (1,107) {422) (669) (1,219} (932)
Interest expense associated with debenture . . . ... — {1,188) (3,392) — —
= A T (28,052) (29,391) (18,752) (18,761)  (32,669)
Accretion to redemption value of redeemable

convertible preferred stock . . ........... ... (49) (472) (329) (329) (329)
Net loss attributable to common stockholders ., ... $(28,101) $(29,863) $(19,081) $(19,090) $(32,998)

Basic and diluted net loss attributable to common
stockholders per share . . ................. $ (2.03) 5 (48.32) $ (39.84) § (4492) 3 (7894

Shares used to compute basic and diluted net loss
attributable to common stockholders per
Share . .. o e e e e 13,814 618 479 425 418
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As of December 31,

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
{In thousands)

Balance Sheet Data:
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term

INVESIMENIS .. ..., ..o vvt e vne e $ 33877 $ 17,718 & 11,512 $ 13,635 $ 24,255
Working capital (deficit}. . ............... 17,263 618 (8,634) 1,042 15,656
Total @assets .. ..o v et iin e 48,464 33,112 28,332 35,943 47,721
Long-term debt obligations (including current

POTLION) . . ottt e 7,552 15,733 23,420 13,487 15,789
Redeemable preferred stock . ............. — 46,837 74,850 88,306 87,9717
Accumulated deficit. . ... .. ... .. ... ... (163,729)  (135,628) (105,765) (86,684) (67,594)
Total stockholders’ equity (deficity ... ... ... 13,613 (41,67 (78,782)  (78,044)  (60,237)
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial
statements and related notes included elsewhere in this report. This discussion and other parts of this report
may contain forward-looking statements based upon current expectations that involve risks and uncertainties. Our
actual results and the timing of selected events could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-
looking statements as a result of several factors, including those set forth under “Risk Factors” in Item 1A of Part [
of this report and elsewhere in this report.

Overview

We are a biotechnology company focused on the discovery, development and commercialization of innovative
cancer therapeutics. Our principal areas of focus in drug discovery are on protein and enzyme targets that have been
implicated in cancers, including BCR-ABL, MET, JAK2 and RAS. We are advancing our internal oncology product
pipeline through the application of our proprietary approach to drug discovery that is based upon the use of small
fragments of drug-like molecules, or scaffolds, known as Fragments of Active Structures, or FAST. We have applied
FAST to generate novel, potent and selective small molecule compounds for many proteins, or drug targets that have
been implicated in cancers and other diseases. Our current goal is to advance our oncology pipeline and file at least
one new IND application per year. We intend to continue our strategy of entering into collaborative alliances around
certain of our internal programs in order to generate near-term revenue and offset discovery and development costs,
as we did with our BCR-ABL program.

We generated approximately $27.8 mitlion, $21.6 million, and $27.3 million in revenues from collaborations,
commercial agreements and grants during the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. We
have incurred significant losses since our inception in 1998, as we have devoted substantially all of our efforts to
research and development activities. As of December 31, 2006, our accumulated deficit was approximately
$163.7 million. We expect to incur substantial and possibly increasing losses for the next several years as we
develop and expand our oncology pipeline.

We were incorporated in Delaware in July 1998. To date, we have not generated any revenues from the sale of
therapeutic drugs. We have financed our operations and internal growth through private placements of our preferred
stock, our collaboration, commercial agreement and grant revenue, debt financings, and our initial public offering.

Financial Operations Overview
Collaboration, Commercial Agreement and Grant Revenue

Collaboration, commercial agreement and grant revenue has primarily been a result of various contractual
agreements with pharmaceutical companies and biotechnology companies, as well as government and other
agencies. We also periodically receive non-refundable payments for achieving certain milestones during the term of
our agreements.

Research and Development Expense

Research and development expense consists primarily of costs associated with our internal research programs
and certain clinical trial costs, compensation, including stock-based, and other expenses related to research and
development personnel, facilities costs and depreciation. We charge all research and development expenses to
operations as they are incurred.

Qur research activities are focused on building an internal oncology pipeline and generating lead compounds
for ourselves and our potential partners through application of our FAST drug discovery platform. We have
identified a portfolio of approximately 20 oncology drug targets that we believe are clearly implicated in cancers.
Our most advanced programs based upon FAST are focused on compounds that inhibit BCR-ABL, MET and JAK2.

We incurred $2.8 million, $1.9 million, and $6.4 million of internal research expenses in connection with our
NIH grants in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. We also incurred $5.0 million, $5.1 million, and 5.0 million of
expenses to subcontractors in connection with our research under NIH grants in 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

36




~ We incurred $9.5 million, $6.5 million, and $5.5 million of expenses related to the development of Troxatyl in
2006, 2005, and 2004 respectively, for a total of $21.5 million cumulatively expended on Troxatyl. These expenses
for 2004 and cumulatively through December 31, 2006 include $4.0 million paid to Shire BioChem Inc. to in-
license exclusive worldwide rights to Troxatyl.

All other research and development expenses are for various programs in the preclinical and research and
discovery stages. For these preclinical programs, we use our internal resources, including our employees and
discovery infrastructure, across several projects, and many of our costs are not attributable to a specific project but
are directed to broadly applicable research projects. Accordingly, we do not account for our internal research and
development costs on a project basis. Research and development expense also includes stock-based compensation
expense associated with employees performing research and development activities.

We anticipate that our existing level of expenditures will support our current research and development
activities. However, drug discovery and development outcomes and timelines and associated costs are uncertain and
therefore vary widely. We anticipate that we will make determinations as to which research and development
projects to pursue and how much funding to direct toward each project on an on-going basis in response to the
scientific and clinical success in each program.

General and Administrative Expense

General and administrative expense consists primarily of compensation, including stock-based, and other
expenses related to our corporate administrative employees, legal fees and other professional services expenses. We
anticipate that we will maintain our existing level of general and administrative expenditures. However, we will
make determinations as to the necessary levels of general and administrative expenditures on an on-going basis in
response to our research and development activities and regulatory obligations.

Interest Income

Interest income consists of interest earned on our cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments.

Interest Expense

Interest expense in 2006 includes interest charges associated with the line of credit and equipment financing
facility which we entered into with Silicon Valley Bank and Oxford Finance Corporation in September 2005.
Interest expense in 2005 and also 2004 represents interest on our debt and secured promissory notes in an aggregate
principal amount of $13.4 million that we issued in two tranches in a secured bridge financing in July and
September 2004, which were converted into redeemable convertible preferred stock in April 2005.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based on our financial
statements, which have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. The
preparation of financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, expenses and related disclosures, Actual results could differ from those estimates. While our
significant accounting policies are described in more detail in Note 1 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements included elsewhere in this report, we believe the following accounting policies to be critical to the
judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our financial statements:

Revenue Recognition

Our collaboration agreements and commercial agreements contain multiple elements, including non-refund-
able upfront fees, payments for reimbursement of research costs, payments for ongoing research, payments
associated with achieving specific milestones and, in the case of our collaboration agreements, development
milestones and royalties based on specified percentages of net product sales, if any. We apply the revenue
recognition criteria outlined in Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104, Revenue Recognition and Emerging Issues Task
Force Issue 00-21, Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables , or EITF 00-21. In applying these revenue
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recognition criteria, we consider a variety of factors in determining the appropriate method of revenue recognition
under these arrangements, such as whether the elements are separable, whether there are determinable fair values
and whether there is a unique earnings process associated with each element of a contract.

Cash received in advance of services being performed is recorded as deferred revenue and recognized as
revenue as services are performed over the applicable term of the agreement.

When a payment is specifically tied to a separate earnings process, revenues are recognized when the specific
performance obligation associated with the payment is completed. Performance obligations typically consist of
significant and substantive milestones pursuant to the related agreement. Revenues from milestone payments may
be considered separable from funding for research services because of the uncertainty surrounding the achievement
of milestones for products in early stages of development. Accordingly, these payments could be recognized as
revenue if and when the performance milestone is achieved if they represent a separate earnings process as
described in EITF 00-21.

In connection with certain research collaborations and commercial agreements, revenues are recognized from
non-refundable upfront fees, which we do not believe are specifically tied to a separate earnings process, ratably
over the term of the agreement. Research services provided under some of our collaboration agreements and
commercial agreements are on a fixed fee basis. Revenues associated with long-term fixed fee contracts are
recognized based on the performance requirements of the agreements and as services are performed.

Revenues derived from reimbursement of direct out-of-pocket expenses for research costs associated with
grants are recorded in compliance with EITF Issue 99-19, Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal Versus Net as an
Agent, and EITF Issue 01-14, Income Statement Characterization of Reimbursements Received for “ Out-of-Pocket™
Expenses Incurred. According to the criteria established by these EITF Issues, in transactions where we act as a
principal, with discretion to choose suppliers, bear credit risk and perform part of the services required in the
transaction, we record revenue for the gross amount of the reimbursement. The costs associated with these
reimbursements are reflected as a component of research and development expense in the statements of operations.

None of the payments that we have received from collaborators to date, whether recognized as revenue or
deferred, is refundable even if the related program is not successful.

Stock-Based Compensation Expense

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards, or SFAS, No. 123R, Share-Based Payment, which requires companies to expense the
estimated fair value of employee stock options and similar awards. This statement is a revision to SFAS No. 123,
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, and supersedes Accounting Principles Board, or APB, Opinion No. 25,
Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and amends FASB Statement No. 95, Statement of Cash Flows. The
accounting provisions of SFAS No. 123R became effective for us at the beginning of the first quarter of fiscal 2006.

We grant options to purchase our common stock to our employees and directors under our stock option plans.
Eligible employees can also purchase shares of our common stock under the employee stock purchase plan at the
lower of: (i) 85% of the fair market value on the first day of a two-year offering period; or (ii) 85% of the fair market
value on the last date of each six-month purchase period within the two-year offering period. The benefits provided
under these plans are stock-based payments subject to the provisions of SFAS 123R. Effective January 1, 2006, we
began to use the fair value method to apply the provisions of SFAS 123R with a modified prospective application
which provides for certain changes to the method for valuing stock-based compensation. The valuation provisions
of SFAS 123R apply to new awards and to awards that were outstanding on January 1, 2006 and subsequently
modified or canceiled. Under the modified prospective application, prior periods are not revised for comparative
purposes. Prior to adopting the provisions of SFAS 123R, we recorded estimated compensation expense for
employee stock options based upon their intrinsic value on the date of grant pursuant to APB Opinion 25. Stock-
based compensation expense recognized under SFAS 123R for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $4.3 million
(excluding stock-based compensation expense for share based awards to non-employees). At December 31, 2006,
total unrecognized estimated compensation expense related to non-vested stock options granted prior to that date
was $4.0 million, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 2.31 years. Total stock
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options granted during the year ended December 31, 2006 represented 5% of total outstanding shares as of the end
of 2006. Assuming the conversion of all of our previously outstanding shares of preferred stock and a 36.0 million
convertible note as of December 31, 2005, total stock options granted during the year ended December 31, 2005
represented 14% of total outstanding shares as of the end of 2005.

Both prior and subsequent to the adoption of SFAS 123R, we estimated the value of stock-based awards on the
date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R, the value of each
stock-based award was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes model for the pro forma information
required to be disclosed under SFAS 123. The determination of the fair value of stock-based payment awards on the
date of grant using an option-pricing model is affected by our stock price as well as assumptions regarding a number
of complex and subjective variables. These variables include, but are not limited to, our expected stock price
volatility over the term of the awards, risk-free interest rate and the expected term of the awards.

For purposes of estimating the fair value of stock options granted during the year ended December 31, 2006
using the Black-Scholes model, we have made a subjective estimate regarding our stock price volatility (weighted
average of 73%). Expected volatility is based on average volatilities of the common stock of comparable publicly
traded companies using a blend of historical, implied and average of historical and implied volatilities for this peer
group of 10 companies, consistent with the guidance in SFAS 123R and SAB 107. If our stock price volatility
assumption were increased to 78%, the weighted average estimated fair value of stock options granted during the
year ended December 31, 2006 would increase by $0.49 per share, or 11%, from $4.36 to $4.85, respectively.

As permitted by Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107, Share Based Payment (“SAB107”), we utilize the
“shortcut approach” to estimate an options expected term, which represents the period of time that an option granted
is expected to be outstanding. The expected term of options granted is derived from the average midpoint between
vesting and the contractual term.

The risk-free interest rate for the expected term of the option is based on the average U.S, Treasury yield curve
on the first day of each month for which the option is granted for the expected term (weighted average of 4.7% for
the year ended December 31, 2006) which, if increased to 6.00%, would increase the weighted average estimated
fair value of stock options granted during the year ended December 31, 2006 by $0.10 per share, or 2.4%.

We are required to assume a dividend yield as an input to the Black-Scholes model. The dividend yield
assumption is based on our history. As we have never issued dividends and as we do not anticipate paying dividends
in the foreseeable future, we have utilized a dividend yield of 0.0%.

Prior to 2006, stock-based compensation expense for stock options granted to employees and directors had
been determined as the difference between the exercise price and the fair value of our common stock on the date of
grant, as estimated by us for financial reporting purposes, on the date those options were granted. It also included
stock-based compensation for options granted to consultants that has been determined in accordance with Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards, or SFAS, No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation , or SFAS 123,
and EITF Issue No. 96-18, Accounting for Equity Instruments That Are Issued to Other Than Employees for
Acquiring or in Conjunction with Selling Goods and Services, as the fair value of the equity instruments issued and
is periodically revalued as the options vest. Stock-based compensation expense depends on the amount of stock
options and other equity compensation awards we grant to our employees, consultants and directors and the exercise
price of those options,

Deferred stock compensation which is a non-cash charge, results from employee stock option grants at
exercise prices that, for financial reporting purposes, are deemed to be below the estimated fair value of the
underlying common stock on the date of grant. Given the absence of an active market for our common stock through
2005, our board of directors considered, among other factors, the liquidation preferences, anti-dilution protection
and voting preferences of the preferred stock over the common stock in determining the estimated fair value of the
common stock for purposes of establishing the exercise prices for stock option grants.

As a result of initiating our initial public offering, we revised our estimate of the fair value of our common
stock for the last six months of 2004 and the year ended December 31, 2005 for financial reporting purposes. This
was done retrospectively by management and we did not obtain contemporaneous valuations from an independent
valuation specialist. In reassessing the value of our common stock in 2005 and 2004, we considered the price we

39



received in April 2005 for our Series B preferred stock of $4.71 per share ($9.42 per share on an assumed converted
basis). Starting on July 1, 2004, we reduced the value that we originally attributed to the preferences on the preferred
stock mentioned above by 10% of the price of the preferred stock. Accordingly, we estimated the fair value at 90%
of the Series B preferred stock price, or $4.24 per share ($8.48 per share on an assumed converted basis). We kept
this value constant until April 2005 when we steadily increased the estimated fair value to $14.06 per common share
based on an assessment of market considerations, including discussions with the underwriters who managed the
initial public offering. Furthermore, we believe this valuation approach is consistent with valuation methodologies
applied to other similar companies for financial reporting purposes pursuing an initial public offering.

For stock option and restricted stock grants to employees and non-employee directors, we recorded deferred
stock compensation, net of forfeitures, totaling $13.6 million and $0.¢ in 2005 and 2004, respectively, which
represent the difference between the revised fair value for financial reporting purposes of our commeon stock and the
option exercise price at the date of grant. We also recorded deferred stock compensation of $1.7 million for the
issuance of equity instruments to former employees and consultants in 2005. Deferred compensation was to be
amortized to expense over the vesting period of the related options using an accelerated method. Based upon stock
option and restricted stock grants through December 31, 2005, the expected future amortization expense for
deferred stock compensation is $3.5 million, $1.4 million, $200,000 and $24,000 for the years ending December 31,
2006, 2007, 2008, and 2009, respectively. As a result of the adoption of SFAS 123R on January 1, 2006, these
deferred compensation amounts, totaling $5.1 million, were reversed out of deferred compensation against
additional paid-in capital and the expense will be taken in accordance with SFAS 123R for all remaining unvested
grants.

Accrued Expenses

As part of the process of preparing financial statements, we are required to estimate accrued expenses. This
process involves identifying services which have been performed on our behalf, and estimating the level of service
performed and the associated costs incurred for such service as of each balance sheet date in our financial
statements. Examples of estimated expenses for which we accrue include contract service fees paid to contract
manufacturers in conjunction with the production of clinical drug supplies and to contract research organizations. In
connection with such service fees, our estimates are most affected by our understanding of the status and timing of
services provided relative to the actual levels of services incurred by such service providers. The majority of our
service providers invoice us monthly in arrears for services performed. The date on which certain services
commence, the level of services performed on or before a given date and the cost of such services are often
determined based on subjective judgments. We make these judgments based upon the facts and circumstances
known to us in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Deferred Tax Asset Valuation Allowance

Our estimate for the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets requires us to make significant estimates and
Jjudgments about our future operating results. Our ability to realize the deferred tax assets depends on our future
taxable income as well as limitations on utilization. A deferred tax asset must be reduced by a valuation allowance if
it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax asset will not be realized prior to its expiration.
The projections of our operating results on which the establishment of a valuation allowance is based involve
significant estimates regarding future demand for our products, competitive conditions, product development
efforts, approvals of regulatory agencies and product cost. We have recorded a full valuation allowance on our net
deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 due to uncertainties related to our ability to utilize our
deferred tax assets in the foreseeable future. These deferred tax assets primarily consist of certain net operating loss
carry-forwards and research and development tax credits.

Results of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared to 2005

Coliaboration, Commercial Agreement and Grant Revenue.  Collaboration, commercial agreement and grant
revenue increased to $27.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 from $21.6 million for the year ended
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December 31, 2005. The increase of $6.1 million, or 28%, was primarily due to the amortization into revenue of the
$20 million upfront payment received from Novartis (approximately $3.8 million), the initiation of the research
services (approximately $3.4 million) and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses (approximately $1.6 million),
both in connection with the collaboration with Novartis, increased research grant efforts (approximately $0.8 mil-
lion) and the continuation of research services performed in connection with the Cystic Fibrosis Foundation
Therapeutics, Inc. (approximately $0.9 million). These additional revenues were offset by a reduction in revenues
due to the conclusion of research services in 2006 which were ongoing in 2005.

Research and Development Expense. Research and development expense increased to $46.9 million for the
year ended December 31, 2006 from $37.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. The increase of
$9.0 million, or 24%, was primarily attributable to $3.7 million of additional clinical development costs for
Troxatyl, $2.1 million related to increased laboratory supply usage, $1.7 million related to an increased use of
outside services, $2.2 million related to additional headcount and salaries, and $1.1 million related to additional
facilities costs, offset by a $2.0 million net reduction in stock-based compensation expense. We anticipate that our
existing level of expenditures will support our current research and development activities. However, drug
discovery and development outcomes timelines and associated costs are uncertain and therefore vary widely.
We anticipate that we will make determinations as to which research and development projects to pursue and how
much funding to direct toward each project on an on-going basis in response to the scientific and clinical success of
each program.

General and Administrative. General and administrative expense decreased to $9.6 million for the year
ended December 31, 2006 from $11.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. The decrease of $2.2 million,
or 19%, was primarily attributable to a decrease of $3.6 million in stock-based compensation expense offset by an
increase of $0.5 million in legal and other professional services and a $0.5 million increase in accrued salaries and
related costs. We anticipate that we will maintain our existing level of general and administrative expenditures.
However, we will make determinations as to the necessary levels of general and administrative expenditures on an
on-going basis in response to our research and development activities and regulatory obligations.

Interest Income. Interest income increased to $1.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 from
$284,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005. The increase of $1.5 million, or 536%, was due primarily to higher
cash and cash equivalent balances in 2006 compared to 2005. The higher cash balances are the result of the proceeds
received from our initial public offering in February 2006 and the Novartis agreement in March 2006.

Interest Expense. Interest expense (excluding interest expense associated with our bridge notes issued in July
and September 2004) increased to $1.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 from $422,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2005. We did not receive any funds under the line of credit and equipment financing
agreements with Silicon Valley Bank and Oxford Finance Corporation until September 2005. We also received
funds under these arrangements in December 2005 and December 2006. Accordingly, the increase in interest
expense was due to the higher debt levels in 2006 as compared to 2005 (excluding indebtedness under our bridge
notes issued in July and September 2004).

Interest Expense Associated with Bridge Notes. We recorded interest expense of $1.2 million during the year
ended December 31, 2005 related to the bridge notes issued in July and September 2004, We did not record any
interest expense during the year ended December 31, 2006 related to these bridge notes as the notes were converted
into preferred stock in April 2005.

Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared to 2004

Collaboration, Commercial Agreement anii Grant Revenue. Collaboration, commercial agreement and grant
revenue declined to $21.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 from $27.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2004. The decrease of $5.7 million, or 21%, was primarily due to the conclusion of a previously
existing grant agreement, partially offset by a new grant agreement that commenced in the third quarter of 2005,
resulting in a net decrease in grant revenue of $4.3 million. In addition, a decrease of $1.4 million was due to fewer
new agreements signed in 2005 as we changed our business strategy to focus on oncology drug discovery and
devetopment.

41



Research and Development Expense. Research and development expense increased to $37.9 million for the
year ended December 31, 2005 from $31.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. The increase was
primarily attributable to increased clinical trial expenses incurred for Troxatyl and the recognition of equity-based
compensation for option grants.

General and Administrative. General and administrative expense increased to $11.8 million for the year
ended December 31, 2005 from $6.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, The increase was primarily
attributable to an increase in equity-based compensation for option and restricted stock grants in 2003,

Amortization of Stock-Based Compensation. We recorded amortization of stock-based compensation of
$10.2 million and $0.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The increase was
attributable to the additional deferred compensation recorded for financial reporting purposes, as a result of our
initial public offering, from the issuance of stock option grants at exercise prices that were deemed to be below the
estimated fair value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant.

Interest Income. lnterest income increased to $284,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005 from
$175,000 for the year ended December 31, 2004, The increase was due primarily to higher cash and cash
equivalent balances in 2005 compared to 2004,

Interest Expense. Interest expense (excluding interest expense associated with our bridge notes issued in July
and September 2004) decreased to $422,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005 from $669,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2004. We did not receive any funds under the line of credit and equipment financing
agreements with Silicon Valley Bank and Oxford Finance Corporation until September 2005 and December 2005.
Accordingly, the decrease in interest expense was due to the lower debt levels in 2005 as compared to 2004
{excluding indebtedness under our bridge notes issued in July and September 2004).

Interest Expense Associated with Bridge Notes. We recorded interest expense of $1.2 million and $3.4 million
during the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, related to the bridge notes issued in July and
September 2004. Included in the bridge note interest expense is the amortization of the fair value of warrants issued in
connection with the bridge notes. We determined the fair value of the warrants on the grant date using the Black-Scholes
pricing model. This resulted in aggregate expense of approximately $1.7 million, which is recorded against the principal
balance. The remaining $363,000 was recognized as interest expense in the year ended December 31, 2005.

Also included in the bridge note interest expense is an additional non-cash charge of approximately
$1.7 million against the principal balance of the bridge notes. This amount represents the difference between
the conversion price of the bridge notes and the underlying value of the stock issued upon conversion of the bridge
notes. The remaining $363,000 of this non-cash charge was recognized as interest expense in the year ended
December 31, 2005.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Sources of Liguidity

We have historically funded ocur operations primarily through the sale of our equity securities and funds
received from our collaborations, commercial agreements, grants and debt financings. In April and December 2005,
we received total net proceeds of approximately $13.2 million from the sale of our Series B preferred stock. In
February 2006, we completed an initial public offering of an aggregate of 4,152,904 shares of our common stock
and raised net proceeds of approximately $20.6 million, after deducting the underwriting discount and offering
expenses, and including the underwriter’s over-allotment option which was exercised in March 2006. Upen the
completion of our initial public offering in February 2006, all of our previocusly outstanding shares of preferred
stock converted into an aggregate of 8,346,316 shares of our common stock and a convertible note of $6.0 miltion
converted into 1,000,000 shares of our common stock. We have recorded revenues from our collaborations,
commercial agreements and grants totaling $27.8 million, $21.6 million, and $27.3 million for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

In September 2005, we entered into a line of credit and equipment financing agreement with Silicon Valley
Bank and Oxford Finance Corporation to provide $8.0 million of general purpose working capital financing and
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$2.0 million of equipment and leasehold improvements financing. The debt bears interest at a rate of approximately
10% per annum and is due in monthly installments over three years. In September and December 2005, we
borrowed approximately $4.0 million and $4.9 million, respectively, of the funds available under this line of credit
and equipment financing agreement for general purpose working capital needs and capital expenditures spending,
and issued the lenders warrants to purchase an aggregate of 90,370 shares of our Series B preferred stock, which
became exercisable for 45,184 shares of our common stock, at an exercise price of $9.42 per share, upon the
completion of our initial public offering. In November and December of 2006, we borrowed the remainder of the
available financing under this line of credit and equipment financing agreement of approximately $1.1 mitlion, and
issued the lenders warrants to purchase an aggregate of 5,771 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of
$9.42 per share.

As of December 31, 2006, an aggregate of approximately $7.6 million was outstanding under our line of credit
and equipment financing agreement with Silicon Valley Bank and Oxford Finance Corporation entered into in 2005
and other lines of credit entered into prior to 2005. The debt agreements subject us to certain financial and non-
financial covenants. As of December 31, 2006, we were in compliance with these covenants. These obligations are
secured by our assets, excluding intellectual property, and are due in monthly installments through 2010. They bear
interest at effective rates ranging from approximately 9.14% to 11.03% and are subject to prepayment fees of up to
4% of the outstanding principal balance as of the prepayment date. We made debt repayments of approximately
$3.5 million, $3.0 million, and $3.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2003, and 2004, respectively.

In March 2006, we entered into a license and collaboration agreement with Novartis to develop and
commercialize BCR-ABL inhibitors for the treatment of CML. In connection with the license and cotlaboration
agreement, Novartis paid us a non-refundable, non-creditable license fee of $20.0 miltion, which was received in
May 2006.

In addition, Novartis Pharma AG purchased 637,755 shares of our common stock for $5.0 million in March
2006.

Cash Flows
Our cash flows for 2007 and beyond will depend on a variety of factors, some of which are discussed below.

As of December 31, 2006, cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments totaled approximately
$33.9 million as compared to $17.7 million at December 31, 2005, an increase of approximately $16.2 million. The
increase resulted primarily from the $20.6 million in net proceeds received from our [PO in February 2006 and the
$25.0 million received from Novartis in connection with the license and collaboration agreement we entered into in
March 2006, partially offset by net cash used to fund ongoing operations.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, net cash used in operating activities was approximately $5.9 million
reflecting the net loss for this period of $28.1 million and an increase in accounts receivable and other assets of
$1.0 million, offset primarily by an increase in deferred revenue of $15.2 million and non-cash items totaling
$8.1 million. Net cash used by investing activities was approximately $7.5 million reflecting purchases of short-
term investments of $6.0 million and purchases of property and equipment of approximately $1.5 million. Net cash
provided by financing activities was approximately $23.5 million reflecting net proceeds of $25.8 million from the
issuance of common stock in connection with our initial public offering and collaboration agreement with Novartis
and $1.1 million of proceeds from our line of credit and equipment financings, offset by $3.4 million in repayments
on lines of credit and notes payable.

For the year ended December 31, 2005, net cash used in operating activities was approximately $11.8 million
reflecting the net loss for this period of $29.4 million, an increase in prepaid expenses and other assets of
$1.4 million and deferred rent of $0.1 million, offset primarily by non-cash items totaling $14.9 million and an
increase in deferred revenue of $0.7 million. Net cash used by investing activities was approximately $1.3 miilion
for purchases of property and equipment. Net cash provided by financing activities was approximately $19.4 miillion
reflecting net proceeds of $13.4 million from the issuance of preferred and common stock, proceeds from our line of
credit and equipment financings of $8.9 million and proceeds from repayment of notes receivable from stock-
holders, offset by $3.0 million in repayments on lines of credit and notes payable.
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Following a review of our oncology product pipeline and the resources currently available to us we determined
we will not initiate additional Troxatyl clinical studies while, in consultation with Shire, we consider the future
options for Troxatyl, such as seeking one or more third party collaborative or cooperative arrangements, As such,
we are unable to estimate the costs, if any, we will incur in the future development of Troxatyl. We anticipate that
our existing level of expenditures will support our current research and development activities. However, diug
discovery and development, outcomes, timelines and associated costs are uncertain and therefore vary widely. We
anticipate that we will make determinations as to which research and development projects to pursue and how much
funding to direct toward each project on an on-going basis in response to the scientific and clinical success of each
program and, with respect to Troxatyl, in consultation with Shire,

Funding Requirements

Our future capital uses and requirements depend on numerous factors, including but not limited to the
following:

» terms and timing of any collaborative, licensing and other arrangements that we may establish, including
partnering our internal discovery programs, such as MET and JAK?2;

» rate of progress and cost of our clinical trials and other research and development activities;

* scope, prioritization and rumber of clinical development and research programs we pursue;

* costs and timing of preparing regulatory submissions and obtaining regulatory approval;

» costs of establishing or contracting for sales and marketing capabilities;

* costs of manufacturing;

* extent to which we acquire or in-license new products, technologies or businesses;

« effect of competing technological and market developments; and

* costs of filing, prosecuting, defending and enforcing any patent claims and other intellectual property rights.

We believe that our existing cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments, together with interest
thereon and cash from existing collaborations, commercial agreements and grants, will be sufficient to meet
projected operating requirements through 2008. Consistent with our existing business development strategy, we
anticipate establishing new collaborations and commercial agreements. Any proceeds recetved in connection with
such new transactions, or milestones achieved under existing or new collaborations or commercial agreements,
would provide additional operating capital.

Until we can generate significant cash from our operations, we expect to continue to fund our operations with
existing cash resources that were primarily generated from the proceeds of offerings of our equity securities, our
collaboration, commercial agreement, grant revenue, and debt financing. In addition, we may finance future cash
needs through the sale of other equity securities, strategic collaboration agreements and debt financing. However,
we may not be successful in obtaining additional collaboration agreements or commercial agreements, or in
receiving milestone or royalty payments under existing agreements. In particular, if we do not generate additional
revenue from collaborations, commercial agreements and grants at the levels we project, we may require additional
funding sooner than we currently anticipate. In addition, we cannot be sure that our existing cash and cash
equivalents and short-term investments will be adequate or that additional financing will be available when needed
or that, if available, financing will be obtained on terms favorable to us or our stockholders. Having insufficient
funds may require us to delay, scale back or eliminate some or all of our research or development programs or to
relinquish greater or all rights to product candidates at an earlier stage of development or on less favorable terms
than we would otherwise choose. Failure to obtain adequate financing may also adversely affect our ability to
operate as a going concern. If we raise additional funds by issuing equity securities, substantial dilution to existing
stockholders would likely result. If we raise additional funds by incurring debt financing, the terms of the debt may
involve significant cash payment obligations as well as covenants and specific financial ratios that may restrict our
ability to operate our business.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, we have not invested in any variable interest entities. We do not have any
relationships with unconsolidated entities or financial partnerships, such as entities often referred to as structured
finance or special purpose entities, which would have been established for the purpose of facilitating off-balance
sheet arrangements or other contractually narrow or limited purposes. In addition, we do not engage in trading
activities involving non-exchange traded contracts. As such, we are not materially exposed to any financing,
liquidity, market or credit risk that could arise if we had engaged in these relationships. We do not have relationships
or transactions with persons or entities that derive benefits from their non-independent relationship with us or our
related parties other than as described in the Notes to Financial Statements included elsewhere in this report.

Contractual Obligations

The following summarizes our long-term contractual obligations as of December 31, 2006:
Payments Due by Period

Less Than 1to 4 to More Than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year 3 Years S Years 5 Years
(1n thousands)
Long-term debt obligations ............. $ 7,870 $3,526 $4.326 18 —
Operating lease obligations ............. 2,176 1,417 740 19 —
License obligations . .................. — — e —
Total ... .. e $10,046 $4,943 $5,066 $37 5—

Related Party Transactions

For a description of our related party transactions, see “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and
Director Independence.”

Income Taxes

As of December 31, 2006, we had federal and California net operating loss carryforwards of approximately
$107.6 million and $76.2 million, respectively, which begin to expire in 2019 and 2009, respectively, if not utilized.
We also had federal and California research and development tax credit carryforwards totaling approximately
$5.0 million and $3.4 million, respectively. The federal research and development tax credit carryforward will begin
to expire in 2019, unless previously utilized.

Pursuant to Internal Revenue Code Sections 382 and 383, and similar state provisions, use of our net operating
loss and tax credit carryforwards may be limited as a result of certain cumulative changes in our stock ownership.
The annual limitations may result in the expiration of net operating losses and credits prior to utilization.

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, we had deferred tax assets primarily representing the benefit of net operating
loss carryforwards. We did not record a benefit for the deferred tax assets because realization of the deferred tax
assets was uncertain and, accordingly, a valuation allowance has been provided to completely offset the deferred tax
assets.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FASB Interpretation (FIN) No, 48,
Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109, which clarifies the:
accounting for uncertainty in tax positions. FIN No. 48 requires that the Company recognize the impact of a tax.
position in its financial statements if that position is more likely than not of being sustained on audit, based on the
technical merits of the position. The provisions of FIN No. 48 are effective as of the beginning of the Company’s
2007 fiscal year, with the cumulative effect of the change in accounting principle recorded as an adjustment to
opening retained earnings. The Company does not expect the adoption of FIN No. 48 to have a material impact on
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its consolidated results of operations and financial position, and the Company is continuing to evaluate the impact, if
any, the adoption of FIN No. 48 will have on its disclosure requirements.

In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No, 108 (SAB 108) “Considering the Effects of
Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements”. SAB 108
addresses how the effects of prior year uncorrected misstatements should be considered when quantifying
misstatements in current year financial statements. SAB 108 requires companies to quantify misstatements using
a balance sheet and income statement approach and to evaluate whether either approach results in quantifying an
error that is material in light of relevant quantitative and qualitative factors. When the effect of initial adoption is
material, companies will record the effect as a cumulative effect adjustment to beginning of year retained earnings.
The provisions of SAB 108 are effective for annual statements covering the first fiscal year ending after
November 15, 2006. The adoption of SAB 108 did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial
position or results of operations.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements. SFAS No. 157 defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles and expands
disclosures about fair value measurements. This Statement applies only to fair value measurements that are already
required or permitted by other accounting standards. Accordingly, this Statement does not require any new fair
value measurements, SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2007, The Company
is currently evaluating the impact, if any, the adoption of SFAS No. 157 will have on the Company’s financial
position or results of operations,

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The primary objective of our investment activities is to preserve principal while maximizing income without
significantly increasing risk. Some of the securities in which we invest may be subject to market risk. This means
that a change in prevailing interest rates may cause the market value of the investment to fluctuate. To minimize this
risk, we may maintain our portfolio of cash equivalents and short-term investments in a variety of securities,
including commercial paper, money market funds, debt securities and certificates of deposit. The risk associated
with fluctuating interest rates is limited to our investment portfolio and we do not believe that a 1% change in
interest rates would have had a significant impact on our interest income for 2006 or 2005. As of December 31,
2006, all of our cash equivalents were held in checking accounts, money market accounts, commercial paper and
government agency securities. We do not have any holdings of derivative financial or commodity instruments, and
we have an immaterial amount of foreign currency denominated transactions.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
SGX Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of SGX Pharmaceuticals, Inc. as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005 and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity (deficit),
and cash flows for each of the three vears in the period ended December 31, 2006. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an audit of the
Company’s internal control over financiai reporting. Qur audits included consideration of internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion,

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of SGX Pharmaceuticals, Inc., at December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the consolidated
results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note | to the consolidated financial statements, SGX Pharmaceuticals, Inc. changed its
method of accounting for share based payments in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 123 (revised 2004) effective January 1, 2006.

fs/  Ernst & Young LLP
San Diego, California
March 27, 2007
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SGX Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31,

2006

2005

(In thousands, except par
value and share data)

ASSETS

Current assels:

Cash and cash equivalents . ... ... ... ..ttt i $ 27877 % 17,718

ShOTt-1erm INVESHMIENIS. . . . . . o ot it it ittt e mne st na e e e aannan 6,000 —

Accounts receivable . . . ... ... e s 3,532 863

Prepaid expenses, deposits and other current assets. ... . ... ... Ll 1,616 1,241
Total CUITENE ASS8ES & v v v ot vt et e ettt e e e e ettt i e 39,025 19,822
Property and equipment, Net ... ... ... .. it 5,435 7,168
Goodwill and intangible assets, net .. ... ... .. i e 3,412 3,439
L1011 1T o - -1 oS PGSO 592 2,683
TOMAL ASSBIS . « . . o v ettt e et e e e e e e e $ 48464 § 33,112

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable. . . ... ... e $ 2,109 § 2935

Accrued Habilities . .. . ... . e e e e 4,774 4,190

Other current Habilities . .. .. o i i i e e e e e 330 128

Current portion of line of eredit . . ... .. ... . o o 7,552 9,733

Deferred TevenUE . . . .ot ottt e e e e 6,997 2218
Total current labilitles. . . .. . .. o e e e e e e 21,762 19,204
Deferred rent. . ... e e e e e 66 169
Deferred revenue, JONg-teImn . . . ... ...ttt e 13,023 2,579
Note payable, net of current portion. . ... ... .. . o — 6,000
Commitments and contingencies (Note 4)
Redeemable convertible preferred stock, par value $0.001; Authorized shares —

none and 19,000,000 at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively; issued and

outstanding shares — none and 16,692,654 at December 31, 2006 and 2005,

respectively; aggregate liquidation preference and redemption amount — $0 and

$48,190 at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. .. ... oo e — 46,837
Stockholders” equity (deficit): *

Preferred stock, par value $0.001; Authorized shares — 5,000,000 and none at

December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively; and no shares issued and

outstanding at December 31,2006 and 2005 .. .. .. ... ... ool — —
Common stock, par value $0.001; Authorized shares — 75,000,000 and

50,000,000 at December 31, 2006 and 20035, respectively; issued and

outstanding shares — 15,166,109 and 854,160 at December 31, 2006 and 2005,

TeSPECIVELY L .. e 16 1
Notes receivable from stockholders ... ... ... ... i (21) (59
Additional paid-incapital. .. .. ... .. .. 177,355 99,110
Deferred cOmpensation . ... ... ...ttt it e — (5,101}
Accumulated other comprehensive loss. .. .. ... ... .. i (8) —
Accumulated deficit. . . ... e e (163,729)  (135,628)

Total stockholders’ equity (deficit). . . ... ... .. i 13,613 (41,577)
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity (deficit) .. ...... ... ... ... ... .o $ 48464 § 33,112

See accompanying notes,
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SGX Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
(In thousands, except per share data)

Revenue:

Collaborations and commercial agreements .. .................... $19906 §$14604 § 15941

Grants — subcontractor reimbursements. . . ... ... i e 5,120 5,083 4976

18 1 | S 2,754 1,949 6,380
Total TEVENUE . . . . ottt et e e e e e e e e 27,780 21,636 27,297
Expenses: ‘

Research and development .. ... ... ... ... ... ... ... .. ... 46,942 37,881 31,444

General and administrative . ... ... . 0 i e e 9,588 11,820 6,719

In-process technology ... ... .. . — — 4,000
Total Operating eXpenses. . « v . v o vttt et et 56,530 49701 42,163
Loss from operations . ... ...ttt (28,750) (28,065) (14,866)
Interest INCOME. . . vttt et e e e e 1,805 284 175
INterest EXPENSE . . ..ttt e e (1,107) (422) (669)
Interest expense associated with bridge notes. . ... ......... ..., ..... — (1,188) (3,392)
N 085 o o ittt e e e e e (28,052) (29,391}  (18,752)
Accretion to redemption value of redeemable convertible preferred stock . . {49) (472) (329)
Net loss attributable to common stockholders . . .......... ... ...... $(28,101)  $(29,863) $(19,081)

Basic and diluted net loss per share attributable to common stockholders .. §  (2.03) 3 (48.32) $ (39.84)

Shares used to compute basic and diluted net loss per share attributable to
common stockholders . . ... ... ... . L 13,814 618 479

See accompanying notes.
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SGX Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)

Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006

Notes ACI:EI)I:II;]ItEd Sl.uc;:;ulld 5
M Rmble Ag:jidu‘::d Deferred Cumprch:nslve Accumulated Equfitymi
Shares Amount Stockhotders Capltal Comyp b Loss Deficit __{Deficit)
(In thousands, except share data)
Balance at December 31,2003 .. ... .. ... ... ... .. 427,156 51 (1,997 $ 11,226 $ (590) — $ (B6,684) S(78.044)
Issuance of commen stock upen exercise of stock
OPUHOMS & o vt ittt it b it it e 11,196 — — 62 — — — 62
Repurchase of unvested restricted stoek .. . .. .. .. .. (744) — — (1) — — — (10)
Repurchase of common stock in exchange for seitlement
of notes and accrued interest from stockholders . . . . . (131,224) — 1,764 (1,764) — — — —
Forgiveness of a portion of principal on notes and accrued ’
intcrestonnote settlement . . . . ... — = 131 651 _ — — 782
Repayment of notes receivable from stockbolders. . . . . . - - 42 _ — — — 42
Accrued interest on notes receivable from stockholders . . —_ - {78) — —_ - — (78)
Deferred compensation for issuance of equity
NSEHUMENLS. . . . . .. . e s —_ — —_ 6 (6} — — -
Amonization of stock-based compensation. . . ... ... . —_ - — {147} 596 — — 149
Isseance costs incurred in equity ftnancing. . . . .. .. .. —_— - — (166) —_ — — {166)
Conversion of redecmable preferred stock into common
stock for non-participation in the bridge financing . . . . 194,052 — — 13,7185 — — - 13,785
[ssuance of warrants to bridge note lenders . .. ... ... _— - —_ 3477 —_ —_ —_ 2477
Deemed dividend and aceretion to redemption value of
redeemable convertible preferred stock .. ... ... L _ = — — — — {329) 329
Net loss and comprehensive boss, ., . . .. .. ... ... = = — — — = _ 8752 (18,750
Balance a1 December 31,2004 . ... .. .. ... ... ... 500,436 1 (138) 11120 — — (105,765y  (7:,782)
Issuance of common stuck upon exercise of stock
OPIROMS - . ..ot 213417 — - 222 - - — 222
Conversion of preferred stock into commen stock for non-
participation in the Series B firancing . . . . . ... ... 10392 — —_ 1410 — — — 1410
Repayment of notes receivable from stockholders, . . . . . —_ 81 — - —_ — 81
Accrued interest on notes receivable from stockholders . . —_ - 3 -_— — — — [&))]
Deferred compensation for isstance ol equity
IDSIUIMENIS . . . .., oo e - - — 12,944 (12,944) —_ — —
Amontization of stock-based compensation. . . .. ... .. - — — — 10,233 — - 10233
Repurchase of unvested restricted stock .. ... ... ... (8%) — 1 “) -— — — (3)
Issuance of restricted stock . o . . v v oo a L 70000 — — 654 (654) — - —_
Issuarice of equity instruments 1o former employees and
Consultants . . . ... _ = — 1,736 (1,736) — —_ —
Issuance of wammants to lenders . . ... oL L. - - - 498 - —_ — 498
Decmed dividend and accretion to redemption value of
redeemable convertible preferred stock . . ... .. ... -— = — —_ —_ — (472) (472
Reduction of redempiton value on redeemable prelerred
SCK o oo i e e - - — 54,530 — — — 54,530
Net loss arxl comprehensive loss. . ... .. ......... —_ — — — —_ _ (29,391) ﬁ 39_I)
Batance al December 31,2005 . . ... . ... .. vt 854,160 1 (59 99110 (5.101) — (135,628) (41,.577)
Netloss . ... oot i i — — — — - (28,052)  (28,052)
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale securities . . .. ... - - — - —_ 8 - ___
Net comprehensive 105, . . . .. .o v et - - — - - — — (28,060)
Issuance of commen stock upon cxercise of stock
OPUONE .« . . ottt e i 115,606 1 — 158 — — — 159
Issuance of common stock pursuant to employee stock
purchaseplan . .. ..., ....... ... ... ..., 59,368 — — 132 — — — 132
Issuance of commeon stock pursuant to initial public
offering, net of offedingcosts . . . .. ........... 4,152,904 4 — 20,625 — — — 20,629
Conversion of redeemable convertible preferred stock into
common stock pursuant to initial public offering. . . . . 8,346,316 8 — 46,878 - — — 46,586
Cotwersion of note payable into common stock pursuant
10 initial public offering . .. .. ... ... ... ... 1,000,000 1 — 5,999 — — - 6,000
Issuance of cormmon siock pursuant to collaboration
BEMEEMIEAE o o o 4 o it e e e 637,755 1 — 5,009 — — —_ 500
Repayment of nutes receivuble from stockholders. . . . . —_ — 33 — — — -— 18
Elimination of deferred compensation upon adoption of
SFAS123R .. .. e e —_ - — (5,101} 5,101 — — —
Compensation expense related to share-based payments . . —_ - — 4,539 — —_ —_ 4,539
Issuance of warrants to lenders . . ... ... L. - - — 6 —_ — —_ 6
Deemed dividend and accretion to redemption value of
redeemable convertible preferred stock .. .. .. ... - — — — — = (49) 49
Balance a1t December 31,2006 . .. . .............. 15,166,109 $16 5 (21} $177355 § — 5(8) 30163.729)  $136.3

See accompanying notes.
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SGX Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
{In thousands)
Operating activities:
Net 0SS . .ot t ee $(28.052) $(29,391) $(18,752)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating
activities;
Depreciation and amortization .. ........................... 3,332 3,976 5,002
Imputed interest expense on convertible debenture ... ........... — — 18
Stock-based compensation . . ... ... L. L e e 4,569 10,233 449
Issuance of common stock for services. ... ... ... ... . ..., 56 — —
Amortization of discount on warrants. . .. .................... 167 72 64
Amortization of discount on warrants associated with bridge notes . . — 727 2,753
Deferred rent. .. ... . i e e e (103) 97} 27
Accrual of interest on notes receivable from stockholders . . ... .. .. — — (78)
Accrual of interest on bridge notes payable. . .. ................ — 411 467
Forgiveness of principal and accrued interest on note settlement . . . . — — 782
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable . . ... ... .. L (2,669} 56 1,162
Prepaid expenses and other current assets . ... ............... (452) (151) (60}
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities . . .. ................ (40) 2,874 (680)
Deferredrevenue ... ... ... .. i 15,223 737 (2,643)
L 11T g T 2,078 (1,289) 559
Net cash used in operating activities .......................... (5,891) (11,842) (10,984)
Investing activities:
Purchase of short-term investments . .......................... (6,000) — —_
Purchases of property and equipment, net. ... ................... (1,483) (1,303) (1,175)
Net cash used in investing activities. . ... ...................... (7,483) (1,303) (1,175)
Financing activities:
Proceeds from lines of credit and notes payable . .. ..., .........,. 1,132 8,868 643
Principal payments on lines of credit and notes payable .. .. ... ... .. (3,474) (2,974) (3,946)
Proceeds from repayment of notes receivable from stockholders . . .. .. a9 79 42
Issuance of common stock for cash, net of repurchases. . . .......... 25,836 219 52
Issuance of preferred stock. net . ............. ... ... ... ... .. .. — 13,159 (166)
Issuance of bridge motes . . ......... .. ... . .. ... . i, — — 13411
Net cash provided by financing activities . . . .................... 23,533 19,351 10,036
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents. . ............. 10,159 6,206 (2,123)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year. . ................. 17,718 11,512 13,635
Cash and cash equivalents atendof year ... .................... $ 27.877 $17,718 $11,512
Supplemental schedule of cash flow information:
Cash paid forinterest .. ........ ... ... .. ... iiiiriirnann.nn $ 1,093 $ 363 $ 587
Supplemental schedule of non-cash investing and financing activities:
Conversion of preferred stock to common stock .. ................ $ 46,886 s — $ —
Conversion of note payable to common stock. .. ................. $ 6,000 b — b —
Reclass of deferred compensation to additional paid in capital . ... ... 3 5101 $ — $ —
Issuance of warrant related to line of eredit .. ................... 3 6 $ 498 $ —
Deferred compensation .. ........ ... .. ... ... 3 — § 15334 3 —
Conversion of bridge notes and redeemable convertible preferred stock
B0 BQUILY . . o e e 3 — 3 54,530 $ 13,785
Conversion of bridge notes to preferred stock. . . ................. b — $ 14,291 $ —

See accompanying notes.

52




SGX Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Organization and Business

SGX Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (“SGX” or the “Company”, formerly known as Structural GenomiX, Inc.), was
incorporated in Delaware on July 16, 1998, SGX is a biotechnology company focused on the discovery, devel-
" opment and commercialization of innovative cancer therapeutics.

SGX is subject to risks common to companies in the biotechnology industry including, but not limited to, risks
and uncertainties related to drug discovery, development and commercialization, obtaining regulatory approval of
any products it or its collaborators may develop, competition from other biotechnology and pharmaceutical
companies, its effectiveness at managing its financial resources, difficulties or delays in its clinical trials, difficulties
or delays in manufacturing its clinical trial materials, implementation of its coliaborations, the level of efforts that
its collaborative partners devote to development and commercialization of its product candidates, its ability to
successfully discover and develop products and market and sell any products it develops, the scope and validizy of
patent protection for its products and proprietary technology, dependence on key personnel, product liability,
litigation, its ability to comply with U.S. Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”} and other government regulations
and its ability to obtain additional funding to support its operations.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the assets, liabilities, and results of operations of the Company
and its wholly-owned subsidiary. All material inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparatton of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements and disclosures made in the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial
statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reverse Stock Split

In April 2005, the Company’s board of directors authorized a 0.126453-for-1 reverse stock split for all
outstanding preferred and common shares. All share information has been retroactively restated to reflect the
reverse stock split,

In January 2006, the Company’s beard of directors and stockholders authorized a 1-for-2 reverse stock split of
the common stock that was effected on January 3, 2006. As a result, each share of the Company’s then outstanding
preferred stock became convertible into one-half of a share of the Company’s common stock. All common share
information has been retroactively restated to reflect the 1-for-2 reverse stock split. In connection with the closing of
the Company’s initial public offering in February 2006, all shares of preferred stock were converted 10 common
stock.

Initial Public Offering

The Company’s initial public offering of common stock (the “Offering”) was effected through a Registraticn
Statement on Form S-1 (File number 333-128059) that was declared effective by the Securities and Exchange
Commission on January 31, 2006. The Offering commenced on February 1, 2006 and did not terminate before any
securities were sold. On February 6, 2006, 4,000,000 shares of common stock were sold on the Company’s behalf at
an initial public offering price of $6.00 per share, resulting in aggregate proceeds of approximately $19,772, net cf
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underwriting discounts and commissions and offering expenses. In addition, during March 2006, the Company

closed the sale of an additional 152,904 shares of common stock pursuant to the exercise by the underwriters of an

over-altotment option that resulted in additional net proceeds to us of $853, net of underwriting discounts and
‘ commissions and offering expenses.

i Reclassification

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation,

‘ Cash and Cash Equivalents and Short-term Investments

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities of less than three months when
purchased to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are recorded at cost, which approximate market value.

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 115, Accounting for Certain
Investments in Debt and Equity Securities, the Company’s short-term investments are carried at fair value and
classified as available-for-sale. Unrealized holding gains and losses, net of tax, are reported as a component of
accumulated other comprehensive income in stockholders’ equity. Realized gains and losses and declines in value
| judged to be other-than-temporary on available-for-sale securities are included in interest income. The cost of the
securities is based on the specific identification method. Interest and dividends on securities classified as available-
for-sale are included in interest income.

Fair Value of Financial Statements

The carrying value of cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, accrued expenses and liabilities
and notes payable are considered to be reasonable estimates of their respective fair values due to their short-term
nature.

Accounts Receivable

The Company’s accounts receivable consist of amounts due from governmental agencies for costs incurred
under funded projects and amounts due from corporate partners under various collaboration agreements. When
necessary, the Company maintains an allowance for potentially uncollectible accounts receivable arising from its
customers’ inability to make required payments. The Company has a limited number of accounts receivable and
uses the specific identification method as a basis for determining this estimate. The Company did not maintain an
allowance for doubtful accounts as of December 31, 2006 or 2005.

The percentage of total revenues from significant customers is as follows:

Years Ended
December 31,
206 2005 2004
LT3 () 1 o= = O 31% — —_
CUSIOMET B . . e e e e e e 28% 33% 42%
L0 FT 0] 10 1= i 22% 38% 34%
Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Costs of major
additions and betterments are capitalized; maintenance and repairs, which do not improve or extend the life of the
respective assets are charged as expenses. On disposal, the related cost and accumulated depreciation or amor-
tization is removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is included in the results of operations.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets which range
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from three to fifteen years. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the estimated useful lives of the assets or
related lease terms, whichever is shorter.

Long-Lived Assets

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 144, Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, if indicators of impairment exist, the Company assesses the
recoverability of the affected long-lived assets by determining whether the carrying value of such assets can be
recovered through the undiscounted future operating cash flows. If impairment is indicated, the Company measures
the amount of such impairment by comparing the carrying value of the asset to the present value of the expected
future cash flows associated with the use of the asset, Although the Company has accumulated losses since
inception, the Company believes the future cash flows to be received from the long-lived assets will exceed the
assets’ carrying value, and accordingly, the Company has not recognized any impairment losses through Decem-
ber 31, 2006.

Deferred Rent

Rent expense is recorded on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. The difference between rent
expense accrued and amounts paid under the lease agreement is recorded as deferred rent in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets.

Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock

In connection with the closing of the Company’s initial public offering in February 2006, all shares of
redeemable convertible preferred stock were converted to common stock. Prior to the Company’s initial public
offering, the carmrying value of redeemable convertible preferred stock was increased by periodic accretions sa that
the carrying amount would equal the redemption value at the redemption date. These accretions were effected
through charges against accumulated deficit.

Adoption of SFAS 123(R), Share-Based Payment

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the fair value recognition provisions of the Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment (“SFAS 123(R)") using the modified
prospective method of recognition of compensation expense related to share-based payments. The Company’s staternent
of operations for the year ended December 31, 2006 reflects the impact of adopting SFAS 123R. Under this method,
stock-based compensation expense recognized during the year ended December 31, 2006 includes: (a) compensation
cost for all share-based payments granted prior to, but not vet vested as of January 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair
value estimated in accordance with the original provisions of SFAS 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation
(""SFAS Ne. 123”) and (b) compensation cost for all share-based payments granted on or subsequent to January 1, 2006,
based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123R. In accordance with
SFAS 123R, the estimated grant date fair value of each stock-based award is recognized as expense on a ratable basis
over the requisite service period (generally the vesting period). In accordance with the modified prospective transition
method, the consolidated statements of operations for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 have not teen
restated to reflect, and do not include, the impact of SFAS 123R,

Expected volatility is based on average volatilitics of the common stock of comparable publicly traded
companies using a blend of historical, implied and average of historical and implied volatilities for this peer group
of 10 companies.

As permiited by Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107, Share-Based Payment (“SAB107"), the Company utilized
the “shortcut approach” to estimate an option’s expected term, which represents the period of time that an option
granted is expected to be outstanding. The expected term of options granted is derived from the average midpoint
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between vesting and the contractual term. The risk-free interest rate is based on the average of the 5-year and 7-year
U.S. Treasury yield curve at the beginning of each month for that month’s options granted, given their expected
term. The rates ranged from 4.31% to 5.12% during 2000.

Since the Company has never paid a dividend and does not expect to pay dividends in the near future, the
Company uses a zero dividend rate.

As stock-based compensation expense recognized in the Statements of Operations for the year ended
December 31, 2006 is based on awards ultimately expected to vest, it should be reduced for estimated forfeitures.
SFAS 123R requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if
actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. Pre-vesting forfeitures were estimated to be approximately 12%
during the year ended December 31, 2006, based on historical experience. In the Company’s pro forma information
required under SFAS 123 for the periods prior to fiscal 2006, the Company accounted for forfeitures as they
occurred. Compensation expense related to stock-based compensation is recognized on a ratable basis for those
awards issued on January 1, 2006 or later. Compensation expense for awards issued prior to January 1, 2006 is
continuing to be recognized on an accelerated method until vesting is complete. Compensation expense related to
stock-based compensation is allocated to research and development or general and administrative expense based
upon the department to which the associated employee or non-employee reports.

The adoption of SFAS 123R did not impact the cash flow from operations, investing or financing activities
during the vear ended December 31, 2006.

Stock-Based Compensation prior to SFAS 123R

In 2005 and prior years, the Company elected to follow Accounting Principles Board (“APB™) Opinion No. 25,
Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (“APB 25™), and related Interpretations in accounting for its employee
and director stock options, and provided the required pro forma disclosures of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS™ No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation (“SFAS No. 123"). Under APB 23, if the
exercise price of the Company’s employee and director stock options equaled or exceeded the estimated fair value
of the underlying stock on the date of grant, no compensation expense was recognized.

Options or stock awards issued to non-employees were recorded at their fair value as determined in accordance
with SFAS No. 123, and Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF") 96-18, Accounting for Equity Instruments That are
Issued to Other Than Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling Goods and Services, were
periodically revalued as the options vested and recognized as expense over the related service period.

The Company’s board of directors estimated the fair value of the Company’s common stock for purposes of
establishing exercise prices of stock options. Given the absence of an active market for the Company’s common
stock through its initial public offering in February 2006, the board of directors considered, among other factors, the
liquidation preferences, anti-dilution protection and voting preferences of the preferred stock over the common
stock in determining the estimated fair value of the common stock for purposes of establishing the exercise prices
for stock option grants.

In preparation for its initial public offering, the Company revised its estimate of the fair value for financial
reporting purposes of common stock for the last six months of 2004, all of 2005, and January of 2006. This valuation
was done retrospectively by management, and the Company did not obtain contemporaneous valuations from an
independent valuation specialist. In reassessing the value of common stock in 2004, 2005 and January 2006, the
Company considered the price it received in April 2005 for its Series B preferred stock of $4.71 per share ($9.42 per
share on an assumed converted basis). Starting on July 1, 2004, the Company reduced the value originally attributed
to the preferences on the Series B preferred stock to 10% of the price of the preferred stock. Accordingly, the
Company estimated the fair value of the common stock for financial reporting purposes to be 90% of the Series B
preferred stock price, or $4.24 per share ($8.48 per share on an assumed converted basis). The Company kept this
value constant until April 2005, when the Company steadily increased the estimated fair value to $14.06 per
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common share based on an assessment of market considerations, including discussions with the underwriters in the
initial public offering. The Company believed this valuation approach was consistent with valuation methodologies
applied for financial reporting purposes to other similar companies pursuing an initial public offering.

The Company recorded deferred stock compensation, net of forfeitures, for employee and non-employee
director’s stock option and restricted stock grants within stockholders’ deficit of $13,598 and $0 in 2005 and 2004,
respectively, which represents the difference between the revised fair value of the common stock for financial
reporting purposes and the option exercise price at the date of grant. The weighted-average exercise price and the
weighted-average revised fair value were $1.00 and $11.40 for the options granted during 2005, respectively.
Deferred compensation was to be amortized to expense over the vesting period of the related options using an
accelerated method in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation (“FIN'") No. 28,
Accounting for Stock Appreciation Rights and Other Variable Stock Option or Award Plans.

The Company recorded amortization of deferred stock compensation of $10,233 and $449 during the years
ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. On January 1, 2006, the Company reversed out the remaining
deferred stock compensation of $5,101 to additional paid-in capital in accordance with SFAS 123R.

The table below illustrates the effect on net loss and net loss per share had the Company applied the fair value
provisions of SFAS No. 123 to employee stock compensation in 2005 and 2004,

2005 2004

Net loss attributable to common stockholders, as reported ... ............ $(29,863) $(19,081)
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in net loss

attributable to common stockholders . ... . ... .. e 8,785 121
Deduct: Stock-based employee compensation determined under the fair value

mMethod . . . e e (6,859) (262)
Pro forma net loss attributable to common stockholders. . . .............. $(27.937)  $(19,222)
Basic and diluted net loss attributable to common stockholders per share, as

FEPOTEd . . .. $ (48.32) 3 (39.84)
Pro forma basic and diluted net loss attributable to common stockholders per

3 1 T O $ (45.21) $ (40.13)

The fair value of these stock option and restricted stock grants used to compute pro forma net loss is estimated
at the date of grant, using a Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions
for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2005:

2005 2004
Risk-free interest rate . ... .. .. .. i i e s 3% 3%
Expected volatility. ... ... .. e 63% 63%
Expected lives. . . ... e 4 years 4 years

Expected dividend. . .. ... ... .. . . . e — —

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options
that have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models require the input of
highly subjective assumptions. Because the Company’s employee stock option and restricted stock grants have
characteristics significantly different from those of traded options, and because changes in the subjective input
assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimates, in management’s opinion, the existing models do not
necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of its employee stock options and restricted stock
grants.
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Revenue Recognition

The Company’s collaboration agreements and commercial agreements contain muitiple elements, including
non-refundable upfront fees, payments for reimbursement of research costs, payments for ongoing research,
payments associated with achieving specific milestones and, in the case of collaboration agreements, development
milestones and royalties based on specified percentages of net product sales, if any. The Company applies the
revenue recognition criteria outlined in Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104, Revenue Recognrition, and EITF Issue
00-21, Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables (“EITF 00-21"). In applying these revenue recognition
criteria, the Company considers a variety of factors in determining the appropriate method of revenue recognition
under these arrangements, such as whether the elements are separable, whether there are determinable fair values
and whether there is a unique earnings process associated with each element of a contract.

Cash received in advance of services being performed is recorded as deferred revenue and recognized as
revenue as services are performed over the applicable term of the agreement.

When a payment is specifically tied to a separate earnings process, revenues are recognized when the specific
performance obligation associated with the payment is completed. Performance obligations typically consist of
significant and substantive milestones pursuant to the related agreement. Revenues from non-refundable milestone
payments may be considered separable from funding for research services because of the uncertainty surrounding
the achievement of milestones for products in early stages of development. Accordingly, these payments could be
recognized as revenue if and when the performance milestone is achieved if they represent a separate earnings
process as described in EITF 00-21.

In connection with certain research collaborations and commercial agreements, revenues are recognized from
non-refundable upfront fees, which the Company does not believe are specifically tied to a separate earnings
process, ratably over the term of the agreement. Research services provided under some of the Company’s
agreements are on a fixed fee basis. Revenues associated with long-term fixed fee contracts are recognized based on
the performance requirements of the agreements and as services are performed.

Revenues derived from reimbursement of direct out-of-pocket expenses for research costs associated with
grants are recorded in compliance with EITF Issue 99-19, Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal Versus Net as an
Agent (“EITF 99-19"), and EITF Issue 01-14, Income Statement Characterization of Reimbursements Received for
“Qut-of-Pocket” Expenses Incurred (“EITF 01-14”). According to the criteria established by these EITF Issues, in
transactions where the Company acts as a principal, with discretion to choose suppliers, bears credit risk and
performs part of the services required in the transaction, the Company records revenue for the gross amount of the
reimbursemens. The costs associated with these reimbursements are reflected as a component of research and
development expense in the statements of operations.

None of the payments that the Company has received from collaborators to date, whether recognized as
revenue or deferred, is refundable even if the related program is not successful.
Research and Development

Research and development costs are expensed as incurred and consist primarily of costs associated with
clinical trials, compensation, including stock-based compensation, and other expenses related to research and
development, including personnel costs, facilities costs and depreciation.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using the liability method in accordance with the provisions of
SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined
based on differences between the financial reporting and tax basis of the Company’s assets and liabilities and arc
estimated using enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse. A
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valuation allowance is provided when the Company determines that it is more likely than not that some portion or all
of a deferred tax asset will not be realized.

Net Loss Per Share Attributable to Common Stockholders

The Company computes net loss per share attributable to common stockholders in accordance with
SFAS No. 128, Earnings Per Share (“SFAS 128"). Under the provisions of SFAS 128, basic net loss per share
attributable to common stockholders (“Basic EPS”) is computed by dividing net loss attributable to common
stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding. Diluted net loss per share attributahle
to common stockholders (“Diluted EPS™) is computed by dividing net loss attributable to comman stockholders by
the weighted average number of common shares and dilutive common share equivalents then outstanding. Common
share equivalents consist of the incremental common shares issuable upon the conversion of preferred stock and
note payable, shares issuable upon the exercise of stock options, vesting of restricted stock units, and shares issuable
upon the exercise of warrants. For the periods presented, Diluted EPS is identical to Basic EPS because common
share equivalents, including all of the Company’s preferred stock, note payable, outstanding stock options and
outstanding warrants, are excluded from the calculation, as their effect is anti-dilutive. Had the Company been it a
net income position, these securities may have been included in the calculation, These potentially dilutive securitiss
consist of the following on a weighted average basis:

Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Redeemable convertible preferred stock .................. — 5,686,849 993,761
Notespayable ........ .. ... . ... . . .. — 1,000,000 1,600,000
QOutstanding common stock options. . . ................... 604,869 636,927 183,881
Restricted stock . . ... ... . 145,727 28,971 _
Qutstanding warmants . .. ............. .0ttt 195,928 70,645 10,479
Total ... .. 946,524 7423392 2,188,121

Upon the completion of the Company’s initial public offering in February 2006, all of the Company’s
previously outstanding preferred shares converted into 8,346,316 shares of the Company’s common stock and a
note payable converted into 1.0 million shares of the Company’s common stock.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

SFAS No. 130, Reporting Comprehensive Income, requires that all components of comprehensive income,
including net income, be reported in the financial statements in the period in which they are recognized.
Comprehensive income (loss) is defined as the change in equity during a period from transactions and other
events and circumstances from non-owner sources. Net income (loss) and other comprehensive income (loss),
including foreign currency translation adjustments and unrealized gains and losses on investments, are to be
reported, net of their related tax effect, to arrive at comprehensive income (loss).

Segment Reporting

The Company has adopted SFAS No. 131, Disclosure About Segments of an Enterprise and Related
Information, which requires companies to report selected information about operating segments, as well as
enterprise wide disclosures about products, services, geographical areas, and major customers, Operating segments
are determined based on the way management organizes its business for making operating decisions and assessing
. performance. The Company has only one operating segment, the discovery, development and commercialization of
drug products, thus, this statement did not have an impact on the Company’s financial statements.
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Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FASB Interpretation (FIN) No. 48,
Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (“FIN48” ), which
clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in tax positions. FIN 48 requires that the Company recognize the impact of a
tax position in its financial statements if that position is more likely than not of being sustained on audit, based on
the technical merits of the position. The provisions of FIN 48 are effective as of the beginning of the Company’s
2007 fiscal year, with the cumulative effect of the change in accounting principle recorded as an adjustment to
opening retained earnings. The Company does not expect the adoption of FIN 48 to have a material impact on its
consolidated results of operations and financial position, and the Company is continuing to evaluate the impact, if
any, the adoption of FIN No. 48 will have on its disclosure requirements.

In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108 (SAB 108) Considering the Effects of
Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifving Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statement. SAB 108
addresses how the effects of prior year uncorrected misstatements should be considered when quantifying
misstatements in current year financial statements. SAB 108 requires companies to quantify misstatements using
a balance sheet and income statement approach and to evaluate whether either approach results in quantifying an
error that is material in light of relevant quantitative and qualitative factors. When the effect of initial adoption is
material, companies will record the effect as a cumulative effect adjustment to beginning of year retained earnings.
The provisions of SAB 108 are effective for annual statements covering the first fiscal year ending after
November 15, 2006. The adoption of SAB 108 did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial
position or results of operattons.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurement (“SFAS 157"). SFAS 157
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles and
expands disclosures about fair value measurements. This Statement applies only to fair value measurements that are
already required or permitted by other accounting standards. Accordingly, this Statement does not require any new
fair value measurements. SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2007. The Company is
currently evaluating the impact, if any, the adoption of SFAS 157 will have on the Company’s financial position or
results of operations.

2. Balance Sheet Details
Short-term Investments

Short-term investments at December 31, 2006 consisted of two auction rate securities totaling $6,000. There
was no unrealized gain or loss associated with these securities as of December 31, 2006.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consist of the following:

Estimated December 31,
Life in Years 2006 2005
Labequipment .. ... ...ttt 5-7 $ 14066 § 12,573
Computers and equipment. . .%o .. ..ottt 3-5 7,963 7,676
Leasehold improvements. ... ....... ... ... ... . ot nn 4-15 5,139 4,935
Fumniture . ... ... . 10 411 411
CORSITUCHON 1N PrOZIESS . o o vt v o v i ii e e e eene s NA 255 756
27,834 26,351
Accumulated depreciation and amortization. ... ........... (22,399) (19,183)

$ 5435 § 7,168
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Total depreciation expense related to property and equipment was $3,216, $3,394 and $4,797 for the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, which is net of asset dispositions. Cost and accumulated
depreciation of assets under equipment lines of credit was $16,980 and $14,090, respectively, at December 31,
2006, and $15,848 and $12,590, respectively, at December 31, 2005. Depreciation of assets under equipment linzs
of credit is included in depreciation expense.

A majority of the Company’s property and equipment collateralizes the outstanding obligations under the
existing line of credit agreements as of December 31, 2006 and 2005,

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Intangible assets include the following:

Decemnber 31, 2006

Gross
Estimated Carrying  Accumulated
Life in Years Amount Amortization

Goodwill .. ... e Indefinite $3,914 $ (522)
IR Ter=T 4T 3-10 989 (969)
Total intangible assets. .. .........ccvireinis $4,903 $(1,491)

December 31, 2005

Gross
Estimated Carrying Accumuiated
. Life in Years Amount Amortization
Goodwill ... i e e Indefinite $3,914 $ (522)
Licenses. . . ... i e e 3-5 977 {930}
Total intangible assets. .. ... ... ... ... .. o .. $4,891 $(1,452)

The net amortization expense of intangible assets, excluding goodwill, done on a straight-line basis for the
years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 was approximately $39 and 3176, respectively.

Estimated amortization of intangibles for the years ending December 31:

2 $10
< N 1
2000 . L e e e e e e e e e 1
74 ) 0 1
0 ) 1
B 7= 57 =1 o _6

320

3. Lines of Credit

In September 2002, the Company entered into a line of credit agreement under which it could borrow up to
$6,500 to finance equipment. Borrowings under the line of credit bear interest at rates ranging between 9.14% and
10.60% per annum and are collateralized solely by the financed equipment. Principal and interest are payable
monthly over either 35 months or 47 months depending on the type of equipment financed. The line of credit
requires the Company to execute a letter of credit in favor of the finance company in the amount of $150. As of
December 31, 2006, there are no amounts available for future draws under this line of credit.
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In September 2005, the Company entered into a line of credit and equipment financing agreement with Silicon
Valley Bank and Oxford Finance Corporation to provide $8,000 of general purpese working capital financing and
$2,000 of equipment and leasehold improvements financing. The debt bears interest at a rate of approximately
10% per annum and is due in monthiy installments over three years. One-half of the proceeds were immediately
made available to the Company under the line of credit and equipment financing agreements. The remainder of the
line of credit became available in the fourth quarter of 2005 and the remainder of the equipment financing
agreement became available in the second quarter of 2006.

In September 2005, the Company borrowed $4,000 for general purpose working capital under the line of credit
facility. In December 2005, the Company borrowed an additional $4,000 for general purpose working capital
purposes under the line of credit facility and $867 for equipment financing purposes. In November and
December 2006, the Company borrowed the remainder of the available financing of $1,132 under the equipment
financing agreement. These debt agreements subject us to certain financial and non-financial covenants. As of
December 31, 2006, we were in compliance with these covenants. These obligations are secured by our assets,
excluding intellectual property, and are due in monthly installments through 2010. They bear interest at effective
rates ranging from approximately 9.14% to 11.03% and are subject to prepayment fees of up to 4% of the
outstanding principal balance as of the prepayment date. We made debt repayments of approximartely $3,474,
$2,974, and $3,946 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

The facility with Silicon Valley Bank and Oxford Finance Corporation is subject to a “material adverse event”
clause and the Company’s cash and cash equivalent accounts are subject to the control of the lenders if a “material
adverse event” occurs. In accordance with the provisions of EITF No. 95-22, Balunce Sheet Classifications of
Borrowings Quistanding under Revolving Credit Agreements that include both a Subjective Acceleration Clause
and a Lock-Box Arrangement and FASB Technical Bulletin No. 79-3, Subjective Acceleration Clauses in Long-
Term Debt Agreements, the Company has classified the borrowings outstanding under this arrangement as a current
liability in the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31. 2006 and 2005.

Future minimum principal payments due on the above equipment and working capital lines of credit as of
December 31, 2006 are as follows:

2007 oo $3.526
2008 o e e e 3,661
2000 . oo e 665
2010 . e e 18
TOWL . . o $7,870

The aggregate amount of debt discount at December 31, 2006 that will be amortized to interest expense in
future periods is approximately $319.

4. Commitments and Collaborative Research and Development Agreements

The Company leases its office and research facilities and certain office equipment under non-cancelable
operating leases, which expire at various dates from 2007 to 2010. The leases include escalation clauses beginning
on the first anniversary of the respective lease and continuing through the end of the leases. The leases require the
Company to pay for all maintenance, insurance and property taxes. In addition to a cash security deposit, one of the
leases required the Company to execute a letter of credit in favor of its landlord in the amount of $88.

In accordance with the letter of credit agreements, the Company was required to restrict cash equal to the
amount of the letters of credit. As of December 3!, 20035, restricted cash of $88 was included in cash and cash
equivalents. The letter of credit requirement ended in March 2006 upon the expiration of the related lease.
Accordingly, no cash was restricted at December 31, 2006.
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Future minimum lease payments are as follows at December 31, 2006:

20T e e e e e e 31,417
200 . e e e e 717
2000 . e e e e e e 23
7000 L 19
Total minimum lease PAYMENLS. . . . . .. . . ...ttt ittt ten s $2,176

Rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $1,772, $2,203 and $2,075,
respectively.

Bridge Financing

In July and September 2004, the Company entered into a Loan and Security Agreement (the “Loan and
Security Agreement”} whereby the Company borrowed from certain preferred stockholders an aggregate principal
amount of approximately $13,411 under Secured Convertible Promissory Notes (the “Secured Bridge Notes”) and
issued to those preferred stockholders warrants (the “Bridge Warrants”) to purchase shares of common stock of the
Company (the “Bridge Financing™). In conjunction with the Bridge Financing, the Company concurrently entered
into an Intellectual Property Security Agreement pursuant to which the Company granted and pledged a security
interest in its intellectual property and substantially all of the Company’s assets as collateral.

The Secured Bridge Notes had an annual interest rate of 10%. The principal and accrued interest under the
Secured Bridge Notes converted into shares of Series A-2 preferred stock in connection with the initial closing of
the Series B preferred stock financing. (See Note 5)

The shares of preferred stock of any preferred stockholder that did not participate at least 50% of their pro rata
amount in the Bridge Financing were automatically converted into shares of common stock upon the closing of the
Bridge Financing. An aggregate of 388,104 shares of Series A, B, C and D preferred stock were converted into
common stock as a result of nonparticipation in the Bridge Financing by certain preferred stockholders. For those
preferred stockholders that did participate in the Bridge Financing, their shares of Series A, B, C and D preferred
stock were exchanged for shares of Series A-1, B-1, C-1 and D-1 preferred stock, respectively, on a one-for-one
basis. As a result, the Company’s outstanding capital stock at December 31, 2004 consisted of common stock,
Series A-1, B-1, C-1 and D-1 preferred stock. (See Note 35)

In January 2005, the Company, the agent and the lenders party to the Loan and Security Agreement holding a
majority interest of the outstanding principal amount under all of the Secured Bridge Notes (the “Majority
Lenders™) agreed to extend the maturity date of the Secured Bridge Notes from January 27, 2005 to March 31, 2005,
or such earlier date as may be determined by the Majority Lenders. Subsequently, the Company, the agent and the
Majority Lenders agreed to further extend the maturity date of the Secured Bridge Notes from March 31, 2005 to
April 22, 2005, or such earlier date as may be determined by the Majority Lenders.

The Company determined the fair value of the Bridge Warrants on the grant date, using the Black-Scholes
pricing model with a resulting aggregate expense of approximately $1,739, which was recorded against the
principal balance and was amortized over the term of the Secured Bridge Notes. Of the debt discount, approx-
imately $363 and $1,376 was recognized as interest expense during the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. Pursuant to EITF Issue No. 98-5, “Accounting for Convertible Securities with Beneficial Conversion
Features”, and EITF Issue No. 00-27, “Application of Issue No. 98-5 to Certain Convertible Instruments”, the
Company recorded an additional non-cash charge of approximately $1,739 against the principal balance of the
Secured Bridge Notes. This amount represents the difference between the conversion price of the Secured Bridge
Notes and the underlying value of the stock issuable upon conversion of the Secured Bridge Notes. Of this non-cash
charge, approximately $363 and $1,376 was recognized as interest expense during the years ended December 31,
2005 and 2004, respectively.
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Note Payable

In December 2001, the Company entered into a research program agreement with Millennium Pharmaceu-
ticals, Inc. (“Millennium”). Concurrent with the signing of the research program agreement, the Company issued to
Millennium a convertible note with a term of three years in exchange for $6,000.

During 2004, the Company issued an amended and restated convertible promissory note to Millennium and the
entire note balance was converted into the right to receive common stock upon the closing of an initial public
offering at a conversion price equal to the price per share in the offering. As the note payable was to be settled in a
variable number of shares upon conversion due to an initial public offering, as of December 31, 2005, the Company
reflected the amount as a long-term liability until settled in accordance with SFAS No. 150. In connection with the
closing of the Company’s tnitial public offering in February 2006, the note automatically converted into an
aggregate of 1,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock.

Sponsored Research and Drug Discovery Collaboration Agreements with Cystic Fibrosis Foundation
Therapeutics, Inc.

In January 2001, the Company entered into a sponsored research agreement with Cystic Fibrosis Foundation
Therapeutics, Inc. (“CFFT”), the drug discovery and development arm of the Cystic Fibrosis Foundation, Through
December 31, 2006, the Company recognized revenue of $11,905 related to research funding and $1,475 related to
the achievement of eight milestones. In July 2005, the Company entered into a new three-year drug discovery
coilaboration agreement with CFFT.

Collaboration and License Agreement with Eli Lilly and Company

In April 2003, the Company entered info a two-year research and technology agreement with Eli Lilly and
Company (“Eli Lilly”). Under the terms of the agreement, the Company has received research, license, technology
access and technology installation fees of $25,476 through December 31, 2006. These payments were initially
recorded as deferred revenue and recognized as collaborations and commercial agreements revenue as services
were performed pursuant to the agreement,

In December 2003, the Company also expanded its research and technology agreement with Eli Lilly to
provide Eli Lilly with long-term access to its beamline facility at the Advanced Photon Source in Argonne, lllinois,
to support Eli Lilly drug discovery programs. Under the terms of the Company’s beamline services agreement with
Eli Lilly, the Company generates crystal structure data on Eli Lilly drug targets and compounds in exchange for
upfront access fees and maintenance fees paid by Eli Lilly. Upon execution of the agreement, the Company received
a $2,000 upfront access fee payment and will receive payments for annual operating costs in future years.

In April 2005, the research term of the agreement was extended for an additional three years. The Company is
entitled to receive research funding of approximately $4,600 per year.

In-Licensing of Troxatyl™

In July 2004, the Company licensed exclusive worldwide rights to Troxatyl from Shire BioChem Inc.
(“*Shire”). Troxatyl is a novel compound that has been in clinical trials for the treatment of acute myelogenous
leukemia (“AML”), Under the terms of the agreement, the Company made an upfront payment of $3,000 and a
payment of $1,000 on the one-year anniversary of the agreement. The Company is also required to make up to
$17,000 of contingent milestone payments based on successful development and approval of Troxatyl for the
treatment of AML. The Company may also be required to make milestone payments upon the occurrence of other
development and regulatory events for solid tumor and other indications, and will be required to make minimum
royalty payments based on net sales of up to approximately $10,000 over a four-year period following product
launch. In August 2006, the Company announced that it had discontinued its Phase LI/III clinical trial of Troxaty for
the third line treatment of acute myelogenous leukemia based on a recommendation from the study’s independent
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safety and monitoring board. As a result, no estimate of the amount or timing of any of these other potential
payments has been accrued for in the accompanying consolidated financial statements as the Company has not yet
completed clinical development or obtained regulatory approval of Troxatyl for any indication. A one-time charge
of $4,000 for purchased in-process research and development related to the upfront and one-year anniversary
payments has been reflected in the Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2004, based on the fact
that the technology acquired did not have established feasibility and had no alternative future use.

License and Collaboration Agreement with Novartis

In March 2006, the Company entered into a License and Collaboration Agreement (the “Agreement’™) with
Novartis Institutes for Biomedical Research, Inc., (‘Novartis™) for the development and commercialization of BCR-
ABL inhibitors for the treatment of Chronic Myelogenous Leukemia (CML). Under the Agreement, the parties will
collaborate to develop one or more BCR-ABL inhibitors and Novartis will have exclusive worldwide rights to such
compounds, subject to the Company’s co-comimercialization option in the United States and Canada.

Under the terms of the agreement, the Company received an upfront payment of $20,000, and will receive
research funding over the first two years of the collaboration of $9,100 and could receive additional payments for
achievement of specified development, regulatory and commercial milestones. In addition, the Company sold
Novartis Pharma AG $5,000 of common stock pursuant to a Stock Purchase Agreement dated March 2006.

5. Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock
Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock

During the year ended December 31, 2002, 12,400 shares of Series D redeemable preferred stock were
cancelled due to being unearned under an earnout agreement. There were no changes to the redeemable convertible
preferred stock in 2003. A summary of redeemable convertible preferred stock issued and outstanding as of
December 31, 2002 and 2003 is as follows:

Aggregate Liguidation
Shares Issued and Preference and

Outstanding Redemption Value
Series A . ... e e 541,594 $ 7,709
Series B ... .. e 809,299 32,000
Series C ..o e 673,419 45,000
Series D .. ... e 129,692 5,405

2,154,004 $90,114

During the year ended December 31, 2004, the following shares of redeemable convertible preferred stock
were converted into shares of common stock for non-participation in the Bridge Financing:

SELIES AL L L i e e e e e e 114,159
SemEs B o e e e e 167,684
LS T 69,206
Series D, L. e e e e e e e 37,055
B L 388,104
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The remaining shares of Series A, B, C and D preferred stock were exchanged for Series A-1, B-1, C-1 and D-1
preferred stock, respectively, on a one-for-one basis upon the closing of the Bridge Financing. A summary of
redeemable convertible preferred stock issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2004 was as follows;

Aggregate Liguidation

Shares Issued and Preference and
Qutstanding Redemption Value
Series A-T. ... e e e 427,435 $ 6,084
Series B-l. .o e e e 641,615 25,370
Series C-l. . i i e i s e e e 604,213 40,375
Series D-1. . ... .. e 92,637 3,861
1,765,900 375,690

As of December 31, 2004, the Series A-1, B-1, C-1 and D-1 preferred stock were convertible at the option of
the holder on a one-for-one basis, subject to adjustment for dilution, into a total of 1,765,900 shares of common
stock. In addition, the terms of the preferred stock provided that the preferred stock would automatically convert
into shares of common stock upon the closing of an underwritten public offering of equity securities which results in
a minimum per share purchase price of $16.90 with net proceeds of at least $25,000, or upon a vote of the holders of
more than 50% of the preferred stock then outstanding. The holder of each share of preferred stock was entitled to
one vote for each share of common stock inte which it would convert. The terms of the preferred stock also provided
that on any date after September 12, 2005 and on each of the first and second anniversaries thereof, upon approval of
at least two-thirds of the then outstanding shares of preferred stock, such shares could be redeemed in three equal
annual instaliments. The Company was required to affect redemptions by paying cash in an amount equal to $14.23,
$39.54, $66.82 and $41.68 per share for Series A-1, B-1, C-1 and D-1 preferred stock, respectively, plus any
declared but unpaid dividends,

Holders of the shares of preferred stock were entitled to receive non-cumulative dividends at an annual rate of
$1.t4,33.16, $5.35 and $0.44 per share of Series A-1, B-1, C-1 and D-1 preferred stock, respectively, as adjusted for
stock splits, stock combinations and stock dividends. To date, the Company has not declared any dividends.

In the event of liquidation, the preferred stockholders were entitled to receive a liquidation preference equal to
the original issuance price plus declared but unpaid dividends. The liquidation preference had priority over all
distributions to common stockholders. After payment of the liquidation preference, all remaining assets from
liquidation were to be paid to the preferred stockholders and common stockholders according to the number of
shares held. However, the total amounts that could be distributed (including all amounts payable under the
liquidation preference) to the holders of Series A-1, B-1, C-1 and D-1 preferred stock would not exceed $42.70,
$118.62, $200.47 and $125.00 per share, respectively. All remaining amounts would be distributed ratably to the
holders of common stock.

In April 2005, the principal and accrued interest under the Secured Bridge Notes were converted into
3,034,095 shares of Series A-2 preferred stock. Subsequent to the conversion of the Secured Bridge Notes, the
holders of Series A-1, B-1, C-1, and D-1 preferred stock exchanged their 1,765,900 shares of Series A-1, B-1, C-1
and D-1 preferred stock, together with their 3,034,095 shares of Series A-2 preferred stock, for an aggregate of
13,600,000 shares of new Series A preferred stock, and 388,104 shares of common stock were issued upon
conversion of shares of Sertes A-1, B-1, C-1 or D-1 preferred stock that were not exchanged for shares of new
Series A preferred stock. Also in 2005, the Company sold 3,175,981 shares of new Series B preferred stock for
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$4.71 per share for net proceeds of $13,287. As a result, a summary of redeemable convertible preferred stock
issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2005 is as follows:

Aggregate Liguidation

Shares Issued and Preference and
Qutstanding Redemption Value
Series A(NEW) . .. .. . e e 13,525,400 $33,272
Series B UNEW) . ...ttt i i i et 3,167,254 14,918
16,692,654 $48,190

As of December 31, 2005, the 16,692,654 shares of Series A (new) and Series B (new) preferred stock were
convertible into a total of 8,346,316 shares of common stock. The terms of the preferred stock provided that the
preferred stock would automatically convert into shares of common stock upon the closing of an underwrittea
public offering of equity securities which results in a minimum per share purchase price of $5.00 with net proceeds
of at least $25,000, or upon a vote of the holders of more than 50% of the preferred stock then outstanding. The
shares of preferred stock had a liquidation preference and redemption value of $2.46 and $4.71 per share of Series A
{new) and Series B (new) preferred stock, respectively, plus any declared but unpaid dividends. In connection with
closing of the Company’s initial public offering in February 2006, all shares of preferred stock were converted into
8,346,316 shares of common stock.

6. Equity Incentive Plans and Warrants
2000 Equity Incentive Plan

In February 2000, the Company adopted its 2000 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Equity Incentive Plan”). The
Equity Incentive Plan provides for the grant of up to 1,755,000 shares pursuant to incentive and non-statutory stock.
options, stock bonuses or sales of restricted stock. Options granted under the Equity Incentive Plan generally expire
no later than ten years from the date of grant (five years for a 10% stockholder). Options generally vest over a period
of four years. The exercise price of incentive stock options must be equal to at least the fair value of the Company’s
common stock on the date of grant, and the exercise price of non-statutory stock options may be no less than 85% of
the fair value of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant. The exercise price of any option granted to a
10% stockholder may not be less than 110% of the fair value of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant.
On February 1, 2006, the effective date of the Company’s initial public offering, the 2000 plan terminated and the
remaining 249,427 shares available under the plan were transferred to the 2005 plan.

2005 Equity Incentive Plan

The Company adopted in August 2005, and the stockholders approved in October 2005, the 2005 equity
incentive plan (the “2005 Plan”). The 2005 Plan became effective upon the effectiveness of the Company’s initial
public offering (see Note 1). An aggregate of 750,000 shares of the Company’s common stock are authorized for
issuance under the 2005 Plan, plus the number of shares remaining available for future issuance under the Equity
Incentive Plan that are not covered by outstanding options as of the termination of the Equity Incentive Plan on the
effective date of the initial public offering. In addition, this amount will be automatically increased annually on the
first day of the Company’s fiscal year, from 2007 until 2015, by the lesser of (a) 3.5% of the aggregate number of
shares of common stock outstanding on December 31 of the preceding fiscal year or (b) 500,000 shares of commeon
stock. Options granted under the 2005 Plan generally expire no later than ten years from the date of grant (five years
for a 10% stockholder). Options generally vest over a period of four years. The exercise price of incentive stock
options must be equal to at least the fair value of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant, and the exercise
price of non-statutory stock options may be no less than 85% of the fair value of the Company’s common stock on
the date of the grant. The exercise price of any option granted to a 10% stockholder may not be less than 110% of the
fair value of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant. In December 2006, the Board of Directors approved
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the 500,000 share automatic increase in the shares of the Company's common stock authorized for issuance
pursuant to the 2005 Plan, effective as of January 1, 2007.

2005 Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Option Plan

The Company adopted in August 2005, and the stockholders approved in October 2003, the 2005 non-
employee directors’ stock option plan (the “Directors” Plan™). The Directors’ Plan became effective upon the
effectiveness of the Company’s initial public offering (see Note 1). The Directors’ Plan provides for the automatic
grant of non-qualified options to purchase shares of our common stock to our non-employee directors. An aggregate
of 75,000 shares of common stock are reserved for issuance under the Directors’ Plan. This amount will be
increased annually on the first day of the Company’s fiscal year, from 2007 until 2015, by the aggregate number of
shares of our common stock subject to options granted as initial grants and annual grants under the directors’ plan
during the immediately preceding year. There were no options granted from the directors’ plan during 2006,

Stock Option Activity:

The following table summarizes activity related to stock options to purchase shares of the Company’s common
stock:

Weighted-Average

Remaining
Weighted-Average Contractuzl Term Agpregate
Shares Exercise Price in Years Intrinsic Value

Outstanding at December 31, 2003 . ... ... 164,101 $11.98

Granted. .. ....... ... ... ... ... 39,905 $ 4.80

Exercised ........................ (11,196} $ 5.59

Cancelled ........................ (28,339) $12.04
Outstanding at December 31, 2004 . ... ... 164,475 $10.67

Granted. . . ....... ... ... ... ... .... 1,396,627 $ 1.00

Exercised .............. ... ....... (213,417 $ 1.04

Cancelled ........................ (200,999) $ 241
Outstanding at December 31, 2005 ... .. .. 1,146,686 $ 213

Granted. . . ......... ... ... ... ... 677,750 $ 677

Exercised ........................ (96,856) $ 1.06

Cancelled ........................ (143,480) $ 4.55
Qutstanding at December 31, 2006 ....... 1,584,100 $ 396 8.14 $2,130
Exercisable at December 31,2006 . . ... ... 591,183 $ 2.75 7.17 $1,205
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Selected information regarding stock options as of December 31, 2006;
Options Qutstanding

Weighted Options Exercisable
Average Weighted Weighted
Remaining Average Average
Number of Contractual Exercise Number of Exercise

Range of Exercise Price Shares Term in Years Price Shares Price
$1.00 ... ... 836,612 791 $1.00 477,111 $ 1.00
$158-3766 ... .. .. .. 632,696 8.93 $ 6.53 43,221 5451
$769-38.18 .. ... .. 41,250 9.23 $ 783 — 5 -
S13.44 e 73,542 5.19 $13.44 70,851 $13.44
$1.00-81344 . ... ... 1,584,100 8.14 $ 3.96 591,183 $ 275

As of December 31, 2006, there was $3,230 of unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested option
arrangements. The cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 2.31 years. The per shar2
weighted-average grant date fair value of options granted (as determined through the use of the Black-Scholes
option pricing model) during 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $4.36, $10.15, and $1.90, respectively. For 2006, the Black-
Scholes model with the following assumptions was vsed (annvalized percentages):

Twelve Months

Ended
December 31,
2006
Expected volatility ... ... ... . e 66%
Risk-free interest Tate . . . . ... ittt it ettt e e e e e 4. 7%
Dividend yield .. . ... ... .. e 0%
Expected term . .. ... . e 6.25 years

Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Unit Grants

In May 2005, the Company granted a restricted stock award under the Company’s Equity Incentive Plan of
70,000 shares of the Company's common stock. Twenty-five percent of the shares subject to the award were
immediately vested as of the date of grant and the remaining shares subject to the award vest in equal monthly
installments over a two year period.

In March 2006, the Company granted restricted stock unit awards in the amount of 75,000 each to two
members of the Company’s executive management team under the Company’s 2005 Plan, Twenty-five percent of
the shares subject to the restricted stock awards will vest on the one-year anniversary of their respective hire dates,
with the remaining shares subject to such awards vesting in equal monthly installments over the following three
years.

At December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2003, there were 142,188 shares and 37,188 shares, respectively, of
unvested restricted common stock outstanding under these agreements.
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Changes in the Company’s restricted stock for the twelve months ended December 31, 2006 were as follows (in
thousands except per share amounts):

Weighted-Average

Restricted Grant Date

Shares Fair Value
Non-vested restricted stock at January 1,2006................... 37,188 $10.37
Granted . ... .. .. e 150,000 7.66
Vested .. e e s (45,000) 9.22
Non-vested restricted stock at December 31,2006 . ... . ......... 142,188 $ 787

For the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company recorded stock-based compensation expense of
$0.5 million related to outstanding restricted stock grants.

As of December 31, 2006, there was $0.7 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested
restricted stock arrangements. The cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 2.79 years.
The total fair value of shares vested during the year ended December 31, 2006 was $415.

Common Stock Options to Consultants

As of December 31, 2006, the Company has cutstanding options to purchase 119,854 shares of common stock
that were granted to consultants. Of the total shares granted, 13,232 were exercised, and 17,723 were unvested,
These options were granted in exchange for consulting services to be rendered and vest over periods of up to four
vears. The Company recorded charges to operations for stock options granted to consultants using the graded-
vesting method of $145 during the year ended December 31, 2006. There was no charge to operations in 2005. The
unvested shares held by consultants have been and will be revalued using the Company’s estimate of fair value at
each balance sheet date pursuant to EITF Issue No. 96-18, Accounting for Equity Instruments That Are Issued to
Other Than Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services.

Total stock-based compensation expense recognized for the year ended December 31, 2006, related to all of the
Company’s stock-based awards granted, was comprised as follows:

Year Ended
December 31,
2006
Research and development . . . ...« ... i e $2,124
General and administrative ... .. oot e e e $2,445
Stock-based compensation eXpeRSE . . ... L. i e e e $4,569
Stock-based compensation expense per common share, basic and diluted:, .. ........ $ 033

2005 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company adopted in August 2005, and the stockholders approved in October 2005, the 2005 employee
stock purchase plan (the “Purchase Plan”). The Purchase Plan became effective upon the effectiveness of the
Company’s initial public offering {see Note 1). The Purchase Plan will terminate at the time that all of the shares of
our common stock then reserved for issuance under the Purchase Plan have been issued under the terms of the
Purchase Plan, unless our board of directors terminates it earlier. An aggregate of 375,000 shares of our common
stock are reserved for issuance under the Purchase Plan. This amount will be increased annually on the first day of
our fiscal year, from 2007 until 2015, by the lesser of (i} 1% of the fully-diluted shares of our common stock
outstanding on January 1 of the current fiscal year or (ii) 150,000 shares of our common stock. An additional
150,000 shares of common stock were automatically added to the Purchase Plan effective January 1, 2007.
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Unless otherwise determined by our board of directors or its authorized committee, common stock is
purchased for accounts of employees participating in the Purchase Plan at a price per share equal to the lower
of (1) 85% of the fair market value of a share of the Company’s common stock on the date of commencement of
participation in the offering or (2) 85% of the fair market value of a share of the Company’s common stock on the
date of purchase. Given this look-back feature of up to 24 months, if the Company’s stock price continues o
increase from the initial offering price, or automatic rollover if the stock price declines from the initial offering price
at the end of the purchase period, the Company is required to account for the plan as a variable plan. At the end of
each six month purchase period, the Company must 1) recalculate a new expense amount based upon the intrinsic
value between the fair market value on purchase date and the purchase price and 2) add to this amount 85% of the
Black Scholes value of the call option attributable to the look-back feature. The Company also has, for any one
purchase period, a 7,500 share purchase maximum.

The Company’s initial offering period for the Purchase Plan began in February 2006 and the first purchase
period was on September 15, 2006. At September 15, 2006, the purchase price was lower than at the beginning of
the initial offering period, therefore the Company recorded only the intrinsic value difference between the fair
market value on purchase date and the purchase price, in the amount of $20. Since the purchase price was lower ut
the end of the first purchase period, this offering period ended and a new offering period commenced with all
participants automatically rolling over to the new offering period with the new lower initial offering price. Because
of this feature, the Company is required to calculate the value of the new offering at the beginning of the offering
period and will record the expense in accordance with the accelerated method. The valuation for the offering period
beginning September 16, 2006 was $355 based on the following assumptions:

Twelve Months
Ended

December 31,
2006

Expected volatility .. ... ... .. e 67%
Risk-free interest Tate . . ... ..o i ittt e e i i 5.0%
Dividend yield . . ... ... .o e 0%

Expected 18I . . .\ i i ittt it e e 6 months to
2 years

During the quarter ended December 31, 2006, the Company recorded $86 of this amount as stock-basexl
compensation expense.

Warrants

Since 2000, in connection with certain debt arrangements and consulting service agreements, the Company has
issued warrants to purchase shares of common stock. As of December 31, 2006, the Company had outstanding
warrants to purchase 201,400 shares of the Company’s common stock with exercise prices ranging from $1.00 to
$28.46. These warrants expire at various times between March 2007 and December 2015.

7. Stockholders equity (deficit)

Common Stock

Many of the outstanding shares of common stock have been issued to the founders, directors, employees and
consultants of the Company. In connection with certain stock purchase agreements, the Company has the option to
repurchase, at the original issuance price, the unvested shares in the event of termination of employment or
engagement. Shares under these agreements vest over periods of up to four years. At December 31, 2006,
6,945 shares were subject to repurchase by the Company.
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In April 2005, the Company’s board of directors authorized a 0.126453-for-1 reverse stock split for all
outstanding preferred and common shares. In January 2006, the Company’s board of directors authorized a 1-for-2
reverse stock split for all common shares. As a result of the 1-for-2 reverse stock split, each share of the Company’s
preferred stock was convertible into one-half of a share of common stock. The 1-for-2 reverse stock split of the
Company’s common stock adjusted the conversion ratio of the preferred stock but did not adjust the number of
outstanding shares of preferred stock. All share and per share amounts have been retroactively adjusted to give
effect to these two reverse stock splits.

Shares Reserved for Future Issuance

The Company has reserved shares of common stock for future issuance as follows:

December 31,

2006
Equity Incentive Plans . . ... ... .. . . 1,715,350
VTN, . . o e e e 201,400
Total Shares Reserved for Issuance . .. ... ... .. .. . . . ... . 0 i, 1,916,750

In December 2004, the Company issued an amended and restated convertible promissory note in a private
placement to Millennium Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (as successor in interest to mHOLDINGS Trust) in the aggregate
principal amount of $6,000. No interest accrues on the principal unless a payment towards the principal becomes
overdue. The full principal amount of the note converted into an aggregate of 1,000,000 shares of common stock
upon the closing of the initial public offering at $6.00 per share, the price per share to the public in the offering (see
Note 1).

Notes Receivable

From 1999 to 2002, the board of directors authorized the issuance of an aggregate of approximately $2,000 in
loans to employees and consultants, related to the exercise of their stock options and purchase of their restricted
stock. The notes are full recourse and are also secured by the underlying stock. The notes bear interest at 7%. The
principal amount of the notes and the related interest are required to be repaid on the earlier of five years from the
origination date of the loans, upon termination of employment by or association with the Company or upon the sale
of the underlying stock securing the note.

During 2004, the compensation committee of the board of directors authorized the Company to repurchase
vested and unvested shares of common stock in settlement of the principal and accrued interest on the outstanding
notes (the “Note Settlement”). The Company repurchased 131,224 shares of common stock in settlement of
approximately $1,113 in aggregate principal and accrued interest on the notes. The Company atso forgave
approximately $782 of principal and accrued interest related to those notes whose principal balance had been
partially repaid in the Note Settlement. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, approximately $21 and $59,
respectively, of aggregate principal and accrued interest remained outstanding on the notes and will continue
to remain outstanding until such notes are extinguished,

8. Income Taxes

Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 are shown
below. A valuation allowance of $61,183, of which $11,751 relates to 2006, has been recognized to offset the
deferred tax assets, as realization of such assets is uncertain.
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December 31,
2006 2005

Deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss carryforwards . ... ... ..o $42,030 $ 38538

Research and development credits . ... ... oo 7,284 5,990

Capitalized research and development . .. ......... .. ...t 1,335 1,555

Accrued vacation . ... ..ottt e e 274 224

Deferred TeVENUE . . . .ottt e et e 8,157 1,954

OHRET © . et e e e e 1,107 141

Depreciation and amortization . . ... ... ... 996 1,030
Total deferred AKX aSSEIS . . v v v vttt v e e e e e s e e 61,183 49,432
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets . ... ... i (61,183)  (49,432)
Net deferred 1aX ESSEIS . . . v v v v v ettt iaan e $ — 3 —

At December 31, 2006, the Company had federal and California tax net operating loss carryforwards of
approximately $107,564 and $76,269, respectively. The federal and California tax loss carryforwards will begin to
expire in 2019 and 2009, respectively, unless previously utilized. The Company also has federal and California
research and development tax credit carryforwards totaling approximately $5,042 and $3,449, respectively. The
federal research and development tax credit carry forward will begin to expire in 2019, unless previously utilized.

Pursuant to Internal Revenue Code Sections 382 and 383, use of the Company’s net operating loss and tax
credit carryforwards may be limited as a result of certain cumulative changes in the Company’s stock ownership
which occurred during 1999, 2001 and 2005.

9. Employee Benefit Plan

Effective October 1, 1999, the Company adopted a defined contribution 401(k) profit sharing plan (the “Plan™)
covering substantially all employees that meet certain age requirements. Employees may contribute up to 100% cf
their compensation per year (subject to a maximum limit set by federal law). The Plan does allow for employer
matching; however, to date, the Company has not contributed to the Plan.

" 10. Reductions In Force

During August 2004, the Company eliminated approximately 11% of its workforce (17 employees). The
Company recorded a charge related to this reduction in force of approximately $278, all of which was paid as of
December 31, 2004.

In April 2005, the Company terminated 14 of its employees. The Company provided severance benefits to all
such terminated employees who executed a severance agreement and release. The total costs associated with the
severance benefits were approximately $230, all of which was paid as of December 31, 2005.
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11. Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)

The following tables summarize certain of the Company’s operating results by quarter for 2006 and 2005:

2006
First Second Third Fourth Total

Revenues . ....... ... . i $ 4729 §$7848 $6,767 $8436 $27,780
Netloss . ..ot e e e e e e 3(10,415) 3(9,354) $(3,398) $(4,885) $(28,052)
Accretion of redeemable convertible preferred stock

ISSUANCE COSLS . . ... vttt i (49) — — — (49)
Net loss applicable to common stockholders .. ... .. 5(10,464)  $(9,354) $(3,398) $(4,885) $(28,101)
Netlosspershare ........ ... coviiiinnnnnn.. $ 106 3062 $023) $03I2) $§ R0
Net loss per share applicable to common

stockholders ........ ... ... ot iunen.. 3 (1.06) $(0.62) $(0.23) $ 032y § (203

2005
First Second Third Fourth Total

Revenues . ........ . .0 it $4010 $5847 $ 4893 36,886 $21,636
N $(5,806) $(7,166) $(10,552) $(5,867) $(29,391)
Accretion of redeemable convertible preferred stock

ISSUANCE COSLS . .o vt it et et imn e e e (82) (82) (55) (253) (472)
Net loss applicable to common stockholders . ... ... $(5,888) $(7,248) $010,607) $(6,120) $(29,863)
Netlosspershare . ...... ... ... ... ..., $(11.61) 5(1296) $ (17.38) $ (7.30) $ (47.56)
Accretion of redeemable convertible preferred stock

ISSUANCE COSES . ... vyttt e e, (0.16) {0.15) (0.09) {0.31) {0.76)
Net loss per share applicable to common

stockholders . .............. ... ... ... .... (117N 301311 $ (1747 $ (7.61) $ (48.32)

Per share amounts for the quarters and full years have been calculated separately. Accordingly, quarterly
amounts may not add to the annual amount because of differences in the weighted average common shares
outstanding during each period principally due to the effect of the Company issuing shares of its common stock
during the year. Diluted and basic net loss per share are identical since common equivalent shares are excluded from
the calculation, as their effect is anti-dilutive.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this report, an evaluation was performed under the supervision and with
the participation of our management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer (collectively,
our “certifying officers™), of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures.
Based on their evaluation, our certifying officers concluded that these disclosure controls and procedures are
effective in providing reasonable assurance that the information required to be disclosed by us in our periodic
reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC™) is recorded, processed, summarized and
reported within the time periods specified by the SEC’s rules and SEC reports.

We believe that a controls system, no matter how well designed and operated, is based in part upon certain
assumptions about the liketihood of future events, and therefore can only provide reasonable, not absolute,
assurance that the objectives of the controls system are met, and no evaluation of controls can provide absolute
assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within a company have been detected.

In addition, we have reviewed our internal controls over financial reporting and have not made any change
during the quarter ended December 31, 2006, that our certifying officers concluded materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

Not applicable.

PART I1I

Item 10 Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by this item with respect to directors and executive officers is incorporated by
reference from the information under the captions “Election of Directors”, “Executive Officers”, “Section 16(a)
Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance”, and “Information Regarding the Board of Directors and Corporate
Governance” contained in the proxy statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days
following the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 (“Proxy Statement”) in connection with our 2007 annual
meeting of stockholders. We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to all officers,
directors and employees. The text of the Company’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is posted on the
Company’s internet website and may be accessed at www.sgxpharma.com. If we make any substantive amendments
to the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics or grant any waiver from a provision of the code to any executive officer
or director, we will promptly disclose the nature of the amendment or waiver on our website.

There have been no material changes to the procedures under which security holders may recominend
nominees to the Company's Board of Directors.

Item 11.. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item will be set forth in the sections entitled “Executive Compensation”,
“Compensation Committee Processes and Procedures:, “Compensation Committee Report” and “Compensation
Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated in this report by
reference.
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Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

The information required by this item will be set forth in the sections entitled “Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management” and “Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans”
in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated in this report by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information required by this item will be set forth in the sections entitled “Transactions with Related
Persons” and “information Regarding the Board of Directors and Corporate Governance” in the Proxy Statement
and is incorporated in this report by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this item will be set forth in the section entitled “Ratification of Selection of
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm™ in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated in this report by
reference.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
{a) 1. Financial Statements

See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, which is
incorporated herein by reference.

2. Financia.i Statement Schedules

None
3. Exhibits
Exhibit
Number Description of Document
3.1(1) Form of Registrant’s Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation.
32 Form of Registrant’s Amended and Restated Bylaws,
4.1(4) Form of Common Stock Certificate of Registrant.
4.2(1) Form of Warrant to Purchase Common Stock issued by Registrant in July 2005 to Timothy Harris and

Linda Grais.
4.3(4) Form of Warrants issued by Registrant in July 2002 to GATX Ventures, Inc.
4.4(3) Amended and Restated Warrant issued by Registrant in January 2005 to Oxford Finance Corporation.
4.5(4) Warrant issued by Registrant in July 2002 to Silicon Valley Bank.

4.6(1) Amended and Restated Investor Rights Agreement dated April 21, 2005 between Registrant and
certain of its stockholders.

4.7(2) Form of Warrant issued by Registrant in September and December 2005 to Oxford Finance
Corporation and Silicon Valley Bank. Reference is made to Exhibit 10.34.

4.8 First and Second Amendments to Amended and Restated Investor Rights Agreement, dated
October 31, 2005 and March 27, 2006, respectively, each between Registrant and certain of its
stockholders.

10.1+(1) Form of Indemnity Agreement by and between Registrant and its directors and executive officers.

10.2+(4) 2000 Equity Incentive Plan and Form of Option Agreement and Form of Stock Option Grant Notice
thereunder.

10.3+(4) 2005 Equity Incentive Plan and Form of Stock Option Agreement and Form of Stock Option Grant
Notice thereunder.
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Exhibit
Number

10.4+(4)
10.5+(4)

10.6+(1)
10.7+(1)
10.8+(1)
10.9+4(1)
10.10(1)

10.11(1)
10.12(1)
10.13*(4)

10.14%(3)

10.15%(3)
10.16%(1)
10.17*(3)
10.18*(1)
10.19%(3)

10.20%(3)
10.21%(3)

10.22%(1)
10.23%(4)

10.24(1)

10.25(1)
10.26(2)
10.27(2)
10.28(2)
10.29%(3)

10.30*(3)
10.31+(4)

Description of Document

2005 Employee Stock Purchase Plan and Form of Offering Document thereunder.

2005 Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Option Plan and Form of Stock Option Agreement and Form of
Stock Option Grant Notice thereunder.

Amended and Restated Executive Employment Agreement dated January 1, 2005 between Registrant
and Michael Grey.

Executive Employment Agreement dated January 1, 2002 between Registrant and Stephen Burley, M.D,,
D.Phil. and related relocation loan agreement dated July 29, 2002,

Chairmanship Letter Agreement dated January 16, 2004 between Registrant and Christopher
Henney, Ph.D., DSc.

Non-Employee Director Compensation Letter Agreement dated April 13, 2001 between Registrant
and Stelios Papadopoulos, Ph.D., as amended.

Lease Agreement dated September 20, 1999 between Registrant and ARE-10505 Roselle Street, LLC,
as amended.

Lease Agreement dated May 18, 2000 between Registrant and ARE-3770 Tansy Street, LLC.
Lease Agreement dated June 1, 2001 between Registrant and BRS Torrey I, LLC.

Patent and Know How License dated July 23, 2004 between Registrant, Shire Biochem Inc., Tanaud
Ireland Inc. and Tanaud International B.V., as amended, and related novation agreements.

Collaboration and License Agreement dated April 14, 2003 between Registrant and Eli Lilly and
Company.

Amendment to Agreement dated July 1, 2003 between Registrant and Eli Lilly and Company.
Amendment to Agreement dated January 30, 2004 between Registrant and Eli Lilly and Company.
Amendment 1o Agreement dated November 11, 2004 between Registrant and Eli Lilly and Company.
Amendment to Agreement dated March 31, 2005 between Registrant and Eli Lilly and Company.
Collaboration Agreement dated August 20, 2004 between Registrant, F. Hoffmann-La Roche Ltd. and
Hoffmann-La Roche Inc.

Collaboration Agreement dated March 18, 2004 between Registrant and Serono International SA.
Collaboration Agreement dated December 1, 2003 between Registrant and UroGene, S.A. (which vas
acquired by Pierre Fabre Medicament in July 2005).

Amendment to Agreement dated December 16, 2004 between Registrant and UroGene, S.A.
(predecessor-in-interest to Pierre Fabre Medicament) and related assignment agreements.

Drug Discovery Agreement dated July 1, 2005 between Registrant and Cystic Fibrosis Foundarion
Therapeutics, Inc.

Memorandum of Understanding dated July 26, 2000 between the Advanced Photon Source and the
Structural GenomiX Collaborative Access Team and related Collaborative Access Team User
Agreement dated May 15, 2001 between Registrant, The University of Chicago and United States
Department of Energy.

Master Loan and Security Agreement No. 2081008 dated August 28, 2002 between Registrant and
Oxford Finance Corporation, as amended.

First Amendment to Lease Agreement dated August 30, 2005 between Registrant and ARE-3770
Tansy Street, LLC.

Third Amendment to Lease Agreement dated August 30, 2005 between Registrant and ARE-10505
Roselle Street, LLC.

Loan and Security Agreement dated September 16, 2005 among Registrant, Oxford Finance
Corporaticn and Silicon Valley Bank.

Amendment to Agreement effective as of October 1, 2005 between Registrant, F. Hoffmann-La Roche
Ltd. and Hoffmann-La Roche Inc.

Amendment to Agreement dated October 28, 2005 between Registrant and Serono International SA.
Offer Letter Agreement dated November 16, 2005 between Registrant and William Todd Myets.
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Number

10.32+(4)
10.33**(5)

10.34+(8)

10.35(8)
10.36(6)*
10.37(7)

10.38+
10.39+
10.40+
1041+
1042+
1043+

10.44+
10.45+
10.46

1047
10.48
10.49

231
24.1
31.1
31.2
32

Description of Document

Offer Letter Agreement dated December 13, 2005 between Registrant and Siegfried Reich, Ph.D.

Termination Agreement effective February 15, 2006 between Registrant and Pierre Fabre
Medicament S.A.

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Grant Notice and Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for Executive
Officers under the Registrant’s 2005 Equity Incentive Plan.

Stock Purchase Agreement dated March 27, 2006, between Registrant and Novartis Pharma AG.
License and Collaboration Agreement between SGX and Novartis, dated March 27, 2006.

Form of Change in Control Severance Agreement, which was filed as exhibit 10.1 to SGX’s 10-Q for
the period ending September 30, 2006.

Change of Control Severance Agreement dated December 18, 2006 between Registrant and
Michael Grey

Change of Control Severance Agreement dated February 9, 2007 between Registrant and
Stephen K. Burley

Change of Control Severance Agreement dated December 15, 2006 between Registrant and
W. Todd Myers

Change of Control Severance Agreement dated December 18, 2006 between Registrant and
Annette North

Change of Control Severance Agreement dated January 2, 2007 between Registrant and
Siegfried Reich _

Change of Control Severance Agreement dated December 18, 2006 between Registrant and
Terence Rugg

Summary of 2007 Bonus Award Program
Letter Agreement dated February 9, 2007 between Registrant and Stephen K. Burley

Fifth Amendment to Collaboration and License Agreement dated March 1, 2007 between Registrant
and Eli Lilly and Company

First Amendment to the Drug Discovery Agreement dated March 1, 2007 between Registrant and
Cystic Fibrosis Foundation Therapeutics, Inc.

Fourth Amendment to Lease Agreement dated March 28, 2007 between Registrant and ARE-10505
Roselle Street, LL.C.

Second Amendment to Lease Agreement dated March 28, 2007 between Registrant and ARE-3770
Tansy Street, LLC,

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

Power of Attorney. Reference is made to the signature page of this report.

Certification of principal executive officer required by Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a).
Certification of principal financial officer required by Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a).

Certification by the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer of the Registrant, as
required by Rule 13a-14(b) or 15d-14(b) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the
United States Code (18 U.S.C. 1350),

+ Indicates management contract or compensatory plan.

* Confidentia! treatment has been granted with respect to certain portions of this exhibit. Omitted portions have
been filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

*+ Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to certain portions of this exhibit. Omitted portions have
been filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

(1) Filed with the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 on September 2, 2005 and incorporated herein
by reference.
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(2) Filed with Amendment No. 1 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 on October 14, 2005 and
incorporated hercin by reference,

(3) Filed with Amendment No. 3 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 on November 14, 2003
and incorporated herein by reference.

(4) Filed with Amendment No. 4 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 on January 4, 2006 ¢nd
incorporated hercin by reference,

(5) Filed with the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K on March 13, 2006 and incorporated herein by
reference.

(6) Filed with the Registrant’s Current Report on Form §8-K on April 5, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference.

(7) Filed with the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2006 filed on
November 13, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference.

(8) Filed as an exhibit to the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005 filed
with the Commission on March 31, 2006, and incorporated herein by reference.

(b) Exhibits
See Item 15(a) above,
(c) Financial Statement Schedules

See Item 15(a) above.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

SGX PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.

By: /s/ Michael Grey

Michael Grey
President and Chief Executive Officer

Dated: March 30, 2007

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes
and appoints Todd Myers. and Michael Grey, and each of them, acting individually, as his or her attorney-in-fact, each
with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him or her and in his or her name, place and stead, in any and atl
capacilies, to sign any and all amendments to this annual report on Form 10-K, and to file the same, with all exhibits
thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto
said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and
thing requisite and necessary to be done in connection therewith and about the premises, as fully to all intents and
purposes as he or she might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and
agents, or any of them, or their or his substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/  Michael Grey President, Chief Executive Officer and March 30, 2007

Michael Grey

/s/ Todd Myers

Todd Myers, C.PA.

s/ Christopher S. Henney

Christopher S. Henney, Ph.D., D.Sc.

/s/  Louis C. Bock

Louis C. Bock

/s/ Karin Eastham

Karin Eastham, C.PA.

Is/ Jean-Francois Formela

Jean-Francois Formela, M.D.

/s/ Vijay K. Lathi

Vijay K. Lathi

Member of the Board of Directors
(Principal Executive Officer)

Chief Financial Officer (Principal

Financial and Accounting Officer)

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Member of the Board of Directors

Member of the Board of Directors

Member of the Board of Directors

Member of the Board of Directors
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Exhibit
Number

3.1(1)
32

4.1(4)
4.2(1)

4.3(4)
4.4(3)
4.5(4)
4.6(1)

4.7(2)

4.8
10.14(1)
10.24(4)
10.3+(4)

10.4+(4)
10.5+(4)

10.6+(1)
10.7+(1)
10.8+(1)
10.9+(1)
10.10(1)

10.11(1)
10.12(1)
10.13*(4)

10.14%(3)

10.15%(3)
10.16*(1)
10.17*(3)
10.18*(1)
10.19%(3)

10.20%(3)

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description of Document

Form of Registrant’s Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation.
Form of Registrant’s Amended and Restated Bylaws.
Form of Common Stock Certificate of Registrant,

Form of Warrant to Purchase Common Stock issued by Registrant in July 2003 to Timothy Harris and
Linda Grais.

Form of Warrants issued by Registrant in July 2002 to GATX Ventures, Inc.
Amended and Restated Warrant issued by Registrant in January 2005 to Oxford Finance Corporation.
Warrant issued by Registrant in July 2002 to Silicon Valley Bank.

Amended and Restated Investor Rights Agreement dated April 21, 2005 between Registrant and
certain of its stockholders.

Form of Warrant issued by Registrant in September and December 2005 to Oxford Finance
Corporation and Silicon Valley Bank. Reference is made to Exhibit 10.34.

First and Second Amendments to Amended and Restated Investor Rights Agreement, dated
October 31, 2005 and March 27, 2006, respectively, each between Registrant and certain of its
stockholders.

Form of Indemnity Agreement by and between Registrant and its directors and executive officers.

2000 Equity Incentive Plan and Form of Option Agreement and Form of Stock Option Grant Notice
thereunder.

2005 Equity Incentive Plan and Form of Stock Option Agreement and Form of Stock Option Grant
Notice thereunder.

2005 Employee Stock Purchase Plan and Form of Offering Document thereunder.

2005 Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Option Plan and Form of Stock Option Agreement and Form of
Stock Option Grant Notice thereunder.

Amended and Restated Executive Employment Agreement dated January 1, 2005 berween Registrant.
and Michael Grey.

Executive Employment Agreement dated January 1, 2002 between Registrant and Stephen
Burley, M.D., D.Phil. and related relocation loan agreement dated July 29, 2002.

Chairmanship Letter Agreement dated January 16, 2004 between Registrant and Christopher
Henney, Ph.D., DSc.

Non-Employee Director Compensation Letter Agreement dated April 13, 2001 between Registrart
and Stelios Papadopoulos, Ph.D., as amended.

Lease Agreement dated September 20, 1999 between Registrant and ARE-10505 Roselle Street, LLC,
as amended.

Lease Agreement dated May 18, 2000 between Registrant and ARE-3770 Tansy Sureet, LLC.
Lease Agreement dated June 1, 2001 between Registrant and BRS Torrey 1, LLC.

Patent and Know How License dated July 23, 2004 between Registrant, Shire Biochem Inc., Tanaud
Ireland Inc. and Tanaud International B.V., as amended, and related novation agreements.

Collaboration and License Agreement dated April 14, 2003 between Registrant and Eli Lilly and
Company.

Amendment to Agreement dated July 1, 2003 between Registrant and Eli Lilly and Company.
Amendment to Agreement dated January 30, 2004 between Registrant and Eli Lilly and Company.
Amendment to Agreement dated November 11, 2004 between Registrant and Eli Lilly and Company.
Amendment to Agreement dated March 31, 2005 between Registrant and Eli Lilly and Compary.

Collaboration Agreement dated August 20, 2004 between Registrant, F, Hoffmann-La Roche Lid. zaind
Hoffmann-La Roche Inc.

Collaboration Agreement dated March 18, 2004 between Registrant and Serono International SA.
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Exhibit

Number
10.21%(3)
10.22%(1)
10,23*%(4)

10.24(1)

10.25(1)
10.26(2)
10.27(2)
10.28(2)
10.29%(3)

10.30%(3)
10.314(4)
10.32+(4)
10.33%*(5)

10.34+(8)

10.35(8)
10.36(6)*
10.37(7)

10.38+
10.39+
10.40+
1041+
10.42+
10.43+

10.44+
10,45+
10.46

Description of Document

Collaboration Agreement dated December 1, 2003 between Registrant and UroGene, S.A. {which was
acquired by Pierre Fabre Medicament in July 2005).

Amendment to Agreement dated December 16, 2004 between Registrant and UroGene, S.A.
(predecessor-in-interest to Pierre Fabre Medicament) and related assignment agreements.

Drug Discovery Agreement dated July 1, 2005 between Registrant and Cystic Fibrosis Foundation
Therapeutics, Inc.

Memorandum of Understanding dated July 26, 2000 between the Advanced Photon Source and the
Structural GenomiX Collaborative Access Team and related Collaborative Access Team User
Agreement dated May 15, 2001 between Registrant, The University of Chicagoe and United States
Department of Energy.

Master Loan and Security Agreement No. 2081008 dated August 28, 2002 between Registrant and
Oxford Finance Corporation, as amended.

First Amendment to Lease Agreement dated August 30, 2005 between Registrant and ARE-3770
Tansy Street, LLC.

Third Amendment to Lease Agreement dated August 30, 2005 between Registrant and ARE-10505
Roselle Street, LLC.

Loan and Security Agreement dated September 16, 2005 among Registrant, Oxford Finance
Corporation and Silicon Valley Bank.

Amendment to Agreement effective as of October 1, 2005 between Registrant, F. Hoffmann-La Roche
Ltd. and Hoffmann-La Roche Inc.

Amendment to Agreement dated October 28, 2005 between Registrant and Serono International SA.
Offer Letter Agreement dated November 16, 2005 between Registrant and William Todd Myers.
Offer Letter Agreement dated December 13, 2005 between Registrant and Siegfried Reich, Ph.D.

Termination Agreement effective February 15, 2006 between Registrant and Pierre Fabre
Medicament S.A.

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Grant Notice and Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for Executive
Officers under the Registrant’s 2005 Equity Incentive Plan,

Stock Purchase Agreement dated March 27, 2006, between Registrant and Novartis Pharma AG.
License and Collaboration Agreement between SGX and Novartis, dated March 27, 2006.

Form of Change in Contro! Severance Agreement, which was filed as exhibit 10.1 to SGX’s 10-Q for
the period ending September 30, 2006.

Change of Control Severance Agreement dated December 18, 2006 between Registrant and
Michael Grey

Change of Control Severance Agreement dated February 9, 2007 between Registrant and
Stephen K. Burley

Change of Control Severance Agreement dated December 15, 2006 between Registrant and
W. Todd Myers

Change of Control Severance Agreement dated December 18, 2006 between Registrant and
Annette North

Change of Control Severance Agreement dated January 2, 2007 between Registrant and
Siegfried Reich

Change of Control Severance Agreement dated December 18, 2006 between Registrant and
Terence Rugg

Summary of 2007 Bonus Award Program
Letter Agreement dated February 9, 2007 between Registrant and Stephen K. Burley

Fifth Amendment to Collaboration and License Agreement dated March I, 2007 between Registrant
and Eli Lilly and Company
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Exhibit

Number Description of Document

10.47 First Amendment to the Drug Discovery Agreement dated March I, 2007 between Registrant and
Cystic Fibrosis Foundation Therapeutics, Inc.

10.48 Fourth Amendment to Lease Agreement dated March 28, 2007 between Registrant and ARE-10505
Roselle Street, LLC.

10.49 Second Amendment to Lease Agreement dated March 28, 2007 between Registrant and ARE-3770
Tansy Street, LLC.

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

24.1 Power of Attorney. Reference is made to the signature page of this report.

3i.1 Certification of principal executive officer required by Rule 13a-14(a} or Rule 15d-14(a).

312 Certification of principal financial officer required by Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a).

32 Certification by the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer of the Registrant, as

required by Rule 13a-14(b) or 15d-14(b) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 1§ of the United
States Code (18 U.S.C. 1350).

+ Indicates management contract or compensatory plan.

* Confidential treatment has been granted with respect to certain portions of this exhibit. Omitted portions have
been filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

** (Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to certain portions of this exhibit. Omitted portions have
been filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

(1) Filed with the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Formm S-1 on September 2, 2005 and incorporated herein
by reference.

(2) Filed with Amendment No. 1 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 on October 14, 2005 and
incorporated herein by reference.

(3) Filed with Amendment No. 3 1o the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 on November 14, 2005
and incorporated herein by reference.

(4} Filed with Amendment No. 4 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 on January 4, 2006 and
incorporated herein by reference.

(5) Filed with the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K on March 13, 2006 and incorporated herein by
reference.

(6) Filed with the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K on April 3, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference.

(7} Filed with the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2006 filed on
November 13, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference.

(8) Filed as an exhibit to the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005 filed
with the Commission on March 31, 2006, and incorporated herein by reference.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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Mike Grey

President & Chief Executive Officer
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Chief Scientific Officer & Senior Vice President, Research
Kristine Figueroa, C.C.P.

Sr. Director, Human Resaources

W. Todd Muyers, C.P.A.

Chief Financial Officer
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Vice President, Legal Affairs & Corpaorate Secretary
Siegfried Reich, Ph.D.

Vice President, Orug Discovery

Terry Rugg, M.D.

Chief Medical Officer & Vice President, Development

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS
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